
'lown of Simsbury 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

I. 

II. 

Call to Order 

Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 
Wednesday, September 12, 2018 at 7:30 A.M. 

Board of Education Conference Room 
Simsbury Town Hall- 933 Hopmeadow Street 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Review of Minutes 
a) January 10, 2018 
b) May 9, 2018 

III. Review of OPEB Valuation 

IV. Pensions Plans & OPEB Trust Second Quarter 2018 Performance Reviews and Fiduciary 
Governance Update, Third Quarter Summary Data 

V. Defined Contribution Plans Second Quarter 2018 Performance Reviews and Fiduciary 
Governance Update, Third Quarter Summary Data 

VI. Communication - Interest Rate Assumption Scenarios 

VII. Adjourn 

7-ekphone (860) 658-3230 
3acsimile (860) 658-9467 

..9ln Equal Opportunity 6nplcyer 
www.simsbury-ct.gov 

8:30 - 7 :00 Jvlonday 
8:30 - 4:30 'Tuesday through 71iursday 

8:30 - 1:00 3riday 



 

 
T o w n  o f  S i m s b u r y  

 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET    SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

 
 

 

Telephone  (860) 658-3230 
Facsimile (860) 658-9467 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 
tcooke@simsbury-ct.gov 

www.simsbury-ct.gov 

8:30 – 7:00 Monday  
8:30 - 4:30  Tuesday through Thursday 

8:30 – 1:00 Friday 
 

 
Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 

Special Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Wednesday, January 10, 2018 at 7:30 A.M. 

Board of Education Conference Room 
Simsbury Town Hall – 933 Hopmeadow Street 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:30 a.m. by Administrative Chair Thomas Cooke.  Sub-Committee 
members Kevin Prell, Cheryl Cook, Chris Kelly, Jennifer Batchelar, Mike Goman, Paul McAlenney and 
Phil Schulz were present.  Town and Board of Education staff members in attendance included Burke 
LaClair, Board of Education Business Manager, Sean Kimball, Interim Town Manager and Eric Gomes, 
Human Resources.  Chris Kachmar and Tyler Polk were present for Fiduciary Investment Advisors. 
 

II. Proposed Schedule of Meetings for 2018 
 

Mr. Prell made a motion to set the following meeting dates for 2018.  Mr. Schulz seconded the 
motion and it passed unanimously: 

• Wednesday, February 14, 2018 at 7:30 a.m. in the Board of Education Conference Room 
• Wednesday, May 9, 2018 at 7:30 a.m. in the Board of Education Conference Room 
• Wednesday, September 12, 2018 at 7:30 a.m. in the Board of Education Conference Room 
• Wednesday, November 14, 2018 at 7:30 a.m. in the Board of Education Conference Room 

 
III. Review of Minutes 

a) Regular Meeting, May 17, 2017 
 

There were no changes to the May 17, 2017 minutes as filed. 
 

IV. Review of Third Quarter and Preview of Fourth Quarter Plan Performance 
 
Mr. Kachmar reviewed a document entitled “Town of Simsbury Retirement Plans – Executive Summary 
– Third Quarter 2017” beginning with a market review.  Mr. Kachmar noted that for the quarter in 
question and beyond both equity and fixed income markets were strong across the board with global 
growth and strong corporate financial health.  He noted that interest rates had been “well-behaved” and 
that with returns for equities were stronger overseas. 
 



Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 
Minutes of Meeting – January 10, 2018 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Referring to materials at Tab 2, Mr. Kachmar noted that the defined benefit plans saw growth of 11% 
YTD for the 3rd Quarter of 2017 and that they were likely to be up roughly 15% at the end of the 4th 
Quarter. 
 
In connection with FIA’s investment review, Mr. Kachmar noted that Aberdeen was on “watch” due to its 
merger with Standard Life which closed in August, 2017 but was likely to be taken off “watch” status 
shortly.  He also noted that Barings Core Property Fund LP was on watch due to loss of a co-portfolio 
manager. 
 
Mr. Kachmar then turned to the actuarial reviews in the Executive Summary, noting that all of the Town’s 
defined benefit plans were solidly funded in the 70% to 80% range.  A discussion concerning the actuarial 
return assumption ensued, and the Sub-Committee asked that Milliman, the Town’s actuary, be invited to 
discuss the return assumption at its next meeting.  Mr. Kachmar noted that the allocation analysis 
portfolio risk & return for the long term showed a 6.46 annualized return and pointed out that FIA was 
seeing a number of clients move to return assumptions below 7%.  In response to a question from Mr. 
Schulz, Mr. Kachmar explained that the numbers used for the analysis included fees.  In response to a 
question from Mr. Kelly, Mr. Kachmar noted that FIA was seeing clients tilt more towards international 
equities in their allocations. 
 
Mr. Kachmar concluded his overview with a review of a document entitled “Capital Markets Flash Report 
which showed that all three defined benefit plans were up for the 4th Quarter of 2017. 
 

V. Defined Benefit Plan 
a) Possible removal of BlackRock and reallocation of investments 

 
Mr. Kachmar turned to a document entitled “Simsbury Pension & OPEB – Portfolio Discussion – January 
2018,” which included FIA’s recommendation that the Town remove the BlackRock Global Allocation 
Fund from the benefit plan asset allocations and that the funds 10% position be reallocated among 
existing assets.  The recommendation was based on a change in BlackRock’s leadership, and specifically 
the departure of Dennis Stattman – the architect of the fund’s strategy – from the company.  Mr. Kachmar 
noted that the fund’s performance had not changed measurably and that while the change was not urgent, 
it was recommended.  Upon further questioning by the Committee, Mr. Kachmar explained that the 
primary concern with BlackRock was the absence of any track record for the remaining management 
team.  Mr. Prell asked whether FIA had considered using more indexes as part of the reallocation and a 
discussion about the pros and cons of active versus passive management.  Mr. Kachmar noted that recent 
history showed success for indexing, added that indexing would and should remain a part of the allocation 
mix, and stated that given the cyclicality of the markets FIA believes that the markets are presenting 
opportunities for active management.   A discussion ensued concerning active and passive management, 
with Mr. Kachmar noting that the “active/passive considerations” material found on page 5 of the 
materials showed long-term opportunities for active management in all areas with the exception of large 
cap investments. 
 
Mr. Kelly made a motion to approve implement the re-allocation proposed by FIA which removes 
Black Rock Global Allocation Fund K and reallocates the funds as follows: 

• Increase target to international equity by 5% 
o Add 2.5% to Hartford International Opportunities Fund; 
o Add 0.5% to Templeton International Foreign Smaller Companies Fund; 
o Add 2% to Aberdeen Emerging Markets 

 



Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 
Minutes of Meeting – January 10, 2018 
Page 3 of 4 
 

• Increase target to domestic equity by 0.5% 
o Add 0.5% to Vanguard Institutional Index Fund 

• Increase target to fixed income by 4.5% 
o Add 1.25% each to Metropolitan West Total Return Fund and Western Asset Core 

Plus Bond fund 
o Add 2.5% to BlackRock Strategic Income Opportunities Fund 
o Decrease 0.5% to Templeton Global Bond Fund 

Mr. Goman seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Committee members requested that other recommendations for passive managers by considered by FIA 
on a going forward basis. 

 
VI. OPEB Trust 

a) Possible action on proposed active management of OPEB Trust and corresponding 
adjustments to OPEB Investment Policy Statement 

 
Mr. Kachmar stated that the OPEB Trust, at close to $15 million, had reached a size where it was 
reasonable to consider active management of the assets.  He also noted that the Fund was performing well 
and that there was no urgency to making a change to active management.  Mr. Cooke and Mr. Kimball 
requested that action on the agenda item be tabled pending completion of the transition to Town Manager 
given current staffing levels and the technical challenges associated with making a switch at this time.   
 
Mr. Prell made a motion that the agenda item be tabled pending completion of the transition to the 
Town Manager form of government.  Ms. Cook seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 

VII. Discussion re: interest rate assumptions for Defined Benefit plans and OPEB Trust 
 
The discussion was conducted during an earlier portion of the meeting. 
 

VIII. Defined Contribution Plan 
a)      Review of possible alternatives to Defined Contribution Plan investment options and 

possible action 
b)      Review of recordkeeping services 
c)      Review of plan demographics 

 
Mr. Polk reviewed the Fiduciary Governance Calendar found on p. 60 of the Executive Summary.  He 
focused on cyber security steps taken by recordkeepers to protect plans from fraud and distributed a 
MassMutual document entitled “Protecting Digital Assets Summary.”  He added that FIA is preparing a 
RFI seeking information from recordkeepers about security measures utilized to protect their customers.  
In addition, he is asking MassMutual to be prepared to discuss their approach to cyber security at the next 
Sub-Committee meeting. 
 
Mr. Polk continued with a review of demographic information, noting that the Town’s large account saw 
$650,000 in new contributions and $200,000 in roll-overs into the account, with more money going in 
than coming out, which is a positive trend.  He also noted that of the 138 current participants, 75 are 50 
years old or older. 
 
Mr. Polk noted that loan use, at 7 loans, was appropriate for the number of participants, and that the plan’s 
limitation to one active loan at a time was a proper practice. 



Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 
Minutes of Meeting – January 10, 2018 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
He also pointed out that 24% of the assets were in the 4% guaranteed account. 
 
The Committee discussed the advisability and feasibility of adding an opt-out feature which would place 
new employees in the 457 plan unless they chose to opt out.  Discussion ensued concerning whether or 
not this would be considered a subject for collective bargaining. 
 
Mr. Polk continued with a review of the balances in each account and a review of the managers, all of 
who were on “maintain” status. 
 

IX. Adjourn 
 
Mr. Prell made a motion to adjourn the meeting and Ms. Cook seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 8:55 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
 
 
Thomas F. Cooke 
Interim Director of Finance 



 

  Town of Simsbury 
 

933 HOPMEADOW STREET    SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
 

 

 

Telephone  (860) 658-3230 
Facsimile (860) 658-9467 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 
tcooke@simsbury-ct.gov 

www.simsbury-ct.gov 

8:30 – 7:00 Monday  
8:30 - 4:30  Tuesday through Thursday 

8:30 – 1:00 Friday 
 

 
Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 

Regular Meeting 
Minutes 

 
Wednesday, May 9, 2018 at 7:30am 

Board of Education Conference Room 
Simsbury Town Hall – 933 Hopmeadow Street 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:35 a.m. by  Sub-Committee members Chris Kelly, Cheryl 
Cook, and Phil Schulz were present.  Town and Board of Education staff members in attendance 
included Burke LaClair, School Business Manager; Maria Capriola, Town Manager; and Melissa 
Appleby, Deputy Town Manager.  Chris Kachmar and Tyler Polk were present for Fiduciary 
Investment Advisors, and Becky Sielman was present for Milliman. 

 
II. Review of Minutes 

a) Special Meeting, January 10, 2018 
 

This item was tabled. 
 

III. Review of Actuarial Valuations for General Government, Police, and Board of Education 
Retirement Income Plans  

 
Ms. Sielman reviewed a document entitled “Town of Simsbury – 2017 Pension Valuations,” noting 
that the July 1, 2017 valuations impact the Town’s FY18-19 budget.  In regards to plan assets, she 
indicated that FY16-17 was a strong year for market returns.  She noted that the funded ratio is 76% 
for the Board of Education plan, 78% for General Government and 84% for the Police.  She 
described the two major factors that drive the actuarial required contribution: market changes and 
the assumed rate of return.  The plans are anticipated to be fully funded within twenty years.   

 
Ms. Sielman spoke about the interest rate assumption for the plans, which is currently set at 7.00%.  
She said that using a 75-year time horizon, the expected rate of return for the plan is 6.59%.  
Therefore, her recommendation is to lower the interest rate assumption from 7.00% to 6.75% for the 
July 1, 2018 valuations.  The group discussed the anticipated budget impact of such a change, and 
asked Ms. Sielman to present a couple of scenarios for how the actuarial required contribution 
would change with different interest rate assumptions. She will provide rough estimates based on 
the current census, with more precise data to be presented at the November 14 meeting. 

 
 



Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 
Minutes of Meeting – May 9, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 

IV. Capital Markets Update 
 

Mr. Kachmar reviewed a document entitled “Town of Simsbury Retirement Plans – Executive 
Summary – First Quarter 2018” beginning with a market review.  Mr. Kachmar noted that the 
calendar year, there have been modest returns despite a growing global economy. He said that 
returns have been dampened by tariff discussions and other major headlines.   

 
V. Pensions Plans & OPEB Trust First Quarter 2018 Performance Reviews and Fiduciary 

Governance Update (Administrative Fee Review) 
 
Mr. Kachmar noted that the weighted average investment management fee is 0.55%, and that this 
cost is borne by the plans.  In addition, a custodial fee is paid to Wells Fargo and a consulting fee to 
FIA.  Mr. Kachmar provided an overview of the asset allocation and manager performance, and 
indicated that there are no recommended changes at this time.  Although Aberdeen is on “watch,” 
he expects this status to be removed in the near future. 
 
Mr. Kachmar stated that the assets in the OPEB Trust, held at Simsbury Bank, are indexed and not 
actively managed.  He said that although the fund is performing well, the discussion on whether to 
move to active management should be held in the near future.  The group decided to wait until a 
permanent Finance Director is hired to take action on this matter.   
 
Mr. Kachmar reviewed the letter sent by the State Treasurer in January, which indicated that we 
should review our banking relationship with Wells Fargo due to its Community Reinvestment Act 
rating of “Needs to Improve.”  As noted in the letter, no bank with this rating may receive public 
deposits.  Mr. Kachmar noted that the letter did not define “public deposits,” and that the legal 
opinion obtained from Robinson and Cole indicates that pension and OPEB funds are not 
considered public monies since they are held for the benefit of the retirees, not the municipality.  
Mr. Kachmar said FIA’s other municipal clients in Connecticut are not making a change based on 
this information, but that a few are issuing requests for proposals to see what alternatives may exist 
in the market.    
 

VI. Defined Contribution Plans First Quarter 2018 Performance Reviews and Fiduciary 
Governance Update (Administrative Fee Review) 

 
Mr. Polk provided the administrative fee review for the defined contribution plans. In particular he 
discussed the high cost of the General Account fund, which includes a guaranteed 4% return.  He 
noted that this drives the plan fees up such that they are almost double that of the average plan cost.  
The group discussed the possibility of making changes to this fund, such as reducing the guaranteed 
rate to 2% or 2.5%, which is more in line with the market.  Mr. Polk said that he can ask Mass 
Mutual for a comparison of fees based on various guaranteed return rates.   
 
Ms. Capriola said that it would be helpful if Mass Mutual would offer one-on-one educational 
sessions, especially if we are going to make a change to the General Account fund.    
 

VII. Wells Fargo Outlook 
 

This discussion was conducted during an earlier portion of the meeting. 
 

VIII. Adjourn 



Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 
Minutes of Meeting – May 9, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Mr. Kelly made a motion to adjourn the meeting and Ms. Cook seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 9:15 a.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Melissa Appleby 
Deputy Town Manager 



Town of Simsbury Other Post-Employment Benefits Program 09/05/2018
July 1, 2017 Valuation Summary of Results

2015 Results 
For Comparison

Baseline with 
No Changes

Updated Teachers 
Assumptions

Change 
Cost Method

Implement 5-Year 
Asset Smoothing

Lower Discount 
Rate #1

Lower Discount 
Rate #2

Teachers Assumptions Same as 2015 Same as 2015 Updated Updated Updated Updated Updated
Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Market Value Market Value Market Value Market Value 5 Year Smoothed 5 Year Smoothed 5 Year Smoothed
Discount Rate 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 6.75% 6.50%

Accrued Liability $18,371,550 $19,537,024 $19,407,220 $20,201,828 $20,201,828 $20,776,647 $21,376,185
Actuarial Value of Assets 12,285,779 $14,049,864 $14,049,864 $14,049,864 $13,795,779 $13,795,779 $13,795,779
Funded Ratio 66.9% 71.9% 72.4% 69.6% 68.3% 66.4% 64.5%
Unfunded Accrued Liability 6,085,771 5,487,160 5,357,356 6,151,964 6,406,049 6,980,868 7,580,406
Amortization Period 20 18 18 18 18 18 18
Amortization Growth Rate 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Past Service Cost 409,772                       398,473 389,047 446,750 465,202 497,964 531,052

Total Normal Cost 723,057 820,212 801,924 800,609 800,609 843,040 888,222
Employee Contributions 129,739 169,195 169,195 169,195 169,195 169,195 169,195
Net Normal Cost 593,318 651,017 632,729 631,414 631,414 673,845 719,027

Interest 70,217 73,464 71,524 75,471 76,763 79,097 81,255

Actuarially Determined Contribution 1,073,307 1,122,954 1,093,300 1,153,635 1,173,379 1,250,906 1,331,334
     Town 389,198 370,649 370,649 370,726 381,916 422,619 464,693
     BOE 684,109 752,305 722,651 782,909 791,463 828,287 866,641

Expected Benefit Payouts 1,026,815                    962,453 969,404 969,404 969,404 969,404 969,404
     Town 425,057                       434,568 434,568 434,568 434,568 434,568 434,568
     BOE 601,758                       527,885 534,836 534,836 534,836 534,836 534,836

Net Town Contribution to Trust 46,492                         160,501 123,896 184,231 203,975 281,502 361,930
     Town (35,859)                        (63,919) (63,919) (63,842) (52,652) (11,949) 30,125
     BOE 82,351                         224,420 187,815 248,073 256,627 293,451 331,805

This work product was prepared solely for the Town for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for other purposes. Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work. Milliman recommends that
third parties be aided by their own actuary or other qualified professional when reviewing the Milliman work product.





Town of Simsbury Retirement Plans 
Executive Summary - Second Quarter 2018

One Hundred Northfield Drive, Windsor, CT 06095   Toll Free:866.466.9412   www.fiallc.com



Save the Date - FIA 2018 Annual Conference
September 20 - 21, 2018, Hartford, CT

Overnight accommodations:
Hartford Marriott Downtown (860) 249-8000 
Mention the FIA Annual Conference for a discounted rate of $259 until 8/29/18
Formal invitation to follow

Keynote Speaker: 
Liz Ann Sonders

Senior VP & Chief Investment Strategist
Charles Schwab

Conference Reception 9/20/18 at 
The Mark Twain House & Museum

Cocktails, food stations, tours & 
entertainment!

Shuttle buses will be provided from 
the Hartford Marriott Downtown

Space is limited.

2



ǘƘŜ ŘŜŘ Ŏǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘκƻǊ Ŏ ǎǘƻŘƛŀƭ ŎƘŀǊƎŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŘ Ŏǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀƴ

Important Disclosure InformationΥ tŀǎǘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜƳŀȅ ƴƻǘ ōŜ ƛƴŘƛŎŀǘƛǾŜ
ƻŦ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎΦ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ŎƻƳǇƛƭŜŘ ǎƻƭŜƭȅ ōȅ
CƛŘǳŎƛŀǊȅ LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ !ŘǾƛǎƻǊǎΣ [[/Σ Ƙŀǎ ƴƻǘ ōŜŜƴ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘƭȅ ǾŜǊƛŦƛŜŘΣ
ŀƴŘ ŘƻŜǎ ƴƻǘ ǊŜŦƭŜŎǘ ǘƘŜ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻŦ ǘŀȄŜǎ ƻƴ ƴƻƴπǉǳŀƭƛŦƛŜŘ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘǎΦ Lƴ
ǇǊŜǇŀǊƛƴƎ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΣ CƛŘǳŎƛŀǊȅ LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ !ŘǾƛǎƻǊǎΣ [[/ Ƙŀǎ ǊŜƭƛŜŘ ǳǇƻƴ
ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘƛǊŘ ǇŀǊǘȅ ǎƻǳǊŎŜǎΦ ! ŎƻǇȅ ƻŦ ƻǳǊ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ
ǿǊƛǘǘŜƴ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƴƎ ƻǳǊ ŀŘǾƛǎƻǊȅ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŦŜŜǎ
ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜǎ ǘƻ ǊŜƳŀƛƴ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ȅƻǳǊ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ǳǇƻƴ ǊŜǉǳŜǎǘΦ IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ
ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ŦƻǊ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƛƴŘƛŎŜǎ ŀƴŘκƻǊ ŎŀǘŜƎƻǊƛŜǎ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ
ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ŦƻǊ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭ ŎƻƳǇŀǊƛǎƻƴ ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜǎ ƻƴƭȅΣ ŀƴŘ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭƭȅ Řƻ ƴƻǘ ǊŜŦƭŜŎǘ
ǘƘŜ ŘŜŘǳŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘκƻǊ ŎǳǎǘƻŘƛŀƭ ŎƘŀǊƎŜǎΣ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŘǳŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀƴ
ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŦŜŜΣ ƴƻǊ ǘƘŜ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻŦ ǘŀȄŜǎΣ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŎǳǊǊŜƴŎŜ ƻŦ
ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿƻǳƭŘ ƘŀǾŜ ǘƘŜ ŜŦŦŜŎǘ ƻŦ ŘŜŎǊŜŀǎƛƴƎ ƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎΦ Lǘ
ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ƴƻǘ ōŜ ŀǎǎǳƳŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ȅƻǳǊ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘ ƘƻƭŘƛƴƎǎ ŎƻǊǊŜǎǇƻƴŘ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƭȅ ǘƻ
ŀƴȅ ŎƻƳǇŀǊŀǘƛǾŜ ƛƴŘƛŎŜǎΦ

3



Table of Contents

Capital Markets Overview{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ м

Pension Plans Review{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ н

OPEB Review{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ о

DC Plan Review{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ п

4



$2 

$3 

$8 

$13 

$37 

$85 

$137 

$314 

$435 

$299 

$506 

$2,400 

WŀǇŀƴ

aŜȄƛŎƻ

9ǳǊƻǇŜŀƴ Unƛƻƴ

/ŀƴŀŘŀ

/Ƙƛƴŀ

¢ƻǘŀƭ

U.S. Imports and Tariffs ōy Country όϷ.ύ

нлмт IƳǇƻǊǘǎ

нлму Tariffs EnŀŎǘŜŘ

The Washington Post, U.S. Census Bureau, Peterson Institute for International Economics, 
FactSet, Heather Long and Christopher Ingraham, "The Trump Tariff Tracker: How severe is the 
pain," The Washington Post, July 6, 2018.

aŀǊƪet RŜǾƛŜǿ

1M3M6M1Y 2Y 3Y 4Y 5Y 7Y 10Y 30Y
0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

FactSet, U.S. Treasury

United States Treasury Yield Curve

06/29/2018 - Yield
03/30/2018 - Yield
06/30/2017 - Yield

¦ΦS. ¢ǊŜŀǎury /ǳǊǾe   
3m        нȅǊ        5yr       млȅǊ     олȅǊ

06/29/18    1.93      2.52      2.73      2.85      2.фу
03/30/18    1.73      2.27      2.56      2.74      2.фт
06/30/17    1.03      1.38      1.89      2.31      2.уп

Enacted tariffs ƛn 
нлму ŀŎŎƻunt Ŧor 
only 3.6% of total 
нлмт ƛƳǇƻǊǘǎΦ

Yield Curve Inversion and Market tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ

Inversion Date

Next 
12M weturn 
S&P рлл

Next 
12M weturn 
Barclays Agg

Recession 
{ǘŀǊǘ

Months 
Inversion to 
wŜŎŜǎǎƛƻƴ

уκмуκту уΦур сΦст Feb‐80 му

фκмнκул рΦпм ‐3Φрс !ug‐8м мм

мнκмоκуу омΦст мпΦсн Aug‐90 нл

рκнсκфу мтΦол рΦпл !ǇǊ‐лм ор

мκомκлс моΦол пΦлр Wŀn‐08 нп
Average 15.30 5.44 ‐ 22

FactSet, Federal Reserve, BEA, Morningstar. Inversion based on the 
spread between the 10‐Year Treasury yield and 2‐Year Treasury 
yield.

wŜŎŜƴǘ Řŀǘŀ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǎȅƴŎƘǊƻƴƛȊŜŘ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ ǘƘŀǘ
ǎǳǎǘŀƛƴŜŘ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅ ŜŀǊƴƛƴƎǎ ŦƻǊ ƳǳŎƘ ƻŦ
ƭŀǎǘ ȅŜŀǊ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ŀōŀǘƛƴƎΣ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ŘƛǎǇŀǊƛǘȅ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŀƴŘ
ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŜǎ Ƙŀǎ ǿƛŘŜƴŜŘΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ƎŀǇ ŎƻǳƭŘ
ǳƭǘƛƳŀǘŜƭȅ ǇǊƻǾŜ ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ŀ ƎǊŜŀǘŜǊ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘǊŀŘŜ ǘƘŀƴ ǘƘŜ
ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƛƴƎ ŎƻƴŦƭƛŎǘ ŀƳƻƴƎ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{ΦΣ /ƘƛƴŀΣ ŀƴŘ ƻǘƘŜǊ ƳŀƧƻǊ
Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŜǎΦ

¢ƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŀƴŘ /Ƙƛƴŀ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜ ǘƻ ŜƴƎŀƎŜ ƛƴ ŀ ǎǘŀƴŘƻŦŦ ƳŀǊƪŜŘ ōȅ
ǊŜǘŀƭƛŀǘƻǊȅ ǘŀǊƛŦŦǎΦ !ƭǘƘƻǳƎƘ ƳƻŘŜǎǘ ƛƴ ǎŎŀƭŜ ǘƻ ŘŀǘŜΣ ǘƘƛǎ
ƛƳǇŀǎǎŜ Ƙŀǎ ƘŀŘ ǘƘŜ ƛƳƳŜŘƛŀǘŜ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻŦ ǘŜǎǘƛƴƎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊǎΩ
ŎƻƴǾƛŎǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘΣ ƭƻƴƎŜǊ ǘŜǊƳΣ ŎƻǳƭŘ ǇǊƻǾŜ ŘŜǘǊƛƳŜƴǘŀƭ ǘƻ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ
ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ ƎǊƻǿǘƘΦ

¦Φ{Φ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴŜŘ ŀ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŀŘǾŀƴǘŀƎŜ
ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŎƻǳƴǘŜǊǇŀǊǘǎ ǘƘƛǎ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΣ ŘǊƛǾŜƴ
ǇǊƛƳŀǊƛƭȅ ōȅ ŀ ǊŜǎƛƭƛŜƴǘ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ŜŀǊƴƛƴƎǎ ƭŀƴŘǎŎŀǇŜΦ {Ƴŀƭƭ
ŎŀǇǎ ƻǳǘǇŀŎŜŘ ƭŀǊƎŜ ŎŀǇǎ ōȅ ŀ ǿƛŘŜ ƳŀǊƎƛƴ ŀǎ Ƴǳƭǘƛƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ
ƭŀǊƎŜ ŎŀǇ ŎƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ǘƻ ōŜ ŎƘŀƭƭŜƴƎŜŘ ōȅ ƘŜŀŘǿƛƴŘǎ
ǿƛǘƴŜǎǎŜŘ ƻǳǘǎƛŘŜ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ²ƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{ΦΣ ƎǊƻǿǘƘκǾŀƭǳŜ
ƭŜŀŘŜǊǎƘƛǇ ǿŀǎ ƳƛȄŜŘΤ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ ƭŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǊƎŜ ŎŀǇ ŀǊŜƴŀ ǿƘƛƭŜ
ǾŀƭǳŜ ƭŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŎƘŀǊƎŜ Řƻǿƴ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭƛȊŀǘƛƻƴ ǎǇŜŎǘǊǳƳΦ

LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƭŀǊƎŜƭȅ ƛƴ ŀ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘƛƴƎ ƳƻŘŜ
ǘƘƛǎ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ƭƻƻƳƛƴƎ ǇǊƻǎǇŜŎǘǎ ŦƻǊ ŀ ǘǊŀŘŜ ǿŀǊΣ ǎƭƻǿƛƴƎ
ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ ƎǊƻǿǘƘΣ ŀƴŘ ŀ ǎǘǊŜƴƎǘƘŜƴƛƴƎ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊ ǇǊŜǎǎǳǊŜŘ
Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ƻǾŜǊǎŜŀǎΦ

CƛȄŜŘ ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎΣ ŎƻƴŦǊƻƴǘŜŘ ōȅ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜǎΣ
ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭƭȅ ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜŘ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎΣ ŀǎ ƳŀǊƪŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ
.ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ LƴŘŜȄΩǎ ŘŜŎƭƛƴŜ ƻŦ
лΦн҈Φ ¢ƘŜ ȅƛŜƭŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ мл‐ȅŜŀǊ ¦Φ{Φ ¢ǊŜŀǎǳǊȅ ōǊƛŜŦƭȅ ōǊƻƪŜ
ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǘƘŜ оΦл҈ ōŀǊǊƛŜǊ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ōŜŦƻǊŜ ǎŜǘǘƭƛƴƎ ŀǘ
нΦур҈Σ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ǎǇǊŜŀŘ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ мл‐year ŀƴŘ 2‐year ƴƻǘŜǎ
ŜƴŘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ŀǘ ŀ post‐crisis ƭƻǿ ƻŦ оо ōŀǎƛǎ ǇƻƛƴǘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ
¦Φ{Φ CŜŘŜǊŀƭ wŜǎŜǊǾŜ ǊŀƛǎŜŘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ǘŀǊƎŜǘ ǊŀǘŜ ŀƴƻǘƘŜǊ нр ōŀǎƛǎ
Ǉƻƛƴǘǎ ƛƴ WǳƴŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀŎƪ ƻŦ ŦŀǾƻǊŀōƭŜ ¦Φ{Φ ƎǊƻǿǘƘΣ ŦƛǊƳƛƴƎ
ƛƴŦƭŀǘƛƻƴΣ ŀƴŘ ƭƻǿ ǳƴŜƳǇƭƻȅƳŜƴǘΦ

/ƻƳƳƻŘƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎŜŘ ƳƻŘŜǎǘƭȅ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΣ ƭŜŘ ōȅ
.ǊŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ²¢L /ǊǳŘŜ hƛƭΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ōƻǘƘ ǘƻǳŎƘŜŘ ǘƘǊŜŜ‐ȅŜŀǊ ƘƛƎƘǎ
ŀŦǘŜǊ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ мсΦто҈ ŀƴŘ моΦно҈Σ ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘƛǾŜƭȅΦ ¢ƘǊŜŀǘǎ ǘƻ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ
ǎǳǇǇƭȅΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǇƻǘŜƴǘƛŀƭ ¦Φ{Φ ƎƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘ ƛƳǇƻǎŜŘ ǎŀƴŎǘƛƻƴǎ
ƻƴ LǊŀƴΣ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ ŀƴŘ ƎŜƻǇƻƭƛǘƛŎŀƭ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴǎ ƛƴ ±ŜƴŜȊǳŜƭŀΣ ŀƴŘ
ŀ ƎǊŜŀǘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ŀƴǘƛŎƛǇŀǘŜŘ ŘǊƻǇ ƛƴ ¦Φ{Φ ŎǊǳŘŜ ƛƴǾŜƴǘƻǊȅΣ ǿŜǊŜ
ǘƘŜ ǇǊƛƳŀǊȅ ŘǊƛǾŜǊǎ ōŜƘƛƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŀŘǾŀƴŎŜ ƛƴ ƻƛƭ ǇǊƛŎŜǎΦ

A ǊŜŀŘing ŀōƻǾe zero ƛƴŘƛŎŀtes economic 
data ƛs being reported above ŜȄǇŜŎǘŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ

5



LƴŘŜx RŜǎǳƭǘǎ

¦Φ{Φ 9v¦L¢¸ v¦!w¢9w ¸¢5 м ¸9!w о ¸9!w р ¸9!w мл ¸9!w
{ϧt рлл  оΦп нΦс мпΦп ммΦф моΦп млΦн
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  мллл оΦс нΦф мпΦр ммΦс моΦп млΦн
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  млл0 ±ŀƭǳŜ  мΦн όмΦтύ сΦу уΦо млΦо уΦр
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  млл0 DǊƻǿǘƘ  рΦу тΦо ннΦр мрΦл мсΦп ммΦу
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  aƛŘ /ŀǇ  нΦу нΦо мнΦо фΦс мнΦн млΦн
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  MƛŘ CaǇ VŀƭǳŜ  нΦп όлΦнύ тΦс уΦу ммΦо млΦм
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  aƛŘ /ŀǇ DǊƻǿǘƘ  оΦн рΦп муΦр млΦт моΦп млΦр
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  нлл0  тΦу тΦт мтΦс ммΦл мнΦр млΦс
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  нлл0 ±ŀƭǳŜ  уΦо рΦп моΦм ммΦн ммΦн фΦф
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  нлл0 DǊƻǿǘƘ тΦн фΦт нмΦф млΦс моΦс ммΦн
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ  олл0  оΦф оΦн мпΦу ммΦс моΦо млΦн
C¢{9 b!w9LT 9ǉǳƛǘȅ w9L¢ǎ  LƴŘŜȄ млΦл мΦл оΦр уΦм уΦо тΦф

Lb¢9wb!¢Lhb![ 9v¦L¢¸ v¦!w¢9w ¸¢5 м ¸9!w о ¸9!w р ¸9!w мл Y9!w
a{/L A/²L ŜȄ‐US  όнΦсύ όоΦуύ тΦо рΦм сΦл нΦр
a{/L 9!C9  όмΦнύ όнΦтύ сΦу пΦф сΦп нΦу
a{/L 9!C9 ±ŀƭǳŜ όнΦсύ όпΦсύ пΦо оΦо рΦп нΦн
a{/L 9!C9 DǊƻǿǘƘ лΦм όлΦфύ фΦп сΦп тΦп оΦр
a{/L 9!C9 {Ƴŀƭƭ  /ŀǇ όмΦсύ όмΦоύ мнΦп млΦм ммΦо сΦу
a{/L 9M ό9ƳŜǊƎƛƴg aŀǊƪŜǘǎύ όуΦлύ όсΦтύ уΦн рΦс рΦл нΦо

CL·95 Lb/ha9 v¦!w¢9w ¸¢5 м ¸9!w о ¸9!w р ¸9!w мл ¸9!w
.ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘe .ƻƴŘ όлΦнύ όмΦсύ όлΦпύ мΦт нΦо оΦт
.ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ DƻǾκ/ǊŜŘƛǘ .ƻƴŘ όлΦоύ όмΦфύ όлΦсύ мΦу нΦо оΦу
.ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ  DƻǾκ/ǊŜŘƛǘ [ƻƴƎ .ƻƴŘ όмΦпύ όрΦлύ όлΦуύ пΦо рΦм сΦу
.ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ /ƻǊǇ IƛƎƘ ¸ƛŜƭŘ мΦл лΦн нΦс рΦр рΦр уΦн
.ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ aǳƴƛŎƛǇŀƭ  .ƻƴŘ лΦф όлΦнύ мΦс нΦф оΦр пΦп
.ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ ¢Lt{ лΦу όлΦлύ нΦм мΦф мΦт оΦл
.ƻŦ! MŜǊǊƛƭ ƭ  о‐aƻƴǘƘ T‐.ƛƭ ƭ лΦр лΦу мΦп лΦт лΦп лΦп

bhb‐¢w!5L¢Lhb![ v¦!w¢9w ¸¢5 м ¸9!w о ¸9!w р ¸9!w мл ¸9!w
.ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ /ƻƳƳƻŘƛǘȅ LƴŘŜȄ лΦп όлΦлύ тΦо όпΦрύ όсΦпύ όфΦлύ
ICwL Cǳƴd ƻŦ CǳƴŘǎ LƴŘŜȄ лΦф мΦм рΦс нΦм оΦс мΦп
b/w9LC tǊƻǇŜǊǘy LƴŘŜȄ (03/31/2018) мΦт мΦт тΦм уΦт млΦл сΦм
/tL  (03/31/2018) лΦс лΦс нΦп мΦф мΦп мΦс

Sources: aorningstar 5irect, {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ ϧ toor’s, Russell, FTSE, MSCI, Barclays /apital, BofA Merrill Lynch, Bloomberg, HFRI, b/w9LCΦ Data ŀs of 6/30κнлму unless otherwise ƴƻǘŜŘΦ
6



±ŀƭǳŜ .ƭŜƴŘ DǊƻǿǘƘ ±ŀƭǳŜ .ƭŜƴŘ DǊƻǿǘƘ

мΦн оΦс рΦу [ŀǊƎŜ сΦу мпΦр ннΦр

нΦп нΦу оΦн aƛŘ тΦс мнΦо муΦр

уΦо тΦу тΦн {Ƴŀƭƭ моΦм мтΦс нмΦф

{Ƴŀƭƭ aƛŘ [ŀǊƎŜ {Ƴŀƭƭ aƛŘ [ŀǊƎŜ

‐мΦс ‐лΦф ‐мΦо 5ŜǾ мнΦп фΦм сΦн

‐уΦс ‐тΦу ‐уΦл 9a рΦс тΦн уΦо

{ƘƻǊǘ LƴǘŜǊƳ [ƻƴƎ {ƘƻǊǘ LƴǘŜǊƳ [ƻƴƎ

лΦн лΦм лΦо DƻǾϥǘ лΦл ‐лΦт ‐лΦм

лΦр ‐лΦм ‐нΦу /ƻǊǇ лΦс ‐лΦп ‐мΦт

v¢w м‐¸ŜŀǊ

v¢w м‐¸ŜŀǊ
¦ΦS. 9ǉǳƛǘȅ {ƛȊŜ ŀnd {ǘȅƭŜ wŜǘǳǊƴǎ

LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ {ƛȊŜ ŀnd wŜƎƛon wŜǘǳǊns ό¦{5ύ
v¢w м‐¸ŜŀǊ

CƛȄŜd LƴŎƻƳŜ ¢ŜǊƳ ŀnd vǳŀƭƛǘy wŜǘǳǊƴǎ ό¦{5ύ

9quity & Fixed Income RŜǾƛŜǿ

Sources: aorningstar 5irect, CŀŎǘ{et, Standard ϧ toor’s, wǳǎǎŜƭl, MSCI, .ŀǊŎƭays Capital, /ƛǘigroup, BofA Merrill Lynch, /ǊŜŘƛt SuƛǎǎŜ, JtaƻǊƎŀƴΦ 5ŀta ŀǎ of JǳƴŜ 3лΣ н018 ǳƴƭŜǎǎ ƻǘƘŜǊǿƛǎe 
noted.  The performance grids ŀōove are based on select wǳǎǎŜƭƭ, MSCI ŀnd .ŀǊŎlays /apital ƛƴŘŜȄŜǎΦ

A favorable economic backdrop led domestic equities to reverse course during the second quarter and
brought returns for the year into positive territory. Tensions around trade tariffs helped push small‐cap
stocks ahead of their large‐cap counterparts, as these companies are generally less dependent on trade
overseas. The disparity between growth stocks and value stocks largely continued during the quarter as
growth, for the most part, outpaced value.

Both international developed and emerging market equities produced negative results in the quarter, with
developed markets faring better than emerging. The bulk of the negative returns on the developed side
came from a rising U.S. dollar, as results denominated in local currencies were modestly positive in many
countries. The stronger dollar, coupled with geopolitical tensions and talks of trade wars, also put negative
pressure on many emerging regions, including Brazil, Russia, and China.

уΦн

‐1Φр

моΦр

‐3Φн

оΦм

‐3Φн

тΦм

нΦс
сΦм

‐0Φф

оΦт оΦп

ноΦс

‐3Φф

нмΦл

фΦс
тΦм рΦо

омΦо

фΦф

рΦл
мΦп оΦп

мпΦп

‐млΦл

‐5Φл

лΦл

рΦл

млΦл

мрΦл

нлΦл

нрΦл

олΦл

орΦл

/ƻƴǎΦ
5ƛǎŎΦ

/ƻƴǎΦ
{ǘŀǇƭŜǎ

9ƴŜǊƎȅ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭǎ IŜŀƭǘƘ
/ŀǊŜ

LƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŀƭǎ LƴŦƻΦ
¢ŜŎƘΦ

aŀǘŜǊƛŀƭǎ wŜŀƭ
9ǎǘŀǘŜ

¢ŜƭŜŎƻƳΦ ¦ǘƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ {ϧt рлл

{ϧt рл0 {ŜŎǘƻǊ wŜǘǳǊƴǎ

v¢w 1‐ȅŜŀǊ

фΦп
пΦф

мΦн мΦн

‐1пΦу

мΦн
пΦп

‐3Φр

нΦф

‐0Φр
‐4Φл ‐2Φу

‐2сΦп

‐6Φл

‐0Φс
‐3Φр

‐3лΦл

‐2рΦл

‐2лΦл

‐1рΦл

‐1лΦл

‐5Φл

лΦл

рΦл

млΦл

мрΦл

¦ƴƛǘŜŘ
YƛƴƎŘƻƳ

CǊŀƴŎŜ DŜǊƳŀƴȅ WŀǇŀƴ .ǊŀȊƛƭ wǳǎǎƛŀ LƴŘƛŀ /Ƙƛƴŀ

a{/L /ƻǳƴǘǊȅ wŜǎǳƭǘǎ нv нлму

[ƻŎŀƭ ¦{5

‐0Φн ‐0Φо

мΦл лΦф лΦу лΦр

‐3Φп

лΦу

‐4Φм

‐0Φп ‐0Φс

нΦс
мΦс нΦм

мΦп мΦф

пΦт

‐4Φо

оΦо оΦн

сΦт

нΦт оΦл
мΦу мΦр

сΦф

‐6Φл

‐4Φл

‐2Φл

лΦл

нΦл

пΦл

сΦл

уΦл

./  !ƎƎ ./  DƻǾκ/ǊŘ ./  ¦{ /ƻǊ I¸ ./  aǳƴƛ ./  ¦{ ¢Lt{ a[ оa ¢‐.ƛƭƭ C¢{9 ²D.L /{ [ŜǾ [ƻŀƴ Wta 9a.LҌ

CƛȄŜd LƴŎƻƳŜ wŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŀƴŘ ¸ƛŜƭŘǎ ό҈ύ

v¢w 1‐¸ŜŀǊ ¸ƛŜƭŘ

Strong economic conditions, firming inflation, and the Federal Reserve’s decision to raise their policy rate
pushed interest rates higher during the quarter, and the yield curve flattened. Despite a flattening yield
curve, shorter dated bonds were able to produce positive returns as higher yields are providing a cushion
to negative price movements. Investment grade corporate bonds saw negative results as credit spreads
widened on the back of increased issuance and reduced foreign demand.

7



9quity MarkŜt RŜǾƛŜǿ

‐6

‐4

‐2

л

н

п

с

у

мл

уууффлфмфнфофпфрфсфтфуффлллмлнлолплрлслтлулфмлмммнмомпмрмсмт

Russell 3000 Value ‐ wussell 3000 Growth 
10‐Year wolling Relative tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ

MPI Stylus. Data from 12/31/1988 – 6/30/2018. Data is 10‐year rolling annualized performance with 
a quarterly step.

Value outperforms

Growth ƻǳǘǇŜǊŦƻǊƳǎ

¸¢5 1‐YeaǊ
wо000 DǊ:       тΦп҈       2нΦр҈
wо000 ±ŀƭ:    ‐мΦн҈         тΦо҈

8



CƛȄŜd Incƻme RŜǾƛŜǿ

9



aŀǊƪet Viewpoinǘǎ

These viewpoints represent FIA’s general assessment of the highlighted capital markets comparisons over the next 18 months. These opinions are subject to modification as conditions in 
the markets or forecasting periods change. Clients should utilize these rankings in conjunction with other considerations that may be relevant to their particular circumstances.

wŀǘƛƻƴŀƭŜAsset !ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ
Fixed Income Neutral Equity

9ǉǳƛǘȅ
Domestic Neutral International

Fixed LƴŎƻƳŜ
Treasuries Neutral Credit

Int’l Developed Neutral Emerging Mkts

Domestic Value Neutral Domestic Growth

Domestic Large Cap Neutral Domestic Small Cap

Short Duration Neutral Long Duration

Valuations ǎtill inform our Ǉreference for equities Ǌelative to fixed ƛncome. Corporate Ŝarnings 
continue to show ǎigns ƻf strength, and the economic backdrop, especially in the U.S., is marginally 
supportive of risk assets ƻver the near ǘerm. Despite Ƙigher yields, interest rates Ǌemain low on ŀ 
historic ōasis.  Given the current Ǌate environment alongside increasing inflation, ǿe remain reticent 
to increase our outlook for fixed income returns.  

The synchronized Ǝlobal growth ǎtory ǘhat was playing out early in the year Ƙas ǎtarted ǘo decouple 
somewhat, and the U.S. ƛs showing signs of more stable Ǝrowth Ŏompared to areas ŀōǊƻŀŘΦ  While 
valuations Ŏontinue to be more aǘǘǊŀŎtive ƻverseas relative to the U.S., we Ƙave moved to a ƴeutral 
stance ŀs stagnating Ŝconomic fundamentals overseas ǎomewhat ǘŜmper ǘhe attractive Ǿaluations. 

Growth ǎtocks generally continued to outperform value stocks Řǳring the quarter. We adhere ǘo the 
premise that ǘhere is potential for mean reversion and for value stocks ǘo meaningfully Ǌecover 
relative to their growth ŎƻǳƴǘŜǊǇŀǊǘǎΦ {elect valuation measures further support ǘhe slight 
preference for Ǿalue. 

Valuations ƛn emerging markets Ǌemain attractive ƻn a relative basis, but growing Ǝeopolitical 
tensions, uncertainty ŀround trade policy, and a rising U.S. Řƻllar give us immediate pause. !s a 
result, we Ǌemain neutral in our Řeveloped Ǿersus emerging ƳŀǊƪets positioning. 

Credit spreads ǿidened further in the quarter but still remain near Ǉost crisis ƭows, ƻffering less 
ŀǘǘǊŀŎtive Ŏompensation above Treasuries. Stronger ¦.S. growth and corporate fundamentals may 
stabilize spreads at ǘhese levels. However, we ŀcknowledge ǘƘŀǘ ǿe are in the late innings of the 
cycle, and financial conditions are tightening. These factors ŀre ǘhe sources Ŧor our ƴŜǳǘǊŀƭƛǘȅΦ

Interest Ǌates Ŏontinued to push higher during the quarter. 5Ŝǎpite higher rates, ƭevels still remain 
low relative to history. CƛǊƳƛƴƎ inflation, strong Ǝrowth in the U.S., and a Federal Reserve that is 
indicating tighter policy could serve ǘo stoke higher rates ǎǘƛƭƭΦ

Small‐cap stocks Ƙave begun to close ǘhe performance ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴǘƛal Ǌelative to ƭarge‐cap ǎtocks and 
valuations, on a Ǌelative basis, Řo not particularly Ŧavor ƻne segment over the other. As such, ǿe 
remain neutral in our domestic market capitalization ǇǊŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜΦ

10



Simsbury Defined Benefit Pension Plans 
Executive Summary - Second Quarter 2018

One Hundred Northfield Drive, Windsor, CT 06095   Toll Free:866.466.9412   www.fiallc.com 11



Table of Contents

Fiduciary Governance Calendar

Pension Portfolio Updates

Section 1

Section 2

2Q Portfolio and Manager ReviewSection 3

12



2nd Quarter: Practice & Policy Focus
 Investment review
 Investment policy statement review
 Legislative update

3rd Quarter: Asset/Liability Focus
 Investment review
 Annual actuarial review* 
 Asset Allocation review

4th Quarter: Pension Landscape
 Investment review
 Pension landscape update
 Market environment overview

1st Quarter: Fee Focus
 Investment review
 Administrative fee review
 Portfolio expense analysis

* Timing of actuarial and liability review dependent on client’s individual plan and /or fiscal year and actuarial input.

Defined Benefit
Fiduciary Governance Calendar

13



An Investment Policy Statement provides the first step in establishing the FIDUCIARY TRAIL™.

• A well-written IPS is broad enough to allow flexibility, but detailed enough to provide appropriate oversight.

• The essential components of an effective IPS are outlined below:

Component
Included in Town of Simsbury Investment 

Policy Statement?

Contains the detail to define, implement and manage a specific 
investment strategy. Yes

Defines the duties and responsibilities of all parties involved. Yes

Defines diversification and rebalancing guidelines consistent with the 
client’s risk profile and time horizon. Yes

Defines due diligence criteria for selecting investment options. Yes

Defines monitoring criteria for investment options. Yes

Investment Policy Statement Considerations

The most recent IPS on file for the Town of Simsbury Pension Fund. The body and the Appendix A of the IPS are as of May 2015. In 
January 2018, the BlackRock Global Allocation Fund was terminated from the portfolio as recommended by FIA. Therefore, FIA 
recommends updating the Asset Allocation Table in Appendix A to reflect this portfolio change and a draft for approval and 
signature can be found in the following pages.

14



Town of Simsbury Pension Plans  page 1 
 

 
 
 
 

TOWN OF SIMSBURY 
 
 
 
 

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 
 
 
 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 
 
 
 

November 2012 
As Amended – May 20, 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



Town of Simsbury Pension Plans  page 2 
 

Introduction & Purpose 

The TOWN OF SIMSBURY DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (the “Plans”) have been 
established to provide retirement benefits to those individuals eligible to receive them.  
This policy statement outlines the goals and investment objectives for the Plans. This 
document is intended to provide guidelines for managing the Plans, and to outline 
specific investment policies that will govern how those goals are to be achieved. This 
statement: 

• Describes the investment objectives of the Plans; 
• Defines the responsibilities of the Pension Committee (“Committee”) and other 

parties responsible for the management of the Plans; 
• Establishes investment guidelines regarding the selection of investment 

managers and diversification of assets; 
• Specifies the criteria for evaluating the performance of the investment managers 

and of the Plans as a whole.  

Investment Objective 

The Plans’ assets shall be invested in accordance with sound investment practices that 
emphasize long-term investment fundamentals. In establishing the investment 
objectives of the Plans, the Committee has taken into account the financial needs and 
circumstances of the Town of Simsbury, the time horizon available for investment, the 
nature of the Plans’ cash flows and liabilities, and other factors that affect their risk 
tolerance. Consistent with this, the Committee has determined that the investment of 
these assets shall be guided by the following underlying goals: 

• To achieve the stated actuarial target of the Plans; 
• To maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the obligations of the Plans; 
• To diversify the assets of the Plans in order to reduce risk;  
• To achieve investment results over the long-term that compare favorably with 

those of other pension plans, professionally managed portfolios and of 
appropriate market indexes.  

Assignment of Responsibilities 
 
Pension Committee – The Pension Committee is charged with the responsibility of 
overseeing the assets of the Plans.  To that end, the Committee’s responsibilities 
include:  establishing and maintaining the Plans’ investment policy, objectives and 
portfolio guidelines with respect to asset allocation, risk parameters, and return 
evaluation and for specific interpretation of said investment policy, as well as selecting 
the investment vehicles, and periodically monitoring the performance of investments. 
The Committee, however, may establish rules or other resolutions governing its 
investment policy and may delegate the authority to act on its behalf to certain 
members or agents (such as the First Selectman, the Director of Finance, or designated 
Sub-Committees).  The Committee will meet periodically.  The Committee shall 

16



Town of Simsbury Pension Plans  page 3 
 

discharge its duties with the care, skill, prudence and diligence appropriate to the 
circumstances then prevailing.  The Committee recognizes that some risk must be 
assumed to achieve the Plans’ long-term investment objectives.   
 
The Committee and/or its designees are directed to: 
 

1. Oversee compliance by the investment manager(s) with the investment policy; 
2. Evaluate the performance of the investment manager(s) against specific 

investment objectives; 
3. Approve fee schedules of the investment manager(s) based on contractual 

agreements; 
4. Select the investment custodian(s); and, 
5. Approve the continuation of business relationships with investment manager(s), 

custodian(s), and other vendors, if any. 
 
Investment Consultant – The Committee will engage the services of an Investment 
Consultant.  The Investment Consultant’s role is that of a non-discretionary advisor to 
the Committee.  The Investment Consultant will assist in the development and periodic 
review of an Investment Policy Statement and the Plans’ asset allocation, conduct 
manager searches when necessary, monitor the performance of the managers/funds, 
and communicate on other matters of relevance to the oversight of the Plans. 
 
Custodian – The Custodian is responsible for the safekeeping and custody of assets.  The 
Custodian will physically (or through agreement with a sub-custodian) maintain 
possession of securities owned by the Plans, collect dividends and interest payments, 
redeem maturing securities, and effect receipt and delivery following purchases and 
sales.  The Custodian may also perform regular accounting of all assets owned, 
purchased, or sold, as well as movement of assets into and out of the Plans accounts 
(for example, to accommodate distribution needs). 
 

Asset Allocation 
 
The asset allocation target ranges set forth in Appendix A represent a long-term view.  
Short-term market volatility may cause the asset mix to fall outside the targeted range.  
 

Rebalancing 
 
The Committee, at its discretion, may or may not institute rebalancing as necessary.  
Such adjustments should be executed with consideration to turnover, transaction costs, 
and realized losses over the long term.  The necessity to rebalance will be reviewed 
periodically. 
 
 
 
 

17



Town of Simsbury Pension Plans  page 4 
 

Selection Criteria for Investment Managers 

Investment managers/funds retained by the Plans shall be chosen using various criteria, 
including but not limited to the following: 

• Past results, considered relative to appropriate indexes and other investments 
having similar investment objectives.  Consideration shall be given to both 
consistency of performance and the level of risk taken to achieve results;  

• The investment style and discipline of the investment manager;  
• How well the manager’s investment style or approach complements other assets 

in the Plans;  
• Level of experience, personnel turnover, financial resources, and staffing levels 

of the investment management firm or fund.  

The Plans will utilize a multi-manager structure of complementary investment styles 
and asset classes to invest the Plans’ assets. 

The Investment Consultant is additionally tasked with regular oversight of the roster of 
investment managers deployed on the Plans’ behalf.  The motivation for this effort is 
to ensure that the managers continue to administer their portfolios in a manner 
consistent with the overall approaches and qualifications that appealed to the 
Committee initially and that anomalies and deviations from these approaches and 
qualifications are identified and addressed.  When deemed necessary, the Investment 
Consultant will provide other manager candidates for the Committee’s consideration. 

Should additional contributions and/or market value growth permit, the Committee 
may retain additional investment managers to invest the assets of the Plans. Additional 
managers would be expected to diversify the Plans by investment style, asset class, and 
management structure and thereby enhance the probability of the Plans achieving its 
long-term investment objectives. 

Securities Guidelines 
 
The Plans’ investments may include separately managed accounts and/or mutual 
funds/co-mingled funds, including marketable and non-marketable alternatives and 
exchange traded funds.  The Committee understands that managers have full 
responsibility for security selection, diversification, turnover and allocation of holdings 
among selected securities and industry groups, as particularly detailed in the 
Investment Policy Statement of each of the Plans’ separately managed accounts or in 
the prospectus/offering memorandum for each mutual fund/co-mingled fund/exchange 
traded fund in the portfolio.  No securities will be purchased, or carried, on margin.   
 
With respect to mutual/co-mingled funds, the Committee will consider the following to 
insure proper diversification and function for each of the funds: 
 

18



Town of Simsbury Pension Plans  page 5 
 

1. The mutual fund/co-mingled pool organizations selected should demonstrate:     (a) 
a clearly defined investment philosophy; (b) a consistent investment process; (c) an 
experienced and stable organization; and (d) cost-effectiveness.  

 
2. The mutual fund/co-mingled pool used will generally have at least a full three-year 

track record, or its equivalent, and the individual fund/pool must have at least $25 
million under management (or, as an organization, $100 million in the same 
strategy) at the time of selection. 

 
3. Each mutual fund/co-mingled pool will be regularly evaluated for proper diversity 

and each will provide material information on a timely basis. 
 
4. With respect to hedge fund-of-funds, in addition to meeting each of the three above-

specified criteria, each fund-of-funds will include an appropriate number of hedge 
fund managers to be considered well diversified.  Investment strategies in hedge 
fund-of-funds may generally include:  long/short U.S. equity, global equity, 
derivatives, distressed debt and other fixed income strategies, currency exposure, 
arbitrage and event driven strategies, and additional strategies with low correlation 
to traditional asset classes.  

Proxy Voting 

Each investment manager is responsible for and empowered to exercise all rights, 
including voting rights, as are acquired through the purchase of securities, where 
practical.  Each investment manager shall vote proxies in the best interest of the Town 
of Simsbury.  A copy of each firm’s guidelines, and/or summary of proxy votes shall be 
provided to the Committee upon request. 

Investment Monitoring and Reporting 
 
The Committee will periodically review performance of the investments in the 
Plans.  Performance monitoring is the mechanism for revisiting the investment 
selection process and confirming that the criteria originally satisfied remain intact 
and that an investment continues to be appropriate for the Plans.  While frequent 
change is neither expected nor desirable, the process of monitoring investment 
performance relative to specified guidelines is an on-going process. 
 
Monitoring should occur on a periodic basis.  The monitoring process will utilize the 
same criteria that formed the basis of the investment selection decision.  In 
addition, a set of “watch list criteria” may be employed to track important 
quantitative and qualitative elements, assist in the evaluation process, and focus 
the Committee on potential areas of concern. 
 
 
 
 

19



Town of Simsbury Pension Plans  page 6 
 

Watch list criteria may include the following: 
 

• Performance relative to benchmark performance over various time frames; 
• Deterioration of risk-adjusted performance; 
• Notable style drift / change in investment objective; 
• High manager fees relative to peers; 
• Significant organizational or manager change. 

 
Termination of an Investment Manager or Fund 

 
A manager/fund may be terminated when the Committee has lost confidence in the 
manager's ability to: 

• Achieve performance and risk objectives; 
• Comply with investment guidelines; 
• Comply with reporting requirements; 
• Maintain a stable organization and retain key investment professionals. 
 

There are no hard and fast rules for manager termination. However, if the 
investment manager has consistently failed to adhere to one or more of the above 
conditions, termination may be considered. Failure to remedy the circumstances 
of unsatisfactory performance by the manager/fund, within a reasonable time, may 
be grounds for termination. 
 
Any recommendation to terminate a manager/fund will be treated on an individual 
basis and will not be made solely based on quantitative data. In addition to those 
above, other factors may include, but shall not be limited to, professional or Town 
of Simsbury turnover, or material change to investment processes.  
 
The process for selecting a replacement for a terminated manager would follow the 
criteria outlined in the section of this Investment Policy Statement titled Selection 
Criteria for Investment Managers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



Town of Simsbury Pension Plans  page 7 
 

Approval 

It is understood that this investment policy is to be reviewed periodically by the 
Committee to determine if any revisions are warranted by changing circumstances 
including, but not limited to, changes in financial status, risk tolerance, or changes 
involving the investment managers.  

The Town of Simsbury: 
 
By: _____________________________ 
 
Signature: ___________________________   Date: _______________ 
 
Title: _______________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



Town of Simsbury Pension Plans  page 8 
 

Appendix A 
Updated January 2018 

 
Target Asset Allocation Table 

 
 
Asset Class 

Min 
Weight 

Target 
Weight 

Max 
Weight 

Benchmark 
Index 

Domestic Equities 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% Russell 3000 Index 
     
International Equities 17.5% 27.5% 37.5% MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. 

Index; MSCI EAFE Small 
Cap Index; MSCI 
Emerging Markets 
Index. 

     
Fixed Income 22.5% 32.5% 42.5% Barclays Capital 

Aggregate Index; 
Citigroup World 
Government Bond 
Index 

     
Real Estate 0.0% 5.0% 7.5% NCREIF Index 
     
Inflation Protection 0.0% 5.0% 7.5% Bloomberg Commodity 

Index Total Return, S&P 
No. American Natural 
Resources Sector Index, 
Bloomberg Barclays US 
TIPS 0-5 Yr Index 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

22



Market Value
($)

Allocation (%)
Market Value

($)
Allocation

(%)
Market Value

($)
Allocation

(%)
Target

(%)

Short Term Liquidity
Wells Fargo Gov't Money Market 248,278 1.0% 344,936 1.4% 191,015 1.1% 0.0%

Fixed Income
Metropolitan West Total Return Fund Pl 2,497,551 9.8% 2,361,399 9.9% 1,723,006 9.6% 10.0%
Western Asset Core Plus Bond IS 2,477,730 9.7% 2,340,941 9.8% 1,712,083 9.5% 10.0%
BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 1,864,666 7.3% 1,762,862 7.4% 1,289,258 7.2% 7.5%
Templeton Global Bond R6 1,206,385 4.7% 1,141,939 4.8% 864,658 4.8% 5.0%
Total Fixed Income 8,046,332 31.5% 7,607,140 31.9% 5,589,006 31.2% 32.5%

Domestic Equity
Vanguard Instl Index Fund I 5,442,664 21.3% 5,077,670 21.3% 3,797,420 21.2% 20.5%
Neuberger Berman Genesis Fund R6 2,563,876 10.0% 2,491,153 10.4% 1,798,237 10.0% 9.5%
Total Domestic Equity 8,006,541 31.4% 7,568,823 31.7% 5,595,656 31.2% 30.0%

International Equity
Hartford International Opportunities R6 4,064,546 15.9% 3,826,327 16.0% 2,827,642 15.8% 16.5%
Templeton Instl Foreign Small Comp A 1,509,708 5.9% 1,417,635 5.9% 1,064,717 5.9% 6.0%
Aberdeen Emerging Markets I 1,093,228 4.3% 1,001,977 4.2% 766,362 4.3% 5.0%
Total International Equity 6,667,482 26.1% 6,245,938 26.2% 4,658,722 26.0% 27.5%

Real Estate 
Barings Core Property Fund* 1,348,607 5.3% 1,123,839 4.7% 1,048,916 5.8% 5.0%
Total Real Estate 1,348,607 5.3% 1,123,839 4.7% 1,048,916 5.8% 5.0%

Inflation Protection
Vanguard Short-Term Infl Protection Adm 413,456 1.6% 335,445 1.4% 289,885 1.6% 1.7%
Credit Suisse Commodity Return I 406,865 1.6% 330,506 1.4% 283,999 1.6% 1.7%
Van Eck Global Hard Assets I 395,246 1.5% 300,581 1.3% 278,873 1.6% 1.7%
Total Inflation Protection 1,215,568 4.8% 966,533 4.1% 852,757 4.8% 5.0%

25,532,807 100.0% 23,857,209 100.0% 17,936,072 100.0% 100.0%
*Barings Core Property Fund value as of 6/30/2018
Source: Wells Fargo, Barings

The Balance information has been compiled solely by Fiduciary Investment Advisors, LLC, and has not been independently verified. In preparing this report, Fiduciary Investment Advisors, LLC has relied upon 
information provided by investment managers and the custodian.

Asset Allocation - Town of Simsbury
As of August 31, 2018

Town Pension Plan BOE Plan Police Plan

23



Plan Performance

Calendar Year Performance

Value

Performance(%)

1
Month

QTD
Jan-2018

To
Jul-2018

YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Total Plan 65,938,506 1.8 1.8 1.3 1.3 6.5 6.7 6.6 6.5 8.0 08/01/1994

Town Hybrid 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 7.2 7.0 7.0 6.4 8.5 01/01/1988

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Plan 14.8 7.5 -0.1 3.2 14.4 12.8 0.4

Town Hybrid 15.8 7.5 -0.8 4.9 14.3 11.6 1.0

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Feb-2018

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 27.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 30.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 16.5

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 6.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 5.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 5.0

Simsbury Pension - Total Plan
Performance Update As Of July 31, 2018

The allocation mandate represents the current benchmark composition for the portfolio. Please keep in mind that the investment objective may have changed over time.

24



aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ
όϷύ

!ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ ό҈ύ
aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ

όϷύ
!ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ

ό҈ύ
aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ

όϷύ
!ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ

ό҈ύ
¢ŀǊƎŜǘ
ό҈ύ

{ƘƻǊǘ ¢ŜǊƳ [ƛǉǳƛŘƛǘȅ
²Ŝƭƭǎ CŀǊƎƻ DƻǾϥǘ aƻƴŜȅ aŀǊƪŜǘ мфнΣоло лΦу҈ мфсΣптс лΦф҈ мтуΣнфо мΦл҈ лΦл҈

CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ
aŜǘǊƻǇƻƭƛǘŀƴ ²Ŝǎǘ ¢ƻǘŀƭ wŜǘǳǊƴ CǳƴŘ tƭ нΣппсΣофл млΦл҈ нΣнолΣсул фΦф҈ мΣсфлΣолл фΦф҈ млΦл҈
²ŜǎǘŜǊƴ !ǎǎŜǘ /ƻǊŜ tƭǳǎ .ƻƴŘ L{ нΣпмлΣусу фΦф҈ нΣнллΣмлс фΦу҈ мΣсстΣоос фΦт҈ млΦл҈
.ƭŀŎƪwƻŎƪ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ LƴŎƻƳŜ hǇǇǎ Y мΣунсΣпол тΦр҈ мΣссрΣлпн тΦп҈ мΣнстΣлмт тΦп҈ тΦр҈
¢ŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴ Dƭƻōŀƭ .ƻƴŘ wс мΣмфоΣрот пΦф҈ мΣмпуΣнмр рΦм҈ усфΣпмл рΦм҈ рΦл҈
¢ƻǘŀƭ CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ тΣуттΣннп онΦп҈ тΣнппΣлпо онΦн҈ рΣпфпΣлсо онΦл҈ онΦр҈

5ƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ Lƴǎǘƭ LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ L рΣлунΣлпф нлΦф҈ пΣтпмΣноу нмΦм҈ оΣрпрΣумп нлΦт҈ нлΦр҈
bŜǳōŜǊƎŜǊ .ŜǊƳŀƴ DŜƴŜǎƛǎ CǳƴŘ wс нΣосоΣлнс фΦт҈ нΣнфсΣллл млΦн҈ мΣсртΣосс фΦт҈ фΦр҈
¢ƻǘŀƭ 5ƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ тΣппрΣлтр олΦс҈ тΣлотΣноф омΦо҈ рΣнлоΣмул олΦо҈ олΦл҈

LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
IŀǊǘŦƻǊŘ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ hǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ wс оΣутрΣмлр мрΦф҈ оΣрртΣофн мрΦу҈ нΣтлрΣррф мрΦу҈ мсΦр҈
¢ŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴ Lƴǎǘƭ CƻǊŜƛƎƴ {Ƴŀƭƭ /ƻƳǇ ! мΣплуΣспс рΦу҈ мΣопуΣслу сΦл҈ ффрΣмфу рΦу҈ сΦл҈
!ōŜǊŘŜŜƴ 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ L мΣлутΣфнр пΦр҈ ффтΣммт пΦп҈ тснΣспп пΦп҈ рΦл҈
¢ƻǘŀƭ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ сΣотмΣстс нсΦн҈ рΣфлоΣммт нсΦн҈ пΣпсоΣплм нсΦл҈ нтΦр҈

wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ 
.ŀǊƛƴƎǎ /ƻǊŜ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ CǳƴŘ мΣопуΣслт рΦр҈ мΣмноΣуоф рΦл҈ мΣлпуΣфмс сΦм҈ рΦл҈
¢ƻǘŀƭ wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ мΣопуΣслт рΦр҈ мΣмноΣуоф рΦл҈ мΣлпуΣфмс сΦм҈ рΦл҈

LƴŦƭŀǘƛƻƴ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ
±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ {ƘƻǊǘπ¢ŜǊƳ LƴŦƭ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ !ŘƳ остΣмпс мΦр҈ оопΣоро мΦр҈ нроΣфсф мΦр҈ мΦт҈
/ǊŜŘƛǘ {ǳƛǎǎŜ /ƻƳƳƻŘƛǘȅ wŜǘǳǊƴ L оумΣпмт мΦс҈ опоΣсмс мΦр҈ нспΣлтп мΦр҈ мΦт҈
±ŀƴ 9Ŏƪ Dƭƻōŀƭ IŀǊŘ !ǎǎŜǘǎ L осоΣлор мΦр҈ онуΣфтр мΦр҈ нрмΣтмф мΦр҈ мΦт҈
¢ƻǘŀƭ LƴŦƭŀǘƛƻƴ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ мΣмммΣрфу пΦс҈ мΣллсΣфпр пΦр҈ тсфΣтсо пΦр҈ рΦл҈

нпΣопсΣпуп мллΦл҈ ннΣрммΣсрф мллΦл҈ мтΣмртΣсмс мллΦл҈ мллΦл҈

!ǎǎŜǘ !ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ π ¢ƻǿƴ ƻŦ {ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

¢ƻǿƴ tŜƴǎƛƻƴ tƭŀƴ .h9 tƭŀƴ tƻƭƛŎŜ tƭŀƴ

25



Account Reconciliation Town Hybrid Composition

Calendar Year Performance Summary

Trailing Performance Summary

QTR YTD
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Total Plan 08/01/1994

   Beginning Market Value 65,022,076 65,789,162 12,042,857

   Net Contributions -731,252 -1,504,512 -8,971,446

   Total Gain/Loss -275,067 -268,893 60,944,347

   Ending Market Value 64,015,758 64,015,758 64,015,758

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Feb-2018

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 27.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 30.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 16.5

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 6.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 5.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 5.0

QTR YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
7

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Total Plan -0.4 -0.4 6.4 6.1 6.9 6.4 5.8 7.4 08/01/1994

Town Hybrid 0.3 -0.1 7.6 6.5 7.4 6.8 6.2 7.7

Difference -0.7 -0.3 -1.2 -0.4 -0.5 -0.4 -0.4 -0.3

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Total Plan 14.7 7.4 -0.1 3.1 14.4 12.6 -0.2 14.5

Town Hybrid 15.8 7.5 -0.8 4.9 14.3 11.6 1.0 13.6

Difference -1.1 -0.1 0.7 -1.8 0.1 1.0 -1.2 0.9

Total Plan Performance Summary - Total Plan
As of June 30, 2018

Investment performance history data prior to 7/1/2011  was sourced from prior consultant.

26



Account Reconciliation Town Hybrid Composition

Calendar Year Performance Summary

Trailing Performance Summary

QTR YTD
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Town Plan 08/01/1994

   Beginning Market Value 24,798,453 25,121,822 4,896,705

   Net Contributions -344,168 -670,408 -4,102,756

   Total Gain/Loss -107,802 -104,931 23,552,535

   Ending Market Value 24,346,484 24,346,484 24,346,484

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Feb-2018

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 27.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 30.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 16.5

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 6.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 5.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 5.0

QTR YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
7

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Town Plan -0.4 -0.4 6.3 6.1 6.9 6.5 5.8 7.4 08/01/1994

Town Hybrid 0.3 -0.1 7.6 6.5 7.4 6.8 6.2 7.7

Difference -0.7 -0.3 -1.3 -0.4 -0.5 -0.3 -0.4 -0.3

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Town Plan 14.7 7.4 -0.2 3.2 14.5 12.6 0.0 14.5

Town Hybrid 15.8 7.5 -0.8 4.9 14.3 11.6 1.0 13.6

Difference -1.1 -0.1 0.6 -1.7 0.2 1.0 -1.0 0.9

Total Plan Performance Summary - Town Plan
As of June 30, 2018

Investment performance history data prior to 7/1/2011  was sourced from prior consultant.

27



Account Reconciliation Town Hybrid Composition

Calendar Year Performance Summary

Trailing Performance Summary

QTR YTD
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Board of Education 08/01/1994

   Beginning Market Value 22,801,813 23,051,114 3,743,350

   Net Contributions -193,309 -443,040 -157,641

   Total Gain/Loss -96,845 -96,415 18,925,950

   Ending Market Value 22,511,659 22,511,659 22,511,659

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Feb-2018

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 27.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 30.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 16.5

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 6.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 5.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 5.0

QTR YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
7

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Board of Education -0.4 -0.4 6.4 6.2 6.9 6.4 5.8 7.4 08/01/1994

Town Hybrid 0.3 -0.1 7.6 6.5 7.4 6.8 6.2 7.7

Difference -0.7 -0.3 -1.2 -0.3 -0.5 -0.4 -0.4 -0.3

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Board of Education 14.8 7.4 0.0 3.0 14.4 12.6 -0.7 14.5

Town Hybrid 15.8 7.5 -0.8 4.9 14.3 11.6 1.0 13.6

Difference -1.0 -0.1 0.8 -1.9 0.1 1.0 -1.7 0.9

Total Plan Performance Summary - BOE Plan
As of June 30, 2018

Investment performance history data prior to 7/1/2011  was sourced from prior consultant.

28



Account Reconciliation Town Hybrid Composition

Calendar Year Performance Summary

Trailing Performance Summary

QTR YTD
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Police Plan 08/01/1994

   Beginning Market Value 17,421,810 17,616,226 3,402,802

   Net Contributions -193,775 -391,063 -4,711,049

   Total Gain/Loss -70,419 -67,547 18,465,863

   Ending Market Value 17,157,616 17,157,616 17,157,616

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Feb-2018

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 27.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 30.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 16.5

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 6.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 5.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 5.0

QTR YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
7

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Police Plan -0.4 -0.4 6.4 6.1 6.9 6.5 5.8 7.5 08/01/1994

Town Hybrid 0.3 -0.1 7.6 6.5 7.4 6.8 6.2 7.7

Difference -0.7 -0.3 -1.2 -0.4 -0.5 -0.3 -0.4 -0.2

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Police Plan 14.7 7.4 -0.1 3.2 14.3 12.5 -0.2 14.6

Town Hybrid 15.8 7.5 -0.8 4.9 14.3 11.6 1.0 13.6

Difference -1.1 -0.1 0.7 -1.7 0.0 0.9 -1.2 1.0

Total Plan Performance Summary - Police Plan
As of June 30, 2018

Investment performance history data prior to 7/1/2011  was sourced from prior consultant.

29



Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Feb-2018

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 27.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 30.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 16.5

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 6.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 5.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 5.0

Jun-2015

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 22.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.5

Russell 3000 Index 29.5

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 14.0

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 5.5

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 3.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 5.0

Blackrock Hybrid Benchmark 10.0

Feb-2014

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 22.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 34.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 13.0

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 5.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 3.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 2.5

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 5.0

Blackrock Hybrid Benchmark 10.0

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Oct-2013

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 22.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 34.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 13.0

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 5.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 3.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 2.5

Inflation Protection Index 5.0

Blackrock Hybrid Benchmark 10.0

May-2013

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 22.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.0

Russell 3000 Index 34.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 13.0

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 5.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 3.0

MSCI U.S. REIT Index 2.5

Inflation Protection Index 5.0

Blackrock Hybrid Benchmark 10.0

Nov-2012

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 22.5

FTSE World Government Bond Index 5.5

Russell 3000 Index 32.0

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) 12.5

MSCI EAFE Small Cap (net) Index 5.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 2.5

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Inflation Protection Index 5.0

Blackrock Hybrid Benchmark 10.0

Benchmark Composition
Town Hybrid
As of June 30, 2018

30



Benchmark Composition
Town Hybrid
As of June 30, 2018

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Jun-2007

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 30.0

Russell 2500 Index 15.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

MSCI Emerging Markets Index 5.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Jan-2006

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 35.0

Russell 2500 Index 15.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Mar-2005

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 35.0

Russell 2500 Index 15.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Feb-2005

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 36.0

Russell 2500 Index 14.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Jan-2005

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 37.0

Russell 2500 Index 13.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Dec-2004

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 38.0

Russell 2500 Index 12.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Nov-2004

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 39.0

Russell 2500 Index 11.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

Dec-2002

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 40.0

Russell 2500 Index 10.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 5.0

31



Benchmark Composition
Town Hybrid
As of June 30, 2018

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Jun-1998

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 40.0

Russell 2500 Index 10.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (gross) 5.0

Jul-1996

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 40.0

Russell 2500 Index 10.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (gross) 5.0

Jan-1988

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 25.0

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Treasury 10.0

Russell 1000 Index 40.0

Russell 2500 Index 10.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 10.0

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (gross) 5.0

32



QTD YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception

Since FIA's
Inception
Dec-2012

To
Jun-2018

Inception
Date

Total Plan -0.4 -0.4 6.4 6.1 6.9 5.8 7.4 7.1 08/01/1994

Town Hybrid 0.3 -0.1 7.6 6.5 7.4 6.2 7.7 7.5

Wells Fargo Government Money Market Fund I 0.4 0.7 1.2 0.5 0.3 N/A 0.3 0.3 11/01/2012

90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 0.5 0.8 1.4 0.6 0.4 N/A 0.4 0.4

Fixed Income -1.0 -1.4 -0.1 2.3 2.7 N/A 3.0 2.2 07/01/2011

Fixed Income Composite Benchmark -0.7 -1.4 0.2 2.0 2.1 N/A 2.2 1.2

Metropolitan West Total Return Fund PL 0.0 (15) -1.3 (20) -0.2 (42) 1.6 (70) 2.5 (50) N/A 2.1 (43) 2.1 (43) 12/01/2012

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index -0.2 -1.6 -0.4 1.7 2.3 N/A 1.6 1.6

IM U.S. Broad Market Core+ Fixed Income (MF) Median -0.4 -1.8 -0.4 2.0 2.5 4.5 1.9 1.9

Western Asset Core Plus Bond IS -1.5 (95) -2.5 (86) -0.4 (51) 3.3 (5) N/A N/A 3.0 (4) N/A 11/01/2014

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index -0.2 -1.6 -0.4 1.7 N/A N/A 1.6 N/A

IM U.S. Broad Market Core+ Fixed Income (MF) Median -0.4 -1.8 -0.4 2.0 2.5 4.5 1.8 1.9

BlackRock Strategic Income Opportunities K -0.8 (68) -0.4 (57) 2.0 (35) 2.3 (57) N/A N/A 2.1 (40) N/A 07/01/2014

Libor (3 month) 0.6 0.9 1.5 1.0 N/A N/A 0.8 N/A

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index -0.2 -1.6 -0.4 1.7 N/A N/A 1.8 N/A

IM Alternative Credit Focus (MF) Median -0.2 -0.3 1.1 2.6 2.2 3.9 1.7 1.9

Templeton Global Bond R6 -2.5 (53) -1.2 (37) -1.7 (98) 1.4 (86) 2.0 (40) N/A 1.8 (25) 1.8 (25) 12/01/2012

FTSE World Government Bond Index -3.4 -0.9 1.9 2.8 1.1 N/A -0.2 -0.2

IM Global Fixed Income (MF) Median -2.2 -1.5 0.4 2.3 1.8 3.1 0.9 0.9

Domestic Equity 3.6 3.3 14.6 11.7 13.0 N/A 12.3 14.3 07/01/2011

Russell 3000 Index 3.9 3.2 14.8 11.6 13.3 N/A 13.0 14.7

Vanguard Institutional Index I 3.4 (26) 2.6 (28) 14.3 (32) 11.9 (13) 13.4 (14) N/A 14.7 (14) 14.7 (14) 12/01/2012

S&P 500 Index 3.4 2.6 14.4 11.9 13.4 N/A 14.8 14.8

IM U.S. Large Cap Core Equity (MF) Median 2.8 1.7 13.0 10.2 12.1 9.0 13.5 13.5

Manager Performance Overview
Simsbury Pension
As of June 30, 2018

Returns for periods less than one year are not annualized.
^More information on custom indexes, which may be used in this report, can be found on the Custom Index Description page in the back of your report.

33



Manager Performance Overview
Simsbury Pension
As of June 30, 2018

QTD YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception

Since FIA's
Inception
Dec-2012

To
Jun-2018

Inception
Date

Neuberger Berman Genesis R6 3.9 (96) 4.6 (74) 15.1 (52) 11.2 (48) 11.8 (51) N/A 13.1 (71) 13.1 (71) 12/01/2012

Russell 2000 Index 7.8 7.7 17.6 11.0 12.5 N/A 14.8 14.8

IM U.S. Small Cap Core Equity (MF) Median 7.9 6.2 15.2 11.0 12.1 10.7 14.4 14.4

International Equity -4.9 -4.6 4.7 5.3 5.9 N/A 3.8 6.0 07/01/2011

International Equity Composite Benchmark -3.6 -4.2 8.0 6.2 7.0 N/A 4.5 7.0

Hartford International Opportunities R6 -3.5 (82) -3.4 (51) 5.3 (49) 5.1 (5) N/A N/A 5.3 (3) N/A 10/01/2014

MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) -2.6 -3.8 7.3 5.1 N/A N/A 4.0 N/A

IM International Large Cap Core Equity (MF) Median -2.0 -3.4 5.2 3.6 5.4 2.4 3.6 5.8

Templeton Instl Foreign Small Comp A -3.5 (80) -2.0 (24) 9.4 (35) 7.1 (57) 8.1 (54) N/A 9.0 (49) 9.0 (49) 12/01/2012

MSCI AC World ex USA Small Cap (Net) -2.6 -2.9 10.6 7.9 9.0 N/A 9.1 9.1

IM International SMID Cap Core Equity (MF) Median -2.9 -2.8 8.3 7.8 8.5 5.4 8.8 8.8

Aberdeen Emerging Markets Instl -11.1 (88) -11.0 (94) -2.6 (95) 3.4 (73) 2.1 (83) N/A 1.2 (85) 1.2 (85) 12/01/2012

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index -8.0 -6.7 8.2 5.6 5.0 N/A 3.5 3.5

IM Emerging Markets Equity (MF) Median -9.1 -7.3 6.8 5.1 4.6 1.9 3.4 3.4

Real Estate 1.9 3.5 7.3 8.6 7.8 N/A 6.1 5.2 07/01/2011

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 1.8 3.8 7.5 8.4 10.0 N/A 10.4 10.5

Barings Core Property Fund LP* 1.9 3.5 7.3 8.6 N/A N/A 8.9 N/A 10/01/2013

NCREIF Fund Index - ODCE (net) 1.8 3.8 7.5 8.4 N/A N/A 9.8 N/A

Returns for periods less than one year are not annualized.
^More information on custom indexes, which may be used in this report, can be found on the Custom Index Description page in the back of your report.

34



Manager Performance Overview
Simsbury Pension
As of June 30, 2018

QTD YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception

Since FIA's
Inception
Dec-2012

To
Jun-2018

Inception
Date

Inflation Protection 1.8 -0.2 7.9 -0.6 -1.7 N/A -3.2 -3.3 11/01/2012

Short Term Inflation Protection Index 4.2 2.2 9.6 0.3 -1.0 N/A -1.7 -1.7

Vanguard Short-Term Inflation Protection Adm 0.5 (64) 0.7 (15) 1.3 (66) 1.1 (75) N/A N/A 0.5 (76) N/A 03/01/2014

Bloomberg  Barclays US TIPS 0-5 Year Index 0.5 0.7 1.4 1.1 N/A N/A 0.6 N/A

IM U.S. TIPS (MF) Median 0.6 -0.1 1.6 1.5 1.0 2.4 0.9 -0.3

Credit Suisse Commodity Return I 0.2 (58) -0.4 (67) 6.6 (81) -4.4 (67) N/A N/A -8.7 (58) N/A 03/01/2014

Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return 0.4 0.0 7.3 -4.5 N/A N/A -8.9 N/A

IM Commodities General (MF) Median 0.4 0.1 9.0 -3.4 -6.0 -9.2 -8.2 -7.6

Van Eck Global Hard Assets I 4.8 (65) -0.9 (59) 17.0 (50) -1.5 (78) -2.3 (72) N/A -2.5 (77) -2.5 (77) 12/01/2012

S&P North American Natural Res Sector Index (TR) 12.1 5.3 19.8 3.3 1.7 N/A 2.1 2.1

IM Global Natural Resources (MF) Median 5.9 1.2 16.9 1.5 0.1 -5.0 0.4 0.4

The inception date expressed on the Manager Performance Overview page(s) represents the first day of the first full month following the purchase of the investment.  Performance figures shown
at the fund level begin on this inception date.  Your performance may differ slightly if the fund was purchased during the previous month.  Actual performance is captured at the total plan level.

Investment returns are derived from custodian valuations and may deviate slightly from fund level returns displayed in other pages in your report which can result in minor differences in universe
rankings.  Mutual fund performance may differ from the current share class’s historical performance due to share class exchanges.

*Barings Core Property is valued as of 6/30/2018.

Returns for periods less than one year are not annualized.
^More information on custom indexes, which may be used in this report, can be found on the Custom Index Description page in the back of your report.

35



aŀƴŀƎŜǊ aŀƴŀƎŜǊ {ǘŀǘǳǎ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ
CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ
aŜǘǊƻǇƻƭƛǘŀƴ ²Ŝǎǘ ¢ƻǘŀƭ wŜǘǳǊƴ tƭ όa²¢{·ύ aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму ς ¢ƘŜ aŜǘ²Ŝǎǘ ¢ƻǘŀƭ wŜǘǳǊƴ .ƻƴŘ ŦǳƴŘ ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜŘ ŀ ƳƻŘŜǎǘ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΣ ōǳǘ

ƻǳǘǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ǘƘŜ .ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ LƴŘŜȄΦ LƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ǘƻ ǊƛǎŜ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ
ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ CŜŘŜǊŀƭ wŜǎŜǊǾŜΩǎ ŘŜŎƛǎƛƻƴ ǘƻ ǊŀƛǎŜ ƛǘǎ ǘŀǊƎŜǘ ǊŀǘŜΣ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ ƛƴŦƭŀǘƛƻƴΣ ŀƴŘ ŦŀǾƻǊŀōƭŜ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ Řŀǘŀ ōŜƛƴƎ
ǊŜǇƻǊǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ¢ƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǇƻǎǘǳǊŜ ƳƻǾŜŘ ǎƭƛƎƘǘƭȅ ƭƻƴƎŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ǘƘŜ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ όлΦм ȅŜŀǊ ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ
ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪύ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ млπȅŜŀǊ ¢ǊŜŀǎǳǊȅ ōǊƻƪŜ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǘƘŜ о҈ ƳŀǊƪ ŜŀǊƭȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ hǾŜǊŀƭƭ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ
ŀƴŘ ŎǳǊǾŜ ǇƻǎǘǳǊŜ ƘŀŘ ŀ ƴŜǳǘǊŀƭ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ǇƻǎƛǘƛƻƴƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ƛǎǎǳŜ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ōƻǘƘ ƘŀŘ ŀ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜ
ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎΦ CǊƻƳ ŀ ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ǎǘŀƴŘ ǇƻƛƴǘΣ ŀƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƻ /a.{ ŀƴŘ ƴƻƴπŀƎŜƴŎȅ a.{ ǇǊƻǾŜŘ ǘƻ ōŜ ōŜƴŜŦƛŎƛŀƭ ŀǎ
ǘƘŜǎŜ ǎŜŎǘƻǊǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭƭȅ ƻǳǘǇŀŎŜŘ ǘƘŜ ōǊƻŀŘŜǊ ƳŀǊƪŜǘΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ǎƘƻǊǘŜǊ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜǎ ǿŀǎ ŀƭǎƻ
ōŜƴŜŦƛŎƛŀƭ ŀǎ ǎǇǊŜŀŘǎ ǿƛŘŜƴŜŘ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ŀƴŘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƎǊŀŘŜ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ōƻƴŘǎ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘΦ ! ƳƻŘŜǎǘ
ŀƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ƘƛƎƘ ȅƛŜƭŘ ǿŀǎ ŀƭǎƻ ōŜƴŜŦƛŎƛŀƭΦ ¢ƘŜ ǘŜŀƳ ƛǎ ŦƛƴŘƛƴƎ ƻǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǎƘƻǊǘŜǊπŘŀǘŜŘ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ǎǇŀŎŜΣ ŀǎ
ǎǇǊŜŀŘǎ ƘŀǾŜ ǿƛŘŜƴŜŘ ƳƻŘŜǎǘƭȅΣ ōǳǘ ǘƘŜȅ ǊŜƳŀƛƴ ŎƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛǾŜƭȅ ǇƻǎǘǳǊŜŘ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜ ǘƻ ōŜƭƛŜǾŜ ǿŜ ŀǊŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǘŜǊ ǎǘŀƎŜ
ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ ŎȅŎƭŜΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ Ƙŀǎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘŜŘ ƛƴ ŀƴ ƻǾŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ ŦǊƻƳ ŀ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ǾŀƭǳŜ ǇŜǊǎǇŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ōǳǘ ǎǘƛƭƭ ǳƴŘŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ƻƴ ŀ
ǎǇǊŜŀŘ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ōŀǎƛǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ǘŜŀƳ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ōƛŀǎŜŘ ǘƻ ŀ ƴŜǳǘǊŀƭ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǎǘŀƴŎŜ ŀƴŘ ƛŦ ǊŀǘŜǎ ǇǳǎƘ ōŀŎƪ ŀōƻǾŜ о҈Σ ǘƘŜȅ ǿƛƭƭ ƭƛƪŜƭȅ
ŜȄǘŜƴŘ ǘƘŜ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜΦ

²ŜǎǘŜǊƴ !ǎǎŜǘ /ƻǊŜ tƭǳǎ L{ ό²!t{·ύ aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму ς ¢ƘŜ ²ŜǎǘŜǊƴ !ǎǎŜǘ /ƻǊŜ tƭǳǎ .ƻƴŘ ŦǳƴŘ ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜŘ ŀ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ ŀōǎƻƭǳǘŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ŀƴŘ
ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ǘƘŜ .ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ LƴŘŜȄΦ CƛȄŜŘ ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭƭȅ ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜŘ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ
ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ŀǎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜǎ ǊƻǎŜ ŀƴŘ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ ǎǇǊŜŀŘǎ ǿƛŘŜƴŜŘΦ ¢ƘŜ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅΩǎ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ
ŘŜōǘ ŀƴŘ ŀ ƭƻƴƎŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǇƻǎǘǳǊŜΣ ǘǿƻ ǘƘŜƳŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ ŘǊƛǾŜǊǎ ƻŦ ƻǳǘǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ƻǾŜǊ ǊŜŎŜƴǘ
ȅŜŀǊǎΣ ǿŜǊŜ ǘƘŜ Ƴŀƛƴ ŎǳƭǇǊƛǘǎ ƻŦ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΦ bŜƎŀǘƛǾŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘƛƴƎ ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ŘŜōǘ
ǿŀǎ ŀ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊΣ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴǎ ŀōƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻŦ ǘŀǊƛŦŦǎΣ ŀƴŘ ƎŜƻǇƻƭƛǘƛŎŀƭ ǘŜƴǎƛƻƴǎ ǊƛǎƛƴƎΦ hƴ ǘƘŜ ƻǘƘŜǊ ƘŀƴŘΣ
ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ƴƻƴπŀƎŜƴŎȅ a.{ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜΣ /a.{ ƘƻƭŘƛƴƎǎΣ ŀƴŘ ƘƛƎƘ ȅƛŜƭŘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘǎ ƘŀŘ ŀ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜ ƛƳǇŀŎǘΦ ¢ƘŜ ǘŜŀƳ
ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜǎ ǘƻ ōŜƭƛŜǾŜ ǘƘŀǘ ¦Φ{Φ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ǎǳōŘǳŜŘ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŀǘ ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŜǎ ǿƛƭƭ ŜȄǇŜǊƛŜƴŎŜ ōŜǘǘŜǊ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ
ƭƻƴƎ Ǌǳƴ ŀǎ ǘƘŜȅ ƘŀǾŜ ƭŜǎǎ ŘŜōǘ ŀƴŘ ōŜǘǘŜǊ ŘŜƳƻƎǊŀǇƘƛŎǎΦ !ǎ ǎǳŎƘΣ ǇƻǎƛǘƛƻƴƛƴƎ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻ Ƙŀǎ ƴƻǘ ǎƘƛŦǘŜŘ
ŘǊŀƳŀǘƛŎŀƭƭȅΦ ¢ƘŜǊŜ ǿŀǎ ŀ ƳƻŘŜǎǘ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎŜ ƛƴ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƎǊŀŘŜ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀŎƪ ƻŦ ǿƛŘŜƴƛƴƎ ǎǇǊŜŀŘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ
ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ƭƻƴƎŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ǘƘŜ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ ƛƴ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ŀŎǘ ŀǎ ŀ ōŀƭƭŀǎǘ ŀƎŀƛƴǎǘ ǘƘŜ ƻǾŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ
ǎǇǊŜŀŘ ǎŜŎǘƻǊǎΦ

.ƭŀŎƪwƻŎƪ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ LƴŎƻƳŜ hǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ Y
ό.{LY·ύ

aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму ς ¢ƘŜ .ƭŀŎƪwƻŎƪ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ LƴŎƻƳŜ hǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜŘ ŀ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ ŀōǎƻƭǳǘŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ
ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΣ ŀƴŘ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ǘƘŜ ōǊƻŀŘŜǊ ŦƛȄŜŘ ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ƳŀǊƪŜǘΦ wƛǎƛƴƎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜǎ ǇǊƻǾŜŘ ǘƻ ōŜ ŀ ƘŜŀŘǿƛƴŘ ŦƻǊ ōƻƴŘ
ǇǊƛŎŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ ǎǇǊŜŀŘǎ ǿƛŘŜƴŜŘ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ƘƛƴŘŜǊƛƴƎ ŦƛȄŜŘ ƛƴŎƻƳŜ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ŘŜōǘ
ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƘŀŘ ōŜŜƴ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǘŜŀƳΩǎ ƘƛƎƘŜǊ ŎƻƴǾƛŎǘƛƻƴ ǘǊŀŘŜǎΣ ŎŀƳŜ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǇǊŜǎǎǳǊŜ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀŎƪ
ƻŦ ŀ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊ ŀƴŘ ƎŜƻǇƻƭƛǘƛŎŀƭ ǘŜƴǎƛƻƴǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ǘŜŀƳ Ƙŀǎ ǎƛƴŎŜ ǊŜŘǳŎŜŘ ǘƘŜ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ƛǎ ƭŜǎǎ ƻǇǘƛƳƛǎǘƛŎ ƎƛǾŜƴ ǘƘŜ
ǳƴŎŜǊǘŀƛƴǘȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǎǇŀŎŜΦ !ƭǎƻ ǿŜƛƎƘƛƴƎ ƻƴ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ƴƻƴπ¦Φ{Φ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜΣ ƴƻǘŀōƭȅ 9ǳǊƻǇŜŀƴ
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭǎΦ hƴ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜ ǎƛŘŜΣ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ǎŜŎǳǊƛǘƛȊŜŘ ŀǎǎŜǘǎΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ /a.{ ŀƴŘ ƴƻƴπŀƎŜƴŎȅ a.{Σ ǇǊƻǾŜŘ ǘƻ ōŜ
ōŜƴŜŦƛŎƛŀƭΣ ŀǎ ŘƛŘ ǘƘŜ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ǊŀǘŜ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴǎ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ŀ ǎƘƻǊǘ ƻƴ Lǘŀƭƛŀƴ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜǎΦ wƛŎƪ wƛŜŘŜǊ ŀƴŘ Ƙƛǎ ǘŜŀƳ ƘŀǾŜ ŜȄǘŜƴŘŜŘ
ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻ ŀƴŘ ƛǘ ƴƻǿ ǎƛǘǎ ŀǘ ŀǇǇǊƻȄƛƳŀǘŜƭȅ нΦо ȅŜŀǊǎΣ ŀōƻǳǘ ƻƴŜ ȅŜŀǊ ƭƻƴƎŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƛƻǊ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ aƻǎǘ ƻŦ
ǘƘƛǎ ŀŘŘŜŘ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŎŀƳŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŦǊƻƴǘ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǾŜ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǘŜŀƳ ƛǎ ǎŜŜƛƴƎ ƻǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴ ǎƘƻǊǘŜǊ ŘŀǘŜŘ ǎŜŎǳǊƛǘƛȊŜŘ ŀƴŘ
ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ōƻƴŘǎΦ

aŀƴŀƎŜǊ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘŀǊȅ

!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

36



aŀƴŀƎŜǊ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘŀǊȅ

!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму
aŀƴŀƎŜǊ aŀƴŀƎŜǊ {ǘŀǘǳǎ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ
¢ŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴ Dƭƻōŀƭ .ƻƴŘ wс όC.bw·ύ aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму ς ¢ƘŜ ¢ŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴ Dƭƻōŀƭ .ƻƴŘ CǳƴŘ ŘŜŎƭƛƴŜŘ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ōǳǘ ƻǳǘǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƛǘǎ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪΣ ǘƘŜ C¢{9

²D.LΣ ŀǎ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴǎΣ ƘƛƎƘƭƛƎƘǘŜŘ ōȅ ǇƻƭƛǘƛŎŀƭ ǳƴŎŜǊǘŀƛƴǘȅ ŀƴŘ ŜǎŎŀƭŀǘƛƴƎ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ǘǊŀŘŜ ǘŜƴǎƛƻƴǎΣ ŦƻǎǘŜǊŜŘ Ǌƛǎƪ
ŀǾŜǊǎƛƻƴ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǊŜǎǳƭǘŜŘ ƛƴ ŀ ǎƘŀǊǇ ǊƛǎŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊ ŀƎŀƛƴǎǘ Ƴƻǎǘ ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ ȅƛŜƭŘǎ ƛƴ ǎŜǾŜǊŀƭ
ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ CǳƴŘΩǎ ƭŀǊƎŜǎǘ ŀōǎƻƭǳǘŜ ŘŜǘǊŀŎǘƻǊ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ǿŀǎ ƛǘǎ ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜΣ
ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ .ǊŀȊƛƭƛŀƴ ǊŜŀƭΣ aŜȄƛŎŀƴ ǇŜǎƻΣ !ǊƎŜƴǘƛƴŜ ǇŜǎƻΣ ŀƴŘ LƴŘƛŀƴ ǊǳǇŜŜΣ ŀǎ ǘƘŜǎŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎƛŜǎ ŘŜǇǊŜŎƛŀǘŜŘ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘƭȅ
ŀƎŀƛƴǎǘ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊΦ {ŜƭŜŎǘ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜǎ ƛƴ !ǊƎŜƴǘƛƴŀ ŀƴŘ LƴŘƻƴŜǎƛŀ ǿŜǊŜ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴŀƭ ǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ ƻŦ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŀǎ
ȅƛŜƭŘǎ ǊƻǎŜ ŀŎǊƻǎǎ ǎŜǾŜǊŀƭ ƭƻŎŀƭ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ƛƴ [ŀǘƛƴ !ƳŜǊƛŎŀ ŀƴŘ !ǎƛŀΦ aŜŀƴǿƘƛƭŜΣ ǘƘŜ CǳƴŘΩǎ ƴŜǘπƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŜǳǊƻ
ŀƴŘ ȅŜƴ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ŀǎ ǘƘŜǎŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎƛŜǎ ŀƭǎƻ ŘŜǇǊŜŎƛŀǘŜŘ ŀƎŀƛƴǎǘ ǘƘŜ ŘƻƭƭŀǊΦ ¢ƘŜ CǳƴŘ ƛǎ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎŀƳŜ
ŘŜŦŜƴǎƛǾŜ ŀǇǇǊƻŀŎƘ ǊŜƎŀǊŘƛƴƎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜǎ ƛƴ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎΣ ǿƘƛƭŜ ƘƻƭŘƛƴƎ ŘǳǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜǎ ƛƴ ǎŜƭŜŎǘ
ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǘƘŜ ǘŜŀƳ ōŜƭƛŜǾŜǎ ƘŀǾŜ ŀǘǘǊŀŎǘƛǾŜ ǊƛǎƪκǊŜǘǳǊƴ ǇǊƻŦƛƭŜǎΣ ŦŀǾƻǊŀōƭŜ ƳŀŎǊƻ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ
ǊŜǎƛƭƛŜƴŎŜΣ ŀƴŘ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜƭȅ ƘƛƎƘŜǊ ŀƴŘ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴŀōƭŜ ǊŀǘŜ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴǘƛŀƭǎΦ

5ƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ Lƴǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴŀƭ LƴŘŜȄ L ό±LbL·ύ aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ ±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ Lƴǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴŀƭ LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ ǎǳŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘƭȅ ǘǊŀŎƪŜŘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴŘŜȄ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ
bŜǳōŜǊƎŜǊ .ŜǊƳŀƴ DŜƴŜǎƛǎ wс όb.DL·ύ aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму π ¢ƘŜ bŜǳōŜǊƎŜǊ .ŜǊƳŀƴ DŜƴŜǎƛǎ CǳƴŘ ƭŀƎƎŜŘ ƛǘǎ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪΣ ǘƘŜ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл LƴŘŜȄΣ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ ¢ǊŀŘŜ

ŘƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƻƴǎ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŀƴŘ /Ƙƛƴŀ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ŘŜǘŜǊƛƻǊŀǘŜŘ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ǇǊƻƎǊŜǎǎŜŘΣ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǾŜǊƎŜ ƻŦ
ƛƳǇƭŜƳŜƴǘƛƴƎ ǘŀǊƛŦŦǎ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǎǘ ǿŜŜƪ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΦ {Ƴŀƭƭ ŎŀǇǎ ƻǳǘǇŀŎŜŘ ƭŀǊƎŜ ŎŀǇǎ ōȅ ŀ ǿƛŘŜ ƳŀǊƎƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΣ ŀǎ
Ƴǳƭǘƛƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ƭŀǊƎŜ ŎŀǇ ŎƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ǘƻ ōŜ ŎƘŀƭƭŜƴƎŜŘ ōȅ ƘŜŀŘǿƛƴŘǎ ǿƛǘƴŜǎǎŜŘ ƻǳǘǎƛŘŜ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ Ƴŀƛƴƭȅ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ
ǘǊŀŘŜ ǿŀǊΦ CƻǊ Ƴƻǎǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΣ ƭƻǿ ǉǳŀƭƛǘȅΣ ƳƻǊŜ ǎǇŜŎǳƭŀǘƛǾŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ ǿƛǘƘ ƘƛƎƘ tκ9ϥǎ ŀƴŘ ƴƻƴπŜŀǊƴŜǊǎ ƻǳǘǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘΦ
¢Ƙƛǎ ǿŀǎ ŀ ƘŜŀŘǿƛƴŘ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŦǳƴŘϥǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ǇǊƻŎŜǎǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŜƳǇƘŀǎƛȊŜǎ ƘƛƎƘŜǊ ǉǳŀƭƛǘȅ ŎƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ ǿƛǘƘ ŦǊŜŜ ŎŀǎƘ ŦƭƻǿǎΦ !ǎ
ǎǳŎƘΣ ǎǘƻŎƪ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜƭȅ ƛƳǇŀŎǘŜŘ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ǘƘŜ ƳƻǎǘΦ Lƴ ǘŜǊƳǎ ƻŦ ǎŜŎǳǊƛǘȅ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴΣ ǘƘŜ ŦǳƴŘΩǎ ƘƻƭŘƛƴƎǎ ƛƴ
ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǊƎŜǎǘ ƘŜŀŘǿƛƴŘǎ ŦƻǊ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎΦ tƛŎƪǎ ƛƴ ŎƻƴǎǳƳŜǊ ŘƛǎŎǊŜǘƛƻƴŀǊȅ ŀƴŘ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ǿŜǊŜ ŀƭǎƻ ŎƻǎǘƭȅΦ Lƴ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴΣ
ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ŀƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ ŘŜǘǊŀŎǘŜŘΣ ŀǎ ŀ ƭŀŎƪ ƻŦ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ w9L¢ǎ ǿŀǎ ƴƻǘ ǊŜǿŀǊŘŜŘΦ

LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
IŀǊǘŦƻǊŘ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ hǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ wс όI!h¸·ύ aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму ς ¢ƘŜ IŀǊǘŦƻǊŘ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ hǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ CǳƴŘ ŘŜŎƭƛƴŜŘ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ŀƴŘ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƛǘǎ

ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪΣ ǘƘŜ a{/L !/²L ŜȄπ¦{Φ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ǿŜǊŜ ƳƛȄŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ
ŀƴŘ ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ŘŜŎƭƛƴƛƴƎ ŀǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊǎ ŘƛƎŜǎǘŜŘ ƴǳƳŜǊƻǳǎ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǎƛƎƴǎ ƻŦ ǎƭƻǿƛƴƎ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ
ƛƴ 9ǳǊƻǇŜ ŀƴŘ WŀǇŀƴΣ ǇƻƭƛǘƛŎŀƭ ǳƴŎŜǊǘŀƛƴǘȅΣ ŀƴŘ ŜǎŎŀƭŀǘƛƴƎ ǘǊŀŘŜ ǘŜƴǎƛƻƴǎΦ Lƴ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴΣ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŦƻǊ ŘƻƭƭŀǊπōŀǎŜŘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊǎ
ǿŜǊŜ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘƭȅ ƭƻǿŜǊ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ŀ ǎƘŀǊǇ ǊƛǎŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊΦ ¢ƘŜ CǳƴŘΩǎ ƭŀƎƎƛƴƎ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘ ƻŦ ǇƻƻǊ ǎǘƻŎƪ
ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ǘŜŎƘƴƻƭƻƎȅ ŀƴŘ ƘŜŀƭǘƘŎŀǊŜ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǘƘŜ ƭŀǊƎŜǎǘ ŘŜǘǊŀŎǘƻǊǎΦ Lƴ ŎƻƴǘǊŀǎǘΣ ǘƘƛǎ
ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ǿŀǎ ǇŀǊǘƛŀƭƭȅ ƻŦŦǎŜǘ ōȅ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜ ǎǘƻŎƪ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŀƭǎ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǎǳƳŜǊ ŘƛǎŎǊŜǘƛƻƴŀǊȅ ǎŜŎǘƻǊǎΦ
aŜŀƴǿƘƛƭŜΣ ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ŀƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ ǿŀǎ ƳƻŘŜǎǘƭȅ ŀŘŘƛǘƛǾŜ ǘƻ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ǳƴŘŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭǎ ŀƴŘ
ǘŜƭŜŎƻƳ ǎǘƻŎƪǎΣ ǘƘŜ ƳŀǊƪŜǘΩǎ ǘǿƻ ǿƻǊǎǘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳƛƴƎ ǎŜŎǘƻǊǎΦ ¢ƘŜ CǳƴŘ ƛǎ ǎǳōπŀŘǾƛǎŜŘ ōȅ ²ŜƭƭƛƴƎǘƻƴ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΦ

37



aŀƴŀƎŜǊ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘŀǊȅ

!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму
aŀƴŀƎŜǊ aŀƴŀƎŜǊ {ǘŀǘǳǎ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ
¢ŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴ Lƴǎǘƭ CƻǊŜƛƎƴ {ƳŀƭƭŜǊ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ {ŜǊ
! ό¢C{/·ύ

aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму ς ¢ƘŜ ¢LC CƻǊŜƛƎƴ {ƳŀƭƭŜǊ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ŘŜŎƭƛƴŜŘ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ŀƴŘ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƛǘǎ
ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪΣ ǘƘŜ a{/L !/²L ŜȄπ¦{ {Ƴŀƭƭ /ŀǇΦ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ǎƳŀƭƭπŎŀǇ ǎǘƻŎƪǎ ƳƻŘŜǎǘƭȅ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƭŀǊƎŜπŎŀǇ
ŎƻǳƴǘŜǊǇŀǊǘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΣ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŦƻǊ ŘƻƭƭŀǊπōŀǎŜŘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƭƻǿŜǊ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊ ŀǇǇǊŜŎƛŀǘŜŘ ǎǳōǎǘŀƴǘƛŀƭƭȅ
ǾŜǊǎǳǎ ŀƭƭ ƳŀƧƻǊ ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎƛŜǎΦ Lƴ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴΣ ǘƘŜ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅΩǎ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻǊƛŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴ ǊŜƳŀƛƴŜŘ ŀ ǎǘȅƭŜ ƘŜŀŘǿƛƴŘ ŀǎ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ
ǎǘƻŎƪǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ǘƻ ƻǳǘǇŜǊŦƻǊƳ ǾŀƭǳŜ ǎǘƻŎƪǎ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ {ǇŜŎƛŦƛŎŀƭƭȅΣ ǘƘŜ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅΩǎ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ǿŀǎ ŘǊƛǾŜƴ
ōȅ ǿŜŀƪ ǎǘƻŎƪ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎǳƳŜǊ ŘƛǎŎǊŜǘƛƻƴŀǊȅΣ ŎƻƴǎǳƳŜǊ ǎǘŀǇƭŜǎΣ ŀƴŘ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭǎ ǎŜŎǘƻǊǎΦ /ƻƴǾŜǊǎŜƭȅΣ ǎǘƻŎƪ
ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ǘŜŎƘƴƻƭƻƎȅΣ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭǎΣ ŀƴŘ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ǎŜŎǘƻǊǎ ŀŘŘŜŘ ǾŀƭǳŜΦ CǊƻƳ ŀ ǊŜƎƛƻƴŀƭ ǇŜǊǎǇŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ
ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ǎǘƻŎƪ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ !ǎƛŀ ŜȄπWŀǇŀƴΣ ǘƘŜ 9ǳǊƻȊƻƴŜΣ ŀƴŘ bƻǊǘƘ !ƳŜǊƛŎŀ ǿŀǎ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜΣ ōǳǘ ǘƘŜǎŜ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ Ǝŀƛƴǎ ǿŜǊŜ
ƳƻǊŜ ǘƘŀƴ ƻŦŦǎŜǘ ōȅ ǳƴŘŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ¦Y ŀƴŘ !ǳǎǘǊŀƭƛŀ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ ǎǘƻŎƪ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¦Y ŀƴŘ [ŀǘƛƴ
!ƳŜǊƛŎŀΦ

!ōŜǊŘŜŜƴ 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ L ό!.9a·ύ ²ŀǘŎƘ мv нлму нv нлму π ¢ƘŜ !ōŜǊŘŜŜƴ 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ CǳƴŘ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƛǘǎ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪΣ ǘƘŜ a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ LƴŘŜȄΣ
ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ ¢ƘŜ ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎ ǎŜƭƭƻŦŦ ǘƘƛǎ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ǿŀǎ ǇǊƛƳŀǊƛƭȅ ŎŀǘŀƭȅȊŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ ǎǳŘŘŜƴΣ ǎƘŀǊǇ ŀǇǇǊŜŎƛŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ
ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊΦ Lƴ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴΣ ǘǊŀŘŜ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ ǘƘŜ ǿƻǊƭŘϥǎ ǘǿƻ ƭŀǊƎŜǎǘ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŜǎ ŜƴǘŜǊŜŘ ŀ ǇǊŜŎŀǊƛƻǳǎ ǎǘŀƎŜ ǘƻǿŀǊŘǎ
ǘƘŜ ƭŀǘǘŜǊ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΣ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ¦Φ{Φ ŀƴŘ /Ƙƛƴŀ ǿŜǊŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǾŜǊƎŜ ƻŦ ŀŎǘǳŀƭ ƛƳǇƭŜƳŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻǇƻǎŜŘ ǘŀǊƛŦŦǎΦ
¢Ƙƛǎ ŜǎŎŀƭŀǘƛƻƴΣ ŀƭƻƴƎ ǿƛǘƘ ŎƻƴǘŀƎƛƻƴ ǎǇǊŜŀŘƛƴƎ ǘƻ ƻǘƘŜǊ ƳŀƧƻǊ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŜǎΣ ǿŜƛƎƘŜŘ ƘŜŀǾƛƭȅ ƻƴ ŜƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ
ŜǉǳƛǘƛŜǎΦ DŜƻǇƻƭƛǘƛŎŀƭ ǘǳǊōǳƭŜƴŎŜ ŀƭǎƻ ŀŘŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǾƻƭŀǘƛƭƛǘȅΣ ŀǎ ¢ǳǊƪŜȅ ŀƴŘ aŜȄƛŎƻ ŜƭŜŎǘŜŘ ƴŜǿ ƘŜŀŘǎ ƻŦ ǎǘŀǘŜΣ ŀƴŘ ŦŜŀǊǎ
ǎǳǊǊƻǳƴŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǳǇŎƻƳƛƴƎ .ǊŀȊƛƭƛŀƴ ŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴǎ ǿŜǊŜ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘƭȅ ƘŜƛƎƘǘŜƴŜŘΦ ²ƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅΣ ōƻǘƘ ǎŜŎǳǊƛǘȅ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ
ŀƴŘ ŀƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ ŘŜŎƛǎƛƻƴǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜΣ ǿƛǘƘ ŀƴ ƻǾŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ŀƴŘ ǇƛŎƪǎ ƛƴ .ǊŀȊƛƭΣ ŀƴŘ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ {ƻǳǘƘ !ŦǊƛŎŀ ŀƴŘ ¢ŀƛǿŀƴΣ
ŘŜǘǊŀŎǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ Ƴƻǎǘ ŦǊƻƳ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎΦ .ǊŀȊƛƭ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǿƻǊǎǘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳƛƴƎ ŎƻǳƴǘǊȅ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŘŜȄ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΣ ŀǎ ŦŜŀǊ
ǎǳǊǊƻǳƴŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǳǇŎƻƳƛƴƎ ŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴǎ ǇƭŀƎǳŜŘ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ƳŀǊƪŜǘǎΦ /ƻƴǾŜǊǎŜƭȅΣ ǎǘƻŎƪ ŎƘƻƛŎŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŀƴ ƻǾŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ LƴŘƛŀΣ ŀƴŘ ŀƴ
ƻǾŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ /Ƙƛƴŀ ŀŘŘŜŘ ǾŀƭǳŜ ǾŜǊǎǳǎ ǘƘŜ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪΣ ƘƻǿŜǾŜǊΣ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ƴƻǘ ŜƴƻǳƎƘ ǘƻ ƻŦŦǎŜǘ ǎƻƳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƘŀƭƭŜƴƎŜǎ
ŦŀŎŜŘ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ

¢ƘŜ ŦǳƴŘ ǿŀǎ ǇƭŀŎŜŘ ƻƴ Ϧ²ŀǘŎƘϦ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ǊŜŎŜƴǘ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ ǘƻ ƛǘǎ ǇŜŜǊǎ ŀƴŘ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪΦ wŜŎŜƴǘ ǇŜŜǊ
ǊŀƴƪƛƴƎǎ ƘŀǾŜ ŦŀƭƭŜƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ōƻǘǘƻƳπƘŀƭŦΣ ǿŜƛƎƘƛƴƎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ƭƻƴƎŜǊπǘŜǊƳΣ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ рπȅŜŀǊ ǊŜǘǳǊƴ Ƙŀǎ ŘǊƻǇǇŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ссǘƘ
ǇŜǊŎŜƴǘƛƭŜ ǾŜǊǎǳǎ ǇŜŜǊǎΦ

wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ
.ŀǊƛƴƎǎ /ƻǊŜ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ CǳƴŘ [t aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму π /ƻƳƳŜƴǘŀǊȅ ƴƻǘ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ŀǘ ǘƛƳŜ ƻŦ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǇǊƻŘǳŎǘƛƻƴΦ
LƴŦƭŀǘƛƻƴ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ
±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ {ƘƻǊǘπ¢ŜǊƳ LƴŦƭŀǘƛƻƴ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ !ŘƳ
ό±¢!t·ύ

aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ ±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ {ƘƻǊǘ ¢ŜǊƳ LƴŦƭŀǘƛƻƴ tǊƻǘŜŎǘŜŘ {ŜŎǳǊƛǘƛŜǎ LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ ǎǳŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘƭȅ ǘǊŀŎƪŜŘ ƛǘǎ
ƛƴŘŜȄ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ

38



aŀƴŀƎŜǊ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘŀǊȅ

!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму
aŀƴŀƎŜǊ aŀƴŀƎŜǊ {ǘŀǘǳǎ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ
/ǊŜŘƛǘ {ǳƛǎǎŜ /ƻƳƳƻŘƛǘȅ wŜǘǳǊƴ L ό/w{h·ύ aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму ς ¢ƘŜ /ǊŜŘƛǘ {ǳƛǎǎŜ 9ƴƘŀƴŎŜŘ /ƻƳƳƻŘƛǘȅ LƴŘŜȄ ǊƻǎŜ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ŀƴŘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ŜǎǎŜƴǘƛŀƭƭȅ ƛƴ ƭƛƴŜ

ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ .ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ /ƻƳƳƻŘƛǘȅ LƴŘŜȄΦ ²ƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ LƴŘŜȄΣ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ǿŜǊŜ ƳƛȄŜŘΣ ŀǎ ƘŀƭŦ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǳƴŘŜǊƭȅƛƴƎ ŎƻƴǎǘƛǘǳŜƴǘǎ ǇƻǎǘŜŘ
ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ǿƘƛƭŜ ǘƘŜ ƻǘƘŜǊ ƘŀƭŦ ǿŜǊŜ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜΦ 9ƴŜǊƎȅ ƭŜŘ ǘƘƻǎŜ ǘƘŀǘ ŀŘǾŀƴŎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΣ ŀǎ ŎǊǳŘŜ ƻƛƭ ŀƴŘ
ǇŜǘǊƻƭŜǳƳ ǇǊƻŘǳŎǘǎ ƭƛŦǘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ƘƛƎƘŜǊΦ ! ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ǎǳǇǇƭȅ ǘƘǊŜŀǘǎ ŘǊƻǾŜ ƻƛƭ ǇǊƛŎŜǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƘƛƎƘŜǎǘ ƭŜǾŜƭǎ ƛƴ
ǘƘǊŜŜ ȅŜŀǊǎΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǇƻǘŜƴǘƛŀƭ ¦Φ{Φ ƎƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘ ƛƳǇƻǎŜŘ ǎŀƴŎǘƛƻƴǎ ƻƴ LǊŀƴΣ ƎŜƻǇƻƭƛǘƛŎŀƭ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴǎ ƛƴ ±ŜƴŜȊǳŜƭŀ ŀƴŘ ŀ
ƎǊŜŀǘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ŀƴǘƛŎƛǇŀǘŜŘ ŘǊƻǇ ƛƴ ¦Φ{Φ ŎǊǳŘŜ ƛƴǾŜƴǘƻǊȅΦ [ƛǾŜǎǘƻŎƪ ǿŀǎ ŀƴƻǘƘŜǊ ƴƻǘŀōƭŜ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜǊΣ ǿƛǘƘ ƭƛǾŜ ŎŀǘǘƭŜ ƭŜŀŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ
ŀŘǾŀƴŎŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƎǊƻǳǇΦ /ƻƴǾŜǊǎŜƭȅΣ tǊŜŎƛƻǳǎ aŜǘŀƭǎ ƭŀƎƎŜŘ ǘƘƛǎ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΣ ƘƛƴŘŜǊŜŘ ōȅ ŀ ǎƘŀǊǇƭȅ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ ¦Φ{Φ ŘƻƭƭŀǊΦ ²ƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ
ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΣ Ǌƻƭƭ ŀƴŘ ŎǳǊǾŜπōŀǎŜŘ ŎƻƳƳƻŘƛǘȅ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŜǎ ƘŀŘ ŀ ƴŜǳǘǊŀƭ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘΣ ǿƘƛƭŜ ŎƻƭƭŀǘŜǊŀƭ
ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŀŘŘŜŘ ƳƻŘŜǎǘ ǾŀƭǳŜΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΩǎ ŎƻƳƳƻŘƛǘȅ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭƭȅ ǊŜƳŀƛƴǎ ǇƻǎƛǘƛƻƴŜŘ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ƻǳǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ
ŎǳǊǾŜ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ōŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜ ŀǘǘǊƛōǳǘƛƻƴ ŦǊƻƳ !ƎǊƛŎǳƭǘǳǊŜΣ ƘƻǿŜǾŜǊΣ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ƭŀǊƎŜƭȅ ƻŦŦǎŜǘ ŦǊƻƳ
[ƛǾŜǎǘƻŎƪ ŀƴŘ LƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŀƭ aŜǘŀƭǎΦ

±ŀƴ 9Ŏƪ Dƭƻōŀƭ IŀǊŘ !ǎǎŜǘǎ L όDI!L·ύ aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ нv нлму ς ¢ƘŜ ±ŀƴ 9Ŏƪ Dƭƻōŀƭ IŀǊŘ !ǎǎŜǘǎ CǳƴŘ ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜŘ ŀ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎŜŎƻƴŘ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ōǳǘ ǘǊŀƛƭŜŘ ƛǘǎ LƴŘŜȄΦ
¢ƘŜ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ǿŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǎǘŀƴŘƻǳǘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜǊ ŀƳƻƴƎ ŎƻƳƳƻŘƛǘƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǎƻǳǊŎŜ ŜǉǳƛǘƛŜǎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀŎƪ ƻŦ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ ƻƛƭ ǇǊƛŎŜǎΣ
ŀǎ .ǊŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ²¢L ŎǊǳŘŜ ōƻǘƘ ǘƻǳŎƘŜŘ ǘƘǊŜŜπȅŜŀǊ ƘƛƎƘǎΦ IƻǿŜǾŜǊΣ ŀ ǊƛǎƛƴƎ ŘƻƭƭŀǊ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜŘ ǊƘŜǘƻǊƛŎ ŀǊƻǳƴŘ ǘŀǊƛŦŦǎ ŀƴŘ
ǘǊŀŘŜ ǿŀǊǎ ƘŀŘ ŀ ƴŜƎŀǘƛǾŜ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ŀŎǊƻǎǎ ŎƻƳƳƻŘƛǘƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǎƻǳǊŎŜ ŜǉǳƛǘƛŜǎ ŀƭƛƪŜΣ ŦŜƭǘ Ƴƻǎǘ ǇǊŜŘƻƳƛƴŀƴǘƭȅ ŀƳƻƴƎ ōŀǎŜ
ŀƴŘ ǇǊŜŎƛƻǳǎ ƳŜǘŀƭǎΦ !Ǝŀƛƴǎǘ ǘƘƛǎ ōŀŎƪŘǊƻǇΣ ǘƘŜ CǳƴŘΩǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ǿŀǎ ƘƛƴŘŜǊŜŘ Ƴƻǎǘ ŦǊƻƳ ƛǘǎ ǳƴŘŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ŜƴŜǊƎȅΣ
ǿƘƛŎƘ ǊŜƳŀƛƴǎ ǎǳōǎǘŀƴǘƛŀƭ ŀǘ Ƨǳǎǘ ƻǾŜǊ ол҈Σ ŀƴŘ ƛǘǎ ƻǾŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƳŜǘŀƭǎ ǎŜŎǘƻǊǎΦ !ŘŘƛǘƛƻƴŀƭƭȅΣ ŀƴ ƻǾŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ƻƛƭ ϧ
Ǝŀǎ 9ϧt ƴŀƳŜǎ ŎƻǳǇƭŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǿŜŀƪ ǎŜƭŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƎǊƻǳǇ ǿŀǎ ǇŀǊǘƛŎǳƭŀǊƭȅ ŘŜǘǊƛƳŜƴǘŀƭΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜǎ ǘƻ ƘŀǾŜ ŀ
ǇǊŜŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ ŦƻǊ ƘƛƎƘ ǉǳŀƭƛǘȅ ǎƘŀƭŜ ǇǊƻŘǳŎŜǊǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ tŜǊƳƛŀƴΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǳƴŘŜǊǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ
ƘŜŀŘƭƛƴŜǎ ŀǊƻǳƴŘ ŀƴ ƛƴŦǊŀǎǘǊǳŎǘǳǊŜ ōƻǘǘƭŜƴŜŎƪ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǊŜƎƛƻƴΦ Lƴ ŀŘŘƛǘƛƻƴΣ ŀƴ ǳƴŘŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ƛƴǘŜƎǊŀǘŜŘǎ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ǿŜƛƎƘŜŘ ƻƴ
ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎΣ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ǎǘǊƻƴƎ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ǿŜǊŜ ǿƛŘŜǎǇǊŜŀŘ ŀŎǊƻǎǎ ǎǳōπƛƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŜǎΦ !ǊŜŀǎ ƻŦ ǎǘǊŜƴƎǘƘ ǘƘƛǎ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ
ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ŀ ƭŀŎƪ ƻŦ ŜȄǇƻǎǳǊŜ ǘƻ ǇŀǇŜǊ ǇŀŎƪŀƎƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ƳŜǘŀƭ ϧ Ǝƭŀǎǎ ŎƻƴǘŀƛƴŜǊ ƛƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŜǎΣ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ƻǾŜǊǿŜƛƎƘǘ ǎǘŀƴŎŜǎ ǘƻ
ŎƘŜƳƛŎŀƭǎ ŀƴŘ ŜƭŜŎǘǊƛŎŀƭ ŎƻƳǇƻƴŜƴǘǎΦ

39



aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ
!ǎ ƻŦ

лпκлмκнлму
bŜǘ Cƭƻǿǎ wŜǘǳǊƴ hƴ

LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ

aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ
!ǎ ƻŦ

лсκолκнлму
¢ƻǿƴ tƭŀƴ нпΣтфуΣпро πоппΣмсу πмлтΣулн нпΣопсΣпуп

.ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 9ŘǳŎŀǘƛƻƴ ннΣулмΣумо πмфоΣолф πфсΣупр ннΣрммΣсрф

tƻƭƛŎŜ tƭŀƴ мтΣпнмΣумл πмфоΣттр πтлΣпмф мтΣмртΣсмс

¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ срΣлннΣлтс πтомΣнрн πнтрΣлст спΣлмрΣтру

aŀƴŀƎŜǊ Dŀƛƴκ[ƻǎǎ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ
¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ

40



3 Year Risk and Return 5 Year Risk and Return

7 Year Risk and Return Since Inception Risk and Return

Total Plan Town Hybrid

5.80

6.00

6.20

6.40

6.60

6.80

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

0.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 8.00 10.00

Risk (Standard Deviation %)

Total Plan Town Hybrid

6.60

6.80

7.00

7.20

7.40

7.60

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

0.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 8.00 10.00

Risk (Standard Deviation %)

Total Plan Town Hybrid

6.20

6.40

6.60

6.80

7.00

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

0.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 8.00 10.00 12.00

Risk (Standard Deviation %)

Total Plan Town Hybrid

7.20

7.40

7.60

7.80

8.00

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

0.00 3.00 6.00 9.00 12.00 15.00

Risk (Standard Deviation %)

Risk vs Return
As of June 30, 2018

41



3 Year Historical MPT Statistics

5 Year Historical MPT Statistics

7 Year Historical MPT Statistics

Since Inception Historical MPT Statistics

Return
Standard
Deviation

Downside
Risk

Sharpe
Ratio

Information
Ratio

Tracking
Error

R-Squared Beta Alpha

Total Plan 6.13 6.13 3.66 0.90 -0.36 1.10 0.97 0.95 -0.05

Town Hybrid 6.53 6.37 3.70 0.93 N/A 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00

90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 0.64 0.17 0.02 N/A -0.93 6.35 0.01 0.00 0.63

Return
Standard
Deviation

Downside
Risk

Sharpe
Ratio

Information
Ratio

Tracking
Error

R-Squared Beta Alpha

Total Plan 6.87 6.04 3.39 1.07 -0.43 1.12 0.97 0.95 -0.11

Town Hybrid 7.37 6.27 3.42 1.11 N/A 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00

90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 0.40 0.16 0.01 N/A -1.11 6.27 0.00 0.00 0.39

Return
Standard
Deviation

Downside
Risk

Sharpe
Ratio

Information
Ratio

Tracking
Error

R-Squared Beta Alpha

Total Plan 6.44 7.43 4.58 0.84 -0.31 1.16 0.98 1.02 -0.48

Town Hybrid 6.83 7.21 4.25 0.91 N/A 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00

90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 0.30 0.14 0.01 N/A -0.91 7.21 0.00 0.00 0.30

Return
Standard
Deviation

Downside
Risk

Sharpe
Ratio

Information
Ratio

Tracking
Error

R-Squared Beta Alpha
Inception

Date

Total Plan 7.44 9.51 6.32 0.54 -0.18 1.32 0.98 1.05 -0.59 08/01/1994

Town Hybrid 7.74 9.02 5.89 0.60 N/A 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 08/01/1994

90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 2.49 0.66 0.01 N/A -0.60 9.03 0.00 0.00 2.48 08/01/1994

MPT Statistical Data
As of June 30, 2018

42



Up/Down Markets - 3 Years Up/Down Markets - 5 Years

Up Market Capture Ratio Down Market Capture Ratio

Total Plan Town Hybrid

0.0

2.0

4.0

-2.0

-4.0

A
ve

ra
ge 

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

27 Up Months 9 Down Months

1.3

-1.8

1.3

-1.7

Total Plan Town Hybrid

0.0

2.0

4.0

-2.0

-4.0

A
ve

ra
ge 

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

42 Up Months 18 Down Months

1.5

-1.5

1.4

-1.4

Total Plan

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

U
p 

M
ar

ke
t

 
Ca

pt
ur

e 
R

at
io 

(%
)

3
Years

5
Years

Time Periods

95.1 94.2

Total Plan

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

D
ow

n 
M

ar
ke

t
 

Ca
pt

ur
e 

R
at

io 
(%

)

3
Years

5
Years

Time Periods

96.5 95.3

Market Capture Report
As of June 30, 2018

43



a!b!D9w C99 {/I95¦[9 a!wY9¢ ±![¦9 !bb¦![L½95 C99 όϷύ !bb¦![L½95 C99 ό҈ύ

aŜǘǊƻǇƻƭƛǘŀƴ ²Ŝǎǘ ¢ƻǘ wŜǘ CǳƴŘ tƭ от ōǇǎ сΣостΣотл ноΣррф лΦот҈
²ŜǎǘŜǊƴ !ǎǎŜǘ /ƻǊŜ tƭǳǎ .ƻƴŘ L{ по ōǇǎ сΣнтуΣомл нсΣффт лΦпо҈
.ƭŀŎƪwƻŎƪ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ LƴŎƻƳŜ hǇǇǎ Y рп ōǇǎ пΣтруΣпуф нрΣсфс лΦрп҈
¢ŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴ Dƭƻōŀƭ .ƻƴŘ wс рн ōǇǎ оΣнммΣмсн мсΣсфу лΦрн҈
±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ Lƴǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴŀƭ LƴŘŜȄ L п ōǇǎ моΣосфΣмлм рΣопу лΦлп҈
bŜǳōŜǊƎŜǊ .ŜǊƳŀƴ DŜƴŜǎƛǎ CǳƴŘ wс тр ōǇǎ сΣомсΣофн птΣото лΦтр҈
IŀǊǘŦƻǊŘ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ hǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ wс то ōǇǎ млΣмоуΣлрс тпΣллу лΦто҈
¢ŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴ Lƴǎǘƭ CƻǊŜƛƎƴ {Ƴŀƭƭ /ƻƳǇ ! фф ōǇǎ оΣтрнΣпрн отΣмпф лΦфф҈
!ōŜǊŘŜŜƴ 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ L ммл ōǇǎ нΣуптΣсус омΣонр мΦмл҈
.ŀǊƛƴƎǎ /ƻǊŜ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ CǳƴŘ ммл ōǇǎ оΣрнмΣосн оуΣтор мΦмл҈
±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ {ƘƻǊǘ ¢ŜǊƳ LƴŦƭŀǘƛƻƴ tǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ !ŘƳ с ōǇǎ фррΣпсу рто лΦлс҈
/ǊŜŘƛǘ {ǳƛǎǎŜ /ƻƳƳƻŘƛǘȅ wŜǘǳǊƴ L ту ōǇǎ фуфΣмлт тΣтмр лΦту҈
±ŀƴ 9Ŏƪ Dƭƻōŀƭ IŀǊŘ !ǎǎŜǘǎ L фр ōǇǎ фпоΣтнф уΣфср лΦфр҈

¢h¢![ tƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻϝ ϷсоΣппуΣсуп ϷоппΣмпм лΦрп҈
* Does not include Cash Value

!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму
9ǎǘƛƳŀǘŜŘ CŜŜ !ƴŀƭȅǎƛǎ

DISCLOSURE:  The figures on this page have been obtained from sources we deem to be reliable.  FIA has not independently verified this information.

44



C¦b5 C!aL[¸ ²9. {L¢9
!ōŜǊŘŜŜƴ ǿǿǿΦŀōŜǊŘŜŜƴŀǎǎŜǘΦŎƻƳ
.ƭŀŎƪǊƻŎƪ ǿǿǿΦōƭŀŎƪǊƻŎƪΦŎƻƳ

/ǊŜŘƛǘ {ǳƛǎǎŜ ǿǿǿΦŎǊŜŘƛǘπǎǳƛǎǎŜΦŎƻƳ
IŀǊǘŦƻǊŘ ǿǿǿΦƘŀǊǘŦƻǊŘŦǳƴŘǎΦŎƻƳ

aŜǘǊƻǇƻƭƛǘŀƴ ²Ŝǎǘ ǿǿǿΦƳǿŀƳƭƭŎΦŎƻƳ
bŜǳōŜǊƎŜǊ .ŜǊƳŀƴ ǿǿǿΦƴōΦŎƻƳ

¢ŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴ ǿǿǿΦŦǊŀƴƪƭƛƴǘŜƳǇƭŜǘƻƴΦŎƻƳ
±ŀƴƎǳŀǊŘ ǿǿǿΦǾŀƴƎǳŀǊŘΦŎƻƳ
±ŀƴ 9Ŏƪ ǿǿǿΦǾŀƴŜŎƪΦŎƻƳ

²ŜǎǘŜǊƴ !ǎǎŜǘ ǿǿǿΦƭŜƎƎƳŀǎƻƴΦŎƻƳ

tǊƻǎǇŜŎǘǳǎ [ƛƴƪǎ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

45

http://www.aberdeenasset.com/
http://www.blackrock.com/
http://www.credit-suisse.com/
http://www.hartfordfunds.com/
http://www.mwamllc.com/
http://www.nb.com/
http://www.franklintempleton.com/
http://www.vanguard.com/
http://www.vaneck.com/
http://www.leggmason.com/


Simsbury OPEB
Quarterly Investment Review - Second Quarter 2018

One Hundred Northfield Drive, Windsor, CT 06095   Toll Free:866.466.9412   www.fiallc.com 46



Table of Contents

OPEB Portfolio Update

2Q Portfolio and Manager Review

Section 1

Section 2

Section 3

47



FUND Unreconciled Balances as of 
9/4/2018 Current Allocation Target

U.S. Gov't MMF $459,127 2.9%
FIXED INCOME

iShares Barclays TIPS Bond $2,484,999 15.8% 17.50%
iShares Core Total U.S. Bond Market $2,452,638 15.6% 17.50%

Total Fixed Income $4,937,637 31.5% 35.00%
DOMESTIC EQUITY

iShares S&P 500 Index $4,354,726 27.7% 26.00%
iShares Russell Midcap Index $993,999 6.3% 6.00%
iShares Russell 2000 Index $522,607 3.3% 3.00%

Total Domestic Equity $5,871,332 37.4% 35.00%
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY

iShares MSCI EAFE Index $2,814,356 17.9% 19.00%
iShares MSCI Emerging Markets Index $891,047 5.7% 6.00%

Total International Equity $3,705,402 23.6% 25.00%
REAL ESTATE

iShares Cohen & Steers Realty Majors Index $366,104 2.3% 2.50%
iShares S&P Developed ex-US Property Index $357,782 2.3% 2.50%

Total Real Estate $723,885 4.6% 5.00%
$15,697,383 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Simsbury Bank

The balance information has been compiled solely by Fiduciary Investment Advisors, LLC, and has not been independently verified. In preparing this report, Fiduciary 
Investment Advisors, LLC has relied upon information provided by the investment managers and by the custodian.

TOWN OF SIMSBURY OPEB TRUST
Updated Balances

Simsbury OPEB Balances 9.4.18 48



Plan Performance

Calendar Year Performance

Value

Performance(%)

1
Month

QTD
Jan-2018

To
Jul-2018

YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

Simsbury OPEB Total Plan 15,657,903 2.1 2.1 1.6 1.6 7.1 6.4 6.5 6.3 5.6 06/01/2008

Blended Benchmark 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.7 7.4 6.5 6.6 6.3 5.6 06/01/2008

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Simsbury OPEB Total Plan 14.9 6.5 -0.7 5.6 9.8 12.0 2.5

Blended Benchmark 15.0 6.6 -0.7 6.0 9.9 12.4 2.2

Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

Apr-2017

Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index 17.5

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. TIPS Index 17.5

S&P 500 Index 26.0

Russell Midcap Index 6.0

Russell 2000 Index 3.0

MSCI EAFE (Net) Index 19.0

MSCI Emerging Markets (Net) Index 6.0

Cohen Steers Realty Majors Index 2.5

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed ex U.S. Index 2.5

Simsbury OPEB
Performance Update As Of July 31, 2018

The allocation mandate represents the current benchmark composition for the portfolio. Please keep in mind that the investment objective may have changed over time.

49



!ǎǎŜǘ
!ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ

όϷύ

!ǎǎŜǘ
!ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ

ό҈ύ

¢ŀǊƎŜǘ
!ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ

ό҈ύ

5ƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜǎ
ό҈ύ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ мрΣопоΣлрс мллΦл мллΦл лΦл
  ¢ƻǘŀƭ {ƘƻǊǘ ¢ŜǊƳ [ƛǉǳƛŘƛǘȅ оффΣоун нΦс лΦл нΦс
    aƻƴŜȅ aŀǊƪŜǘ CǳƴŘǎ оффΣоун нΦс лΦл нΦс
  ¢ƻǘŀƭ CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ пΣфтоΣлрр онΦп орΦл πнΦс
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ ¢Lt{ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C нΣрмпΣплр мсΦп мтΦр πмΦм
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C нΣпруΣсрл мсΦл мтΦр πмΦр
  ¢ƻǘŀƭ 5ƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ рΣрмпΣрсп орΦф орΦл лΦф
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ {ϧt рлл 9¢C пΣлтнΣумп нсΦр нсΦл лΦр
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘŎŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ фппΣутн сΦн сΦл лΦн
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл 9¢C пфсΣуту оΦн оΦл лΦн
  ¢ƻǘŀƭ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ оΣтопΣуун нпΦо нрΦл πлΦт
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9!C9 9¢C нΣуннΣтус муΦп мфΦл πлΦс
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aƪǘǎ 9¢C фмнΣлфт рΦф сΦл πлΦм
  ¢ƻǘŀƭ wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ тнмΣмто пΦт рΦл πлΦо
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻƘŜƴ ϧ {ǘŜŜǊǎ w9L¢ 9¢C орсΣртн нΦо нΦр πлΦн
    ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ 9¢C оспΣслн нΦп нΦр πлΦм

!ǎǎŜǘ !ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘǎ ǿƛǘƘ ŀ ȊŜǊƻ ōŀƭŀƴŎŜ ǿŜǊŜ ƘŜƭŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ Ǉƭŀƴ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ŀƴŘ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ǊŜƳƻǾŜŘ ƻƴŎŜ ǘƘŜȅ ƴƻ ƭƻƴƎŜǊ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ Ǉƭŀƴ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΦ
!ǎǎŜǘ !ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ ǿŜƛƎƘǘƛƴƎǎ Ƴŀȅ ƴƻǘ ŀŘŘ ǳǇ ǘƻ млл҈ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ǊƻǳƴŘƛƴƎΦ

50



!ŎŎƻǳƴǘ wŜŎƻƴŎƛƭƛŀǘƛƻƴ .ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ /ƻƳǇƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ

/ŀƭŜƴŘŀǊ ¸ŜŀǊ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ

¢ǊŀƛƭƛƴƎ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ

v¢w ¸¢5 {ƛƴŎŜ
LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ

LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ
5ŀǘŜ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ лсκлмκнллу
   .ŜƎƛƴƴƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ мрΣнусΣноп мрΣпмрΣопм мΣоспΣнст
   bŜǘ /ƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘƛƻƴǎ π π фΣормΣуфт
   ¢ƻǘŀƭ Dŀƛƴκ[ƻǎǎ рсΣунн πтнΣнур пΣснсΣуфн
   9ƴŘƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ мрΣопоΣлрс мрΣопоΣлрс мрΣопоΣлрс

!ƭƭƻŎŀǘƛƻƴ aŀƴŘŀǘŜ ²ŜƛƎƘǘ ό҈ύ

!ǇǊπнлмт

.ƭƳōƎΦ .ŀǊŎΦ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ LƴŘŜȄ мтΦр

.ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ ¢Lt{ LƴŘŜȄ мтΦр
{ϧt рлл LƴŘŜȄ нсΦл
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘŎŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ сΦл
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл LƴŘŜȄ оΦл
a{/L 9!C9 όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ мфΦл
a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ сΦл
/ƻƘŜƴ {ǘŜŜǊǎ wŜŀƭǘȅ aŀƧƻǊǎ LƴŘŜȄ нΦр
C¢{9 9tw!κb!w9L¢ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ ŜȄ ¦Φ{Φ LƴŘŜȄ нΦр

v¢w ¸¢5 м
¸ŜŀǊ

о
¸ŜŀǊǎ

р
¸ŜŀǊǎ

т
¸ŜŀǊǎ

мл
¸ŜŀǊǎ

{ƛƴŎŜ
LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ

LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ
5ŀǘŜ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ лΦп πлΦр сΦт сΦл сΦт сΦо рΦф рΦп лсκлмκнллу
.ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ лΦф πлΦм тΦп сΦн сΦу сΦр сΦл рΦп
5ƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ πлΦр πлΦп πлΦт πлΦн πлΦм πлΦн πлΦм лΦл

нлмт нлмс нлмр нлмп нлмо нлмн нлмм нлмл
{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ мпΦф сΦр πлΦт рΦс фΦу мнΦл нΦр млΦу
.ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ мрΦл сΦс πлΦт сΦл фΦф мнΦп нΦн мнΦл
5ƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜ πлΦм πлΦм лΦл πлΦп πлΦм πлΦп лΦо πмΦн

¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

51



Allocation Mandate Weight (%)

!ǇǊπнлмт
.ƭƳōƎΦ .ŀǊŎΦ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ LƴŘŜȄ мтΦр
.ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ ¢Lt{ LƴŘŜȄ мтΦр
{ϧt рлл LƴŘŜȄ нсΦл
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘŎŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ сΦл
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл LƴŘŜȄ оΦл
a{/L 9!C9 όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ мфΦл
a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ сΦл
/ƻƘŜƴ {ǘŜŜǊǎ wŜŀƭǘȅ aŀƧƻǊǎ LƴŘŜȄ нΦр
C¢{9 9tw!κb!w9L¢ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ ŜȄ ¦Φ{Φ LƴŘŜȄ нΦр

5ŜŎπнллф
.ƭƳōƎΦ .ŀǊŎΦ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ LƴŘŜȄ ннΦр
.ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ ¢Lt{ LƴŘŜȄ ннΦр
{ϧt рлл LƴŘŜȄ ннΦр
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘŎŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ рΦл
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл LƴŘŜȄ нΦр
a{/L 9!C9 όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ мрΦл
a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ рΦл
/ƻƘŜƴ {ǘŜŜǊǎ wŜŀƭǘȅ aŀƧƻǊǎ LƴŘŜȄ нΦр
C¢{9 9tw!κb!w9L¢ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ ŜȄ ¦Φ{Φ LƴŘŜȄ нΦр

Wǳƴπнллу
.ƭƳōƎΦ .ŀǊŎΦ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ LƴŘŜȄ ннΦр
.ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ ¢Lt{ LƴŘŜȄ ннΦр
{ϧt рлл LƴŘŜȄ ннΦр
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘŎŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ рΦл
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл LƴŘŜȄ нΦр
a{/L 9!C9 όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ мрΦл
a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ рΦл
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻƘŜƴ ϧ {ǘŜŜǊǎ wŜŀƭǘȅ aŀƧƻǊǎ LƴŘŜȄ нΦр
{ϧtκ/ƛǘƛƎǊƻǳǇ ²ƻǊƭŘ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ LƴŘŜȄ .aL 9Ȅπ¦Φ{ нΦр

Benchmark Composition
Blended Benchmark
As of June 30, 2018

52



QTD YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
7

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ лΦп πлΦр сΦт сΦл сΦт сΦо рΦф рΦп лсκлмκнллу
.ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ лΦф πлΦм тΦп сΦн сΦу сΦр сΦл рΦп

{ƘƻǊǘ ¢ŜǊƳ [ƛǉǳƛŘƛǘȅ
aƻƴŜȅ aŀǊƪŜǘ CǳƴŘǎ лΦн лΦо лΦо лΦм лΦм лΦм лΦм лΦм лсκлмκнллу
фл 5ŀȅ ¦Φ{Φ ¢ǊŜŀǎǳǊȅ .ƛƭƭ лΦр лΦу мΦп лΦс лΦп лΦо лΦо лΦо

CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ ¢Lt{ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C лΦу όноύ πлΦм όппύ нΦл όооύ мΦу όнуύ мΦс όмуύ нΦл όмнύ нΦф όмтύ оΦл όмсύ лсκлмκнллу
.ƭƻƻƳōŜǊƎ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ ¦Φ{Φ ¢Lt{ LƴŘŜȄ лΦу лΦл нΦм мΦф мΦт нΦм оΦл оΦн
La ¦Φ{Φ ¢Lt{ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ лΦс πлΦм мΦс мΦр мΦл мΦп нΦп нΦр

ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C πлΦн όомύ πмΦт όплύ πлΦр όплύ мΦт όпрύ нΦн όпмύ нΦр όрпύ оΦс όслύ оΦс όрфύ лсκлмκнллу
.ƭƳōƎΦ .ŀǊŎΦ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ LƴŘŜȄ πлΦн πмΦс πлΦп мΦт нΦо нΦс оΦт оΦт
La ¦Φ{Φ .ǊƻŀŘ aŀǊƪŜǘ /ƻǊŜ CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ πлΦо πмΦт πлΦс мΦс нΦм нΦр оΦу оΦт

5ƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ {ϧt рлл 9¢C оΦп όнсύ нΦс όнуύ мпΦо όонύ ммΦф όмоύ моΦп όмпύ моΦн όмнύ млΦм όмуύ фΦм όмфύ лсκлмκнллу
{ϧt рлл LƴŘŜȄ оΦп нΦс мпΦп ммΦф моΦп моΦн млΦн фΦм
La ¦Φ{Φ [ŀǊƎŜ /ŀǇ /ƻǊŜ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ нΦу мΦт моΦл млΦн мнΦм ммΦф фΦл уΦл

ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘŎŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ нΦу όопύ нΦо όомύ мнΦм όнфύ фΦп όнсύ мнΦл όмтύ ммΦт όмпύ млΦм όноύ фΦм όноύ лсκлмκнллу
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘŎŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ нΦу нΦо мнΦо фΦс мнΦн ммΦф млΦн фΦн
La ¦Φ{Φ aƛŘ /ŀǇ /ƻǊŜ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ нΦо мΦм млΦм тΦу млΦо млΦм уΦу тΦф

ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл 9¢C тΦт όрнύ тΦт όосύ мтΦс όосύ ммΦл όрмύ мнΦр όппύ ммΦф όпрύ млΦс όрнύ фΦт όрлύ лсκлмκнллу
wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл LƴŘŜȄ тΦу тΦт мтΦс ммΦл мнΦр ммΦу млΦс фΦс
La ¦Φ{Φ {Ƴŀƭƭ /ŀǇ /ƻǊŜ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ тΦф сΦн мрΦн ммΦл мнΦм ммΦт млΦт фΦс

LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9!C9 9¢C πмΦл όмтύ πнΦт όнмύ сΦу όннύ пΦф όуύ сΦо όмфύ пΦу όннύ нΦу όппύ мΦф όпмύ лсκлмκнллу
a{/L 9!C9 όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ πмΦн πнΦт сΦу пΦф сΦп пΦф нΦу нΦл
La LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ [ŀǊƎŜ /ŀǇ /ƻǊŜ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ πнΦл πоΦп рΦн оΦс рΦп пΦм нΦп мΦп

aŀƴŀƎŜǊ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ hǾŜǊǾƛŜǿ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

wŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŦƻǊ ǇŜǊƛƻŘǎ ƭŜǎǎ ǘƘŀƴ ƻƴŜ ȅŜŀǊ ŀǊŜ ƴƻǘ ŀƴƴǳŀƭƛȊŜŘΦ wŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŀǊŜ ƴŜǘ ƻŦ ŦŜŜǎ ǳƴƭŜǎǎ ƻǘƘŜǊǿƛǎŜ ƴƻǘŜŘΦ
ϣaƻǊŜ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ŎǳǎǘƻƳ ƛƴŘŜȄŜǎΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ǳǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΣ Ŏŀƴ ōŜ ŦƻǳƴŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ǳǎǘƻƳ LƴŘŜȄ 5ŜǎŎǊƛǇǘƛƻƴ ǇŀƎŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀŎƪ ƻŦ ȅƻǳǊ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΦ

53



aŀƴŀƎŜǊ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ hǾŜǊǾƛŜǿ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

QTD YTD
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
7

Years
10

Years
Since

Inception
Inception

Date

ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aƪǘǎ 9¢C πуΦл όонύ πсΦф όпнύ тΦр όппύ рΦл όрнύ пΦп όрпύ лΦу όсоύ мΦс όрфύ лΦс όруύ лсκлмκнллу
a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ όbŜǘύ LƴŘŜȄ πуΦл πсΦт уΦн рΦс рΦл мΦп нΦо мΦн
La 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ πфΦм πтΦо сΦу рΦм пΦс мΦо мΦф лΦф

wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻƘŜƴ ϧ {ǘŜŜǊǎ w9L¢ 9¢C тΦф όптύ лΦо όрпύ нΦл όтуύ тΦр όоуύ уΦм όонύ уΦо όппύ сΦу όсрύ рΦр όсуύ лсκлмκнллу
/ƻƘŜƴ {ǘŜŜǊǎ wŜŀƭǘȅ aŀƧƻǊǎ LƴŘŜȄ уΦл лΦр нΦо тΦу уΦп уΦс тΦл рΦт
La wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ {ŜŎǘƻǊ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ тΦу лΦп оΦп тΦл тΦт уΦм тΦо сΦл

ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ 9¢C πлΦс όруύ πмΦф όуоύ тΦу όуоύ рΦп όпоύ сΦл όонύ сΦм όомύ пΦр όноύ оΦм όноύ лсκлмκнллу
{ϧt 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ 9Ȅπ¦Φ{Φ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ πлΦн πмΦп уΦт сΦн сΦт сΦу рΦм оΦт
La LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ όaCύ aŜŘƛŀƴ πлΦр πлΦн уΦу пΦу рΦм рΦн оΦт нΦо

ϝϝ ¢ƘŜ ŀōƻǾŜ ǎǘŀǘŜŘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ƛǎ ǎƻǳǊŎŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ CǳƴŘǎΦ  !Ŏǘǳŀƭ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŀŎƘƛŜǾŜŘ ŦƻǊ ŜŀŎƘ ǇǊƻŘǳŎǘ Ƴŀȅ ŘŜǾƛŀǘŜ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ŘƛŦŦŜǊƛƴƎ ǇǊƛŎƛƴƎ ƳŜǘƘƻŘƻƭƻƎƛŜǎ
ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ Ǉƭŀƴ ŎǳǎǘƻŘƛŀƴ ŀƴŘ ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎΦ

¢ƘŜ ƛƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ ŘŀǘŜ ŜȄǇǊŜǎǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ aŀƴŀƎŜǊ tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ hǾŜǊǾƛŜǿ ǇŀƎŜόǎύ ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘǎ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ Řŀȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦƛǊǎǘ Ŧǳƭƭ ƳƻƴǘƘ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇǳǊŎƘŀǎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘΦ
tŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŦƛƎǳǊŜǎ ǎƘƻǿƴ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŦǳƴŘ ƭŜǾŜƭ ōŜƎƛƴ ƻƴ ǘƘƛǎ ƛƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ ŘŀǘŜΦ  ¸ƻǳǊ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ Ƴŀȅ ŘƛŦŦŜǊ ǎƭƛƎƘǘƭȅ ƛŦ ǘƘŜ ŦǳƴŘ ǿŀǎ ǇǳǊŎƘŀǎŜŘ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǾƛƻǳǎ ƳƻƴǘƘΦ  !Ŏǘǳŀƭ
ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ƛǎ ŎŀǇǘǳǊŜŘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǘƻǘŀƭ Ǉƭŀƴ ƭŜǾŜƭΦ

LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŀǊŜ ŘŜǊƛǾŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ŎǳǎǘƻŘƛŀƴ Ǿŀƭǳŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ Ƴŀȅ ŘŜǾƛŀǘŜ ǎƭƛƎƘǘƭȅ ŦǊƻƳ ŦǳƴŘ ƭŜǾŜƭ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŘƛǎǇƭŀȅŜŘ ƛƴ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǇŀƎŜǎ ƛƴ ȅƻǳǊ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǿƘƛŎƘ Ŏŀƴ ǊŜǎǳƭǘ ƛƴ ƳƛƴƻǊ
ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜǎ ƛƴ ǳƴƛǾŜǊǎŜ ǊŀƴƪƛƴƎǎΦ  aǳǘǳŀƭ ŦǳƴŘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ Ƴŀȅ ŘƛŦŦŜǊ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ŎǳǊǊŜƴǘ ǎƘŀǊŜ ŎƭŀǎǎΩǎ ƘƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ǎƘŀǊŜ Ŏƭŀǎǎ ŜȄŎƘŀƴƎŜǎΦ

wŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŦƻǊ ǇŜǊƛƻŘǎ ƭŜǎǎ ǘƘŀƴ ƻƴŜ ȅŜŀǊ ŀǊŜ ƴƻǘ ŀƴƴǳŀƭƛȊŜŘΦ wŜǘǳǊƴǎ ŀǊŜ ƴŜǘ ƻŦ ŦŜŜǎ ǳƴƭŜǎǎ ƻǘƘŜǊǿƛǎŜ ƴƻǘŜŘΦ
ϣaƻǊŜ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ŎǳǎǘƻƳ ƛƴŘŜȄŜǎΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ǳǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΣ Ŏŀƴ ōŜ ŦƻǳƴŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ǳǎǘƻƳ LƴŘŜȄ 5ŜǎŎǊƛǇǘƛƻƴ ǇŀƎŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ōŀŎƪ ƻŦ ȅƻǳǊ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΦ

54



aŀƴŀƎŜǊ aŀƴŀƎŜǊ {ǘŀǘǳǎ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ
CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ ¢Lt{ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ CǳƴŘ Ƙŀǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƛƴπƭƛƴŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ .ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ /ŀǇƛǘŀƭ ¦{ ¢Lt{

LƴŘŜȄΦ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ ¦{ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ CǳƴŘϥǎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭƭȅ ŎƻǊǊŜǎǇƻƴŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ

.ŀǊŎƭŀȅǎ /ŀǇƛǘŀƭ ¦{ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ LƴŘŜȄΦ
5ƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ {ϧt рлл 9¢C aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ {ϧt рлл LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ ǎǳŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘƭȅ ǘǊŀŎƪŜŘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴŘŜȄ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ

ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘπ/ŀǇ 9¢C aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘ /ŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ ǎǳŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘƭȅ ǘǊŀŎƪŜŘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴŘŜȄ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ

ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл 9¢C aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ ǎǳŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘƭȅ ǘǊŀŎƪŜŘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴŘŜȄ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ

ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ
LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9!C9 9¢C aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9!C9 LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ ǎǳŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘƭȅ ǘǊŀŎƪŜŘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴŘŜȄ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ

ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊ ǿƛǘƘ ǎƻƳŜ ǘǊŀŎƪƛƴƎ ŜǊǊƻǊ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻŦ ŦŀƛǊ ǾŀƭǳŜ ǇǊƛŎƛƴƎΦ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aƪǘǎ 9¢C aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ ǎǳŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘƭȅ ǘǊŀŎƪŜŘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴŘŜȄ

ŘǳǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊΦ
wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻƘŜƴ ϧ {ǘŜŜǊǎ w9L¢ 9¢C aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ CǳƴŘϥǎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭƭȅ ŎƻǊǊŜǎǇƻƴŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ

/ƻƘŜƴ ϧ {ǘŜŜǊǎ wŜŀƭǘȅ aŀƧƻǊǎ LƴŘŜȄΦ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ
9¢C

aŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ Lƴ ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ƛǘǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜΣ ǘƘŜ CǳƴŘϥǎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ƎŜƴŜǊŀƭƭȅ ŎƻǊǊŜǎǇƻƴŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǘǳǊƴǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ
{ϧt 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ ŜȄπ¦{ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ LƴŘŜȄΦ

aŀƴŀƎŜǊ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘŀǊȅ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

55



Market Value
As of

04/01/2018
Net Flows Return On

Investment

Market Value
As of

06/30/2018

{ƘƻǊǘ ¢ŜǊƳ [ƛǉǳƛŘƛǘȅ
aƻƴŜȅ aŀǊƪŜǘ CǳƴŘǎ нуфΣлло млфΣттф слл оффΣоун
¢ƻǘŀƭ {ƘƻǊǘ ¢ŜǊƳ [ƛǉǳƛŘƛǘȅ нуфΣлло млфΣттф слл оффΣоун

CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ ¢Lt{ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C нΣрмуΣпмр πнрΣммм нмΣмлм нΣрмпΣплр
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C нΣпулΣмрс πмсΣфпп πпΣрсн нΣпруΣсрл
¢ƻǘŀƭ CƛȄŜŘ LƴŎƻƳŜ пΣффуΣртм πпнΣлрр мсΣроф пΣфтоΣлрр

5ƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ {ϧt рлл 9¢C оΣфруΣнрф π ммпΣррр пΣлтнΣумп
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘŎŀǇ LƴŘŜȄ CǳƴŘ фмфΣпуп π нрΣоуу фппΣутн
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл 9¢C пслΣсрн π осΣннс пфсΣуту
¢ƻǘŀƭ 5ƻƳŜǎǘƛŎ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ рΣооуΣофр π мтсΣмсф рΣрмпΣрсп

LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9!C9 9¢C нΣфотΣлмн πртΣлрн πртΣмтр нΣуннΣтус
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aƪǘǎ 9¢C мΣлмсΣнфп πсΣмлн πфуΣлфс фмнΣлфт
¢ƻǘŀƭ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ оΣфроΣолс πсоΣмрп πмррΣнтл оΣтопΣуун

wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻƘŜƴ ϧ {ǘŜŜǊǎ w9L¢ 9¢C оооΣлсо π ноΣрлу орсΣртн
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ 9¢C отоΣуфс πпΣртм πпΣтнп оспΣслн
¢ƻǘŀƭ wŜŀƭ 9ǎǘŀǘŜ тлсΣфрф πпΣртм муΣтур тнмΣмто

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ мрΣнусΣноп π рсΣунн мрΣопоΣлрс

aŀƴŀƎŜǊ LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ Dŀƛƴκ[ƻǎǎ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ
vǳŀǊǘŜǊ 9ƴŘƛƴƎ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

56



tŜǊƛƻŘǎ 9ƴŘƛƴƎ
.ŜƎƛƴƴƛƴƎ

aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ
όϷύ

bŜǘ
/ŀǎƘ Cƭƻǿ

όϷύ

Dŀƛƴκ[ƻǎǎ
όϷύ

9ƴŘƛƴƎ
aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ

όϷύ
҈ wŜǘǳǊƴ

Wǳƴπнллу π π π мΣолоΣфоо bκ!
{ŜǇπнллу мΣолоΣфоо стпΣоро πмппΣпму мΣуооΣусу πтΦу
5ŜŎπнллу мΣуооΣусу мфн πмфнΣнпс мΣспмΣумп πмлΦр
aŀǊπнллф мΣспмΣумп π πурΣллл мΣррсΣумп πрΦн
Wǳƴπнллф мΣррсΣумп уΣрор мумΣпмф мΣтпсΣтсу ммΦт
{ŜǇπнллф мΣтпсΣтсу слрΣпфр нотΣууу нΣрфлΣмрл ммΦл
5ŜŎπнллф нΣрфлΣмрл πмнн тоΣпнп нΣссоΣпрн нΦу
aŀǊπнлмл нΣссоΣпрн π тсΣлсн нΣтофΣрмп нΦф
Wǳƴπнлмл нΣтофΣрмп πоΣтпр πмонΣстт нΣслоΣлфн πпΦу
{ŜǇπнлмл нΣслоΣлфн флрΣмлл нсмΣолф оΣтсфΣрлм тΦф
5ŜŎπнлмл оΣтсфΣрлм πммΣтрн мумΣусл оΣфофΣслф пΦу
aŀǊπнлмм оΣфофΣслф π мнпΣрлп пΣлспΣммп оΦн
Wǳƴπнлмм пΣлспΣммп π стΣпру пΣмомΣртм мΦт
{ŜǇπнлмм пΣмомΣртм π πонпΣпсл оΣултΣммм πтΦф
5ŜŎπнлмм оΣултΣммм смрΣллл ннфΣрмн пΣсрмΣсно сΦм
aŀǊπнлмн пΣсрмΣсно π онмΣнлт пΣфтнΣуол сΦф
Wǳƴπнлмн пΣфтнΣуол тΣрло πсфΣсоп пΣфмлΣсфу πмΦп
{ŜǇπнлмн пΣфмлΣсфу соуΣлло мфнΣомр рΣтпмΣлмс пΦм
5ŜŎπнлмн рΣтпмΣлмс уΣпом ммрΣнот рΣуспΣсуп нΦл
aŀǊπнлмо рΣуспΣсуп м номΣпмф сΣлфсΣмлп оΦф
Wǳƴπнлмо сΣлфсΣмлп π πмсмΣсуу рΣфопΣпмс πнΦт
{ŜǇπнлмо рΣфопΣпмс πмΣфоф нууΣмпл сΣннлΣсму пΦф
5ŜŎπнлмо сΣннлΣсму мΣрнпΣфпо нртΣоуп уΣллнΣфпр оΦр
aŀǊπнлмп уΣллнΣфпр π момΣупр уΣмопΣтфм мΦс
Wǳƴπнлмп уΣмопΣтфм π оолΣтлп уΣпсрΣпфр пΦм
{ŜǇπнлмп уΣпсрΣпфр стмΣссф πмснΣлмф уΣфтрΣмпп πмΦу
5ŜŎπнлмп уΣфтрΣмпп н мпуΣррр фΣмноΣтлн мΦт
aŀǊπнлмр фΣмноΣтлн π нлсΣтфт фΣоолΣпфф нΦо
Wǳƴπнлмр фΣоолΣпфф оΣлллΣллл πффΣпмн мнΣномΣлут πлΦт
{ŜǇπнлмр мнΣномΣлут нмрΣнмп πротΣртф ммΣфлуΣтнн πпΦо
5ŜŎπнлмр ммΣфлуΣтнн π нрнΣфмм мнΣмсмΣсоп нΦм
aŀǊπнлмс мнΣмсмΣсоп π нтфΣтос мнΣппмΣотл нΦо
Wǳƴπнлмс мнΣппмΣотл π нопΣфпо мнΣстсΣомо мΦф
{ŜǇπнлмс мнΣстсΣомо мсоΣлтс отоΣутр моΣнмоΣнсо нΦф

aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜǎ ŀƴŘ Cƭƻǿ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ
{ƛƴŎŜ LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ 9ƴŘƛƴƎ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

57



aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜǎ ŀƴŘ Cƭƻǿ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ
{ƛƴŎŜ LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ 9ƴŘƛƴƎ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

tŜǊƛƻŘǎ 9ƴŘƛƴƎ
.ŜƎƛƴƴƛƴƎ

aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ
όϷύ

bŜǘ
/ŀǎƘ Cƭƻǿ

όϷύ

Dŀƛƴκ[ƻǎǎ
όϷύ

9ƴŘƛƴƎ
aŀǊƪŜǘ ±ŀƭǳŜ

όϷύ
҈ wŜǘǳǊƴ

5ŜŎπнлмс моΣнмоΣнсо π πмлоΣфул моΣмлфΣнуо πлΦу
aŀǊπнлмт моΣмлфΣнуо π роуΣнут моΣсптΣртм пΦм
Wǳƴπнлмт моΣсптΣртм π плнΣнфп мпΣлпфΣуср нΦф
{ŜǇπнлмт мпΣлпфΣуср оомΣлфт псфΣнпф мпΣурлΣнмм оΦо
5ŜŎπнлмт мпΣурлΣнмм упн рспΣнуу мрΣпмрΣопм оΦу
aŀǊπнлму мрΣпмрΣопм π πмнфΣмлт мрΣнусΣноп πлΦу
Wǳƴπнлму мрΣнусΣноп π рсΣунн мрΣопоΣлрс лΦп

мΣолоΣфоо фΣормΣуфт пΣсутΣннр мрΣопоΣлрс ттΦт

58



о ¸ŜŀǊ wƛǎƪ ŀƴŘ wŜǘǳǊƴ р ¸ŜŀǊ wƛǎƪ ŀƴŘ wŜǘǳǊƴ

т ¸ŜŀǊ wƛǎƪ ŀƴŘ wŜǘǳǊƴ {ƛƴŎŜ LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ wƛǎƪ ŀƴŘ wŜǘǳǊƴ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ .ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ

рΦул

рΦфл

сΦлл

сΦмл

сΦнл

сΦол

сΦпл

wŜ
ǘǳ
Ǌƴ 

ό҈
ύ

лΦлл нΦлл пΦлл сΦлл уΦлл млΦлл
wƛǎƪ ό{ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 5ŜǾƛŀǘƛƻƴ ҈ύ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ .ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ

сΦсф

сΦтн

сΦтр

сΦту

сΦум

сΦуп

сΦут

wŜ
ǘǳ
Ǌƴ 

ό҈
ύ

лΦлл нΦлл пΦлл сΦлл уΦлл
wƛǎƪ ό{ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 5ŜǾƛŀǘƛƻƴ ҈ύ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ .ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ

сΦно

сΦол

сΦот

сΦпп

сΦрм

сΦру

wŜ
ǘǳ
Ǌƴ 

ό҈
ύ

лΦлл нΦлл пΦлл сΦлл уΦлл млΦлл
wƛǎƪ ό{ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 5ŜǾƛŀǘƛƻƴ ҈ύ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ .ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ

рΦос

рΦоу

рΦпл

рΦпн

рΦпп

рΦпс

рΦпу

wŜ
ǘǳ
Ǌƴ 

ό҈
ύ

лΦлл оΦлл сΦлл фΦлл мнΦлл мрΦлл
wƛǎƪ ό{ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ 5ŜǾƛŀǘƛƻƴ ҈ύ

wƛǎƪ ǾǎΦ wŜǘǳǊƴ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

59



о ¸ŜŀǊ IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ at¢ {ǘŀǘƛǎǘƛŎǎ

р ¸ŜŀǊ IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ at¢ {ǘŀǘƛǎǘƛŎǎ

т ¸ŜŀǊ IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ at¢ {ǘŀǘƛǎǘƛŎǎ

{ƛƴŎŜ LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ at¢ {ǘŀǘƛǎǘƛŎǎ

wŜǘǳǊƴ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ
5ŜǾƛŀǘƛƻƴ

5ƻǿƴǎƛŘŜ
wƛǎƪ

{ƘŀǊǇŜ
wŀǘƛƻ

LƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ
wŀǘƛƻ

¢ǊŀŎƪƛƴƎ
9ǊǊƻǊ wπ{ǉǳŀǊŜŘ .Ŝǘŀ !ƭǇƘŀ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ рΦфт рΦум оΦрп лΦфн πлΦот лΦтл лΦфф лΦфр лΦлп
.ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ сΦно сΦлс оΦру лΦфо bκ! лΦлл мΦлл мΦлл лΦлл
фл 5ŀȅ ¦Φ{Φ ¢ǊŜŀǎǳǊȅ .ƛƭƭ лΦсп лΦмт лΦлн bκ! πлΦфо сΦлр лΦлм лΦлл лΦсо

wŜǘǳǊƴ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ
5ŜǾƛŀǘƛƻƴ

5ƻǿƴǎƛŘŜ
wƛǎƪ

{ƘŀǊǇŜ
wŀǘƛƻ

LƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ
wŀǘƛƻ

¢ǊŀŎƪƛƴƎ
9ǊǊƻǊ wπ{ǉǳŀǊŜŘ .Ŝǘŀ !ƭǇƘŀ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ сΦтп рΦтт оΦол мΦлф πлΦмл лΦтн лΦфу лΦфу лΦлр
.ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ сΦум рΦуо оΦол мΦлф bκ! лΦлл мΦлл мΦлл лΦлл
фл 5ŀȅ ¦Φ{Φ ¢ǊŜŀǎǳǊȅ .ƛƭƭ лΦпл лΦмс лΦлм bκ! πмΦлф рΦун лΦлл лΦлл лΦоф

wŜǘǳǊƴ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ
5ŜǾƛŀǘƛƻƴ

5ƻǿƴǎƛŘŜ
wƛǎƪ

{ƘŀǊǇŜ
wŀǘƛƻ

LƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ
wŀǘƛƻ

¢ǊŀŎƪƛƴƎ
9ǊǊƻǊ wπ{ǉǳŀǊŜŘ .Ŝǘŀ !ƭǇƘŀ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ сΦом сΦсс пΦлр лΦфм πлΦнм лΦтф лΦфф лΦфу πлΦлн
.ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ сΦпу сΦтс пΦлу лΦфн bκ! лΦлл мΦлл мΦлл лΦлл
фл 5ŀȅ ¦Φ{Φ ¢ǊŜŀǎǳǊȅ .ƛƭƭ лΦол лΦмп лΦлм bκ! πлΦфн сΦтс лΦлл лΦлл лΦол

wŜǘǳǊƴ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘ
5ŜǾƛŀǘƛƻƴ

5ƻǿƴǎƛŘŜ
wƛǎƪ

{ƘŀǊǇŜ
wŀǘƛƻ

LƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ
wŀǘƛƻ

¢ǊŀŎƪƛƴƎ
9ǊǊƻǊ wπ{ǉǳŀǊŜŘ .Ŝǘŀ !ƭǇƘŀ LƴŎŜǇǘƛƻƴ

5ŀǘŜ
{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ рΦпл фΦср сΦсс лΦрс πлΦлт мΦлу лΦфф лΦфт лΦмл лсκлмκнллу
.ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ рΦпр фΦуф сΦфу лΦрр bκ! лΦлл мΦлл мΦлл лΦлл лсκлмκнллу
фл 5ŀȅ ¦Φ{Φ ¢ǊŜŀǎǳǊȅ .ƛƭƭ лΦор лΦмт лΦлм bκ! πлΦрр фΦфп лΦлф πлΦлм лΦоу лсκлмκнллу

at¢ {ǘŀǘƛǎƛŎŀƭ 5ŀǘŀ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

60



¦Ǉκ5ƻǿƴ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ π о ¸ŜŀǊǎ ¦Ǉκ5ƻǿƴ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ π р ¸ŜŀǊǎ

¦Ǉ aŀǊƪŜǘ /ŀǇǘǳǊŜ wŀǘƛƻ 5ƻǿƴ aŀǊƪŜǘ /ŀǇǘǳǊŜ wŀǘƛƻ

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ .ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ

лΦл

мΦл

нΦл

оΦл

πмΦл

πнΦл

πоΦл

!Ǿ
ŜǊ
ŀƎ

Ŝ 
wŜ

ǘǳ
Ǌƴ 

ό҈
ύ

нр ¦Ǉ aƻƴǘƘǎ мм 5ƻǿƴ aƻƴǘƘǎ

мΦп

πмΦп

мΦо

πмΦп

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ .ƭŜƴŘŜŘ .ŜƴŎƘƳŀǊƪ

лΦл

мΦл

нΦл

оΦл

πмΦл

πнΦл

πоΦл

!Ǿ
ŜǊ
ŀƎ

Ŝ 
wŜ

ǘǳ
Ǌƴ 

ό҈
ύ

пм ¦Ǉ aƻƴǘƘǎ мф 5ƻǿƴ aƻƴǘƘǎ

мΦп

πмΦо

мΦп

πмΦо

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ

лΦл

рлΦл

мллΦл

мрлΦл

¦
Ǉ 
a
ŀǊ
ƪŜ

ǘ 
/ŀ

Ǉǘ
ǳǊ
Ŝ 
wŀ

ǘƛ
ƻ 
ό҈

ύ

о
¸ŜŀǊǎ

р
¸ŜŀǊǎ

¢ƛƳŜ tŜǊƛƻŘǎ

фсΦс ффΦн

{ƛƳǎōǳǊȅ ht9. ¢ƻǘŀƭ tƭŀƴ

лΦл

рлΦл

мллΦл

мрлΦл

5
ƻǿ

ƴ 
a
ŀǊ
ƪŜ

ǘ 
/ŀ

Ǉǘ
ǳǊ
Ŝ 
wŀ

ǘƛƻ 
ό҈

ύ

о
¸ŜŀǊǎ

р
¸ŜŀǊǎ

¢ƛƳŜ tŜǊƛƻŘǎ

фтΦс ффΦс

aŀǊƪŜǘ /ŀǇǘǳǊŜ wŜǇƻǊǘ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

61



9ǎǘƛƳŀǘŜŘ CŜŜ !ƴŀƭȅǎƛǎ

a!b!D9w C99 {/I95¦[9
¢!wD9¢ 

![[h/!¢Lhb

ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ ¢Lt{ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C лΦнл҈ мтΦр҈
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ ¦Φ{Φ !ƎƎǊŜƎŀǘŜ .ƻƴŘ 9¢C лΦлр҈ мтΦр҈
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻǊŜ {ϧt рлл 9¢C лΦлп҈ нсΦл҈
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ aƛŘπ/ŀǇ 9¢C лΦнл҈ сΦл҈
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ wǳǎǎŜƭƭ нллл 9¢C лΦмф҈ оΦл҈
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9!C9 9¢C лΦон҈ мфΦл҈
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ a{/L 9ƳŜǊƎƛƴƎ aŀǊƪŜǘǎ 9¢C лΦсф҈ сΦл҈
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ /ƻƘŜƴ ϧ {ǘŜŜǊǎ w9L¢ 9¢C лΦоп҈ нΦр҈
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ tǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ 9¢C лΦпу҈ нΦр҈

!±9w!D9 ²9LDI¢95 C99

!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

DISCLOSURE:  The figures on this page have been obtained from sources we deem to be reliable.  FIA has not independently verified 
this information.

лΦмф҈

62



C¦b5 C!aL[¸ ²9. {L¢9
ƛ{ƘŀǊŜǎ ǿǿǿΦƛǎƘŀǊŜǎΦŎƻƳ

tǊƻǎǇŜŎǘǳǎ [ƛƴƪǎ
!ǎ ƻŦ WǳƴŜ олΣ нлму

63

http://www.ishares.com/


Simsbury DC
Executive Summary - Second Quarter 2018

One Hundred Northfield Drive, Windsor, CT 06095   Toll Free:866.466.9412   www.fiallc.com 64



CƛŘǳŎƛŀǊȅ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ /ŀƭŜƴŘŀǊ{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ м

{ŜŎƻƴŘ vǳŀǊǘŜǊ нлму 9ȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ н

¢ŀōƭŜ ƻŦ /ƻƴǘŜƴǘǎ

LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ tƻƭƛŎȅ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ{ŜŎǘƛƻƴ о

65



CƛŘǳŎƛŀǊȅ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ /ŀƭŜƴŘŀǊ

66



3rd Quarter: Participant Focus 
 Investment Review

 Recordkeeper Services Update

 Plan Demographic Review

 Education & Advice Plan¹

 Plan Design Benchmarking

4th Quarter: Investment Focus 
 Investment Review

 Investment Menu Review

 Asset Class Updates

 Trends and Best Practices

 QDIA Analysis

Fiduciary Governance Calendar

1st Quarter: Fee Focus
 Investment Review

 Administrative Fee Review

 Investment Expense Analysis

 Benchmarking and Trends

 Recordkeeper Negotiations

2nd Quarter: Practice & Policy Focus
 Investment Review

 Investment Policy Statement Review

 Regulatory and Legislative Update

 Committee Best Practices

 Bonding and Fiduciary Insurance

¹ Where applicable, FIA is recommending that plan fiduciaries prudently select and monitor participant advice providers.

67



Regulatory and Legislative Update

68



On March 15, 2018, the U.S. Court of Appeals for 
the 5th Circuit voted to vacate the DOL’s Fiduciary 
Rule in toto, including the expanded definition of 
“investment advice fiduciary” and the associated 
exemptions. As the DOL failed to petition for a 
rehearing or appeal the decision to the Supreme 
Court, the Court issued its mandate officially 
vacating the rule June 21st.

Sources: DOL.gov, SEC.gov

Fiduciary Advice

DOL Fiduciary Rule

As of now, most 
recordkeeper service 

models look to remain 
the same as prior to 

vacating the rule, with 
some exceptions.

On April 18, 2018, the SEC published proposals to 
institute a new ‘Regulation Best Interest’ standard 
of care for broker-dealers, requiring them to not 
put their financial interest ahead of the interest of a 
retail customer. In addition, the proposal attempts 
to clarify fiduciary duty and advisers’ legal 
obligations. Comments on the rule are due by 
August 7th.

SEC Regulation Best Interest

Although the impact of 
the SEC’s Regulation on in-

plan advice remains 
uncertain, fiduciaries still 

have an obligation to 
prudently select and 

monitor advice providers.

69



Additional Regulatory Updates

Sources: House.gov, DOL.gov

01 Optional Hardship Withdrawal Changes (effective 1/1/2019)

• Removal of 6 month suspension of contributions post withdrawal
• Removal of requirement to exhaust available loans prior to

withdrawal
• Allow additional contribution sources and earnings for

distribution purposes
• All new provisions are optional. Plan documents must be

amended to allow for these changes.

02 Loan Default Provisions
• Previously, participants who defaulted on their loans had 60 days

to conduct an indirect rollover of that loan amount to avoid taxes 
and possible penalties.

• Effective 1/1/2018, participants have until they file their taxes for
the year in which they default to complete an indirect rollover.

03 Clarification on FAB 2018-01
• ESG Investing: ERISA fiduciaries may not sacrifice investment

returns or assume greater investment risks as a means of
promoting collateral social policy goals.

70



Update on Recent Lawsuits

St. Louis based firm Schlichter
Bogard & Denton LLP filed over 

a dozen complaints against 
some of the largest 401(k) 

plans alleging excessive fees.

First-round court rulings came in, 
plaintiffs reworked their assertions 
and refiled more targeted claims.  
Plaintiffs obtained several large 

settlements.

Litigation has become prevalent 
in Corporate America, and a new 
round of suits are filed, targeting 

20 of the largest university 
403(b) plans.

2011-12 2016-182006

What are 
plaintiffs 
targeting?

Multiple recordkeepers

Unreasonably high investment expenses

Large number of investment options

Use of revenue sharing

Fiduciaries failing to solicit competitive bids for 
recordkeeping

Investments with poor historical performance

How can 
fiduciaries 
reduce 
risk?

Ensure proper delegations of authority are followed

Periodically evaluate service providers through 
benchmarking/RFPs/RFIs

Monitor fees and service provider performance

403(b) Lawsuit Update¹

❖ Three suits have been dismissed in full –
expected appeals forthcoming

❖ One has entered into a settlement for 
$6.5m, with no admission of wrongdoing

❖ Nine cases have received partial 
dismissals, 3 more are pending dismissal 
decisions

❖More recent suits are still waiting 
responsive pleadings

¹ Source: TIAA, as of June 14, 2018

71



Committee Governance and Best Practices

72



Committee Best Practices Review¹
Act prudently and always in the best interests of participants.

¹ Not intended as legal or compliance advice and may not be all inclusive. Plan fiduciaries should always consult with qualified ERISA counsel on legal and compliance matters. 
² Not applicable to all plans

Governance Related

 Periodically review all governance
documents, including Investment
Policy Statement, plan
documents/amendments, and
summary plan description.

 Schedule periodic meetings and
establish a quorum.

 Consider periodic updates to
committee or governing body.

 Review required plan bonding
annually and consider other non-
required coverages that may help
protect plan fiduciaries (e.g.
Fiduciary Liability Insurance).

 Avoid prohibited transactions and
conflicts of interest.

Participant Related

 Periodically evaluate participant
communications and education
services.

 Discuss automatic or other plan
design features that may benefit
participant retirement readiness.

 Consider periodic
communications to participants
concerning the process related to
restricted/closed funds.²

 Periodically ensure that all
eligible employees have the
opportunity to elect deferrals,
and deferrals are limited to
402(g) limits and deposited in a
timely manner.

Plan Related

 Periodically review and document
all plan related fees to ensure
reasonableness.

 Periodically evaluate Plan
Recordkeeper(s).

 Periodically ensure you are
operating according to all plan
documents.

 Ensure that all required plan
related disclosures are sent to
participants.

 Review the plan’s protocol on
proxy voting.

 Periodically ensure all service
provider cybersecurity protocols
are up to current best practices.

73



Second Quarter 2018 Executive Summary

74



Jun-2018 Mar-2018 Dec-2017 Sep-2017
($) % ($) % ($) % ($) %

General Account 2,580,428 23.4 2,569,454 23.8 2,464,127 22.6 2,463,341 23.7

Stable Value/ Money Market Funds 2,580,428 23.4 2,569,454 23.8 2,464,127 22.6 2,463,341 23.7
Dreyfus Bond Market Index Inv 96,369 0.9 95,695 0.9 111,560 1.0 110,024 1.1

Western Asset Core Plus Bond FI 233,398 2.1 234,957 2.2 258,196 2.4 224,263 2.2

Templeton Global Bond A 22,413 0.2 24,262 0.2 20,274 0.2 19,867 0.2

Fixed Income Funds 352,181 3.2 354,915 3.3 390,030 3.6 354,154 3.4
MFS Value Fund R3 689,555 6.2 690,167 6.4 736,398 6.8 696,244 6.7

Dreyfus S&P 500 Index 3,026,412 27.4 2,948,597 27.4 3,028,504 27.8 2,825,313 27.2

T. Rowe Price Growth Stock R 1,926,959 17.4 1,838,389 17.1 1,800,130 16.5 1,741,136 16.8

AllianceBern Discovery Value A 322,746 2.9 306,667 2.8 316,519 2.9 296,065 2.9

Dreyfus MidCap Index 77,462 0.7 72,432 0.7 114,565 1.1 104,655 1.0

Eaton Vance Atlanta Capital SMID-Cap A 491,258 4.4 470,408 4.4 484,221 4.4 423,777 4.1

Dreyfus Small Cap Stock Index 138,585 1.3 109,964 1.0 149,752 1.4 139,058 1.3

Domestic Equity Funds 6,672,978 60.4 6,436,623 59.7 6,630,091 60.8 6,226,249 60.0
Hartford International Opportunities R4 263,209 2.4 271,387 2.5 268,011 2.5 280,867 2.7

International Funds 263,209 2.4 271,387 2.5 268,011 2.5 280,867 2.7
T. Rowe Price Retirement Balanced R 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 23,609 0.2 22,629 0.2

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2010 R 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2020 R 74,144 0.7 73,301 0.7 72,889 0.7 0.00 0.0

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2030 R 696,965 6.3 695,560 6.5 705,928 6.5 708,387 6.8

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2040 R 97,193 0.9 81,980 0.8 74,983 0.7 67,668 0.7

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2050 R 309,948 2.8 290,574 2.7 278,427 2.6 258,157 2.5

Target Date Funds 1,178,251 10.7 1,141,415 10.6 1,155,835 10.6 1,056,842 10.2
Simsbury 457 11,047,046 100.0 10,773,794 100.0 10,908,095 100.0 10,381,452 100.0

Historical Balances by Investment
Simsbury 457
As of June 30, 2018

Source: MassMutual

75



As of June 30, 2018

Simsbury 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan

Source: MassMutual

Balances by Investment

Investment Assets Allocation
General Account $43,888 30.1%
Western Asset Core Plus Bond FI $0 0.0%
Templeton Global Bond $3,650 2.5%
Dreyfus S&P 500 Index $6,225 4.3%
T. Rowe Price Growth Stock $0 0.0%
AllianceBern Discovery Value $400 0.3%
Dreyfus MidCap Index $1,566 1.1%
Dreyfus Small Cap Stock Index $1,485 1.0%
Hartford Intl Opportunities $3,498 2.4%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2020 R $2,225 1.5%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2030 R $4,429 3.0%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2040 R $10,653 7.3%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2050 R $67,851 46.5%

Simsbury 401(a) Plan $145,869 100.0%

76



Source: MassMutual

Investment Assets Allocation
General Account $199,789 54.4%
Dreyfus Bond Market Index Inv $2,612 0.7%
Western Asset Core Plus Bond FI $304 0.1%
Templeton Global Bond $5,693 1.6%
MFS Value Fund R3 $13,993 3.8%
Dreyfus S&P 500 Index $39,908 10.9%
T. Rowe Price Growth Stock $15,174 4.1%
AllianceBern Discovery Value A $6,925 1.9%
Dreyfus MidCap Index $16,110 4.4%
Eaton Vance Atlanta Capital SMID-Cap A $10,146 2.8%
Dreyfus Small Cap Stock Index $8,885 2.4%
Hartford Intl Opportunities $7,689 2.1%
T. Rowe Price Retirement Balanced R $481 0.1%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2020 R $2,006 0.5%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2030 R $11,619 3.2%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2040 R $19,764 5.4%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2050 R $5,912 1.6%

Simsbury BOE Plan $367,007 100.0%

As of June 30, 2018

Simsbury BOE Defined Contribution Plan

Balances by Investment

77



1-50 Percentile =

51-75 Percentile =

76-100 Percentile =

QTR 1
Year

3
Years

5
Years

10
Years

Expense
 Ratio (%) Manager Status

General Account MAINTAIN
FTSE 3 Month T-Bill 0.4 1.3 0.6 0.4 - -

Dreyfus Bond Market Index Inv -0.3 -0.8 1.2 1.8 3.2 0.40 MAINTAIN
Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index -0.2 -0.4 1.7 2.3 3.7 -

IM U.S. Broad Market Core+ Fixed Income (MF) Rank 39 70 85 86 96 0.81

Western Asset Core Plus Bond FI -1.6 -0.8 2.9 3.4 5.8 0.83 MAINTAIN
Blmbg. Barc. U.S. Aggregate Index -0.2 -0.4 1.7 2.3 3.7 -

IM U.S. Broad Market Core Fixed Income (MF) Rank 100 66 2 1 1 0.71

Templeton Global Bond A -2.6 -2.1 1.0 1.6 5.4 0.96 MAINTAIN
FTSE World Government Bond Index -3.4 1.9 2.8 1.1 2.1 -

IM Global Fixed Income (MF) Rank 53 99 94 55 6 0.97

MFS Value Fund R3 -0.7 3.8 8.1 10.4 8.4 0.84 MAINTAIN
Russell 1000 Value Index 1.2 6.8 8.3 10.3 8.5 -

IM U.S. Large Cap Value Equity (MF) Rank 97 95 51 36 39 0.98

Dreyfus S&P 500 Index 3.3 13.8 11.4 12.9 9.7 0.50 MAINTAIN
S&P 500 Index 3.4 14.4 11.9 13.4 10.2 -

IM U.S. Large Cap Core Equity (MF) Rank 31 39 24 28 30 0.93

T. Rowe Price Growth Stock R 5.9 22.9 15.5 17.6 12.2 1.17 MAINTAIN
Russell 1000 Growth Index 5.8 22.5 15.0 16.4 11.8 -

IM U.S. Large Cap Growth Equity (MF) Rank 47 44 14 12 16 1.05

Performance Overview By Investment

As of June 30, 2018
Total Annualized Return (%)

Explanation of Category rankings: Percentile rankings are on a scale of 1 to 100, with a rank of 1 (1st percentile) being the best and 100 (100th percentile) being the worst. Rankings relate to net of
fee returns for each fund in its respective Lipper peer group. Due to statistical requirements, investment versus peer group rankings will not populate if peer groups contain less than 10 members.
Returns for periods less than one year are not annualized.
Source: Lipper Analytical Services or investment manager for non-mutual fund holdings.
^More information on custom indexes, which may be used in this report, can be found on the Custom Index Description page in the back of your report.

Net Crediting Rate: 4.0%

78



Performance Overview By Investment

As of June 30, 2018
Total Annualized Return (%)

QTR 1
Year

3
Years

5
Years

10
Years

Expense
 Ratio (%) Manager Status

AllianceBern Discovery Value A 5.1 14.0 9.9 11.4 10.7 1.13 MAINTAIN
Russell 2500 Value Index 5.8 11.5 9.8 10.8 10.1 -

IM U.S. SMID Cap Value Equity (MF) Rank 63 14 25 19 22 1.21

Dreyfus MidCap Index 4.2 12.9 10.4 12.2 10.3 0.50 MAINTAIN
S&P MidCap 400 Index 4.3 13.5 10.9 12.7 10.8 -

IM U.S. Mid Cap Core Equity (MF) Rank 15 22 13 14 17 1.15

Eaton Vance Atlanta Capital SMID-Cap A 3.6 18.0 13.2 14.3 13.9 1.19 MAINTAIN
Russell 2500 Growth Index 5.5 21.5 10.9 13.9 11.4 -

IM U.S. SMID Cap Growth Equity (MF) Rank 99 83 20 25 4 1.23

Dreyfus Small Cap Stock Index 8.7 19.9 13.2 14.1 11.9 0.50 MAINTAIN
S&P SmallCap 600 Index 8.8 20.5 13.8 14.6 12.2 -

IM U.S. Small Cap Core Equity (MF) Rank 29 21 19 14 15 1.12

Hartford International Opportunities R4 -3.7 4.9 4.7 6.5 3.6 1.13 MAINTAIN
MSCI AC World ex USA (Net) -2.6 7.3 5.1 6.0 2.5 -

IM International Large Cap Core Equity (MF) Rank 85 58 13 16 30 1.00

*Historical performance of current share class may differ slightly due to share class exchanges and/or blended performance.

Explanation of Category rankings: Percentile rankings are on a scale of 1 to 100, with a rank of 1 (1st percentile) being the best and 100 (100th percentile) being the worst. Rankings relate to net of
fee returns for each fund in its respective Lipper peer group. Due to statistical requirements, investment versus peer group rankings will not populate if peer groups contain less than 10 members.
Returns for periods less than one year are not annualized.
Source: Lipper Analytical Services or investment manager for non-mutual fund holdings.
^More information on custom indexes, which may be used in this report, can be found on the Custom Index Description page in the back of your report.

79



1-50 Percentile =

51-75 Percentile =

76-100 Percentile =

QTR
1

Year
3

Years
5

Years
10

Years
Expense

 Ratio (%)
Manager Status

T. Rowe Price Retirement Balanced R 0.3 4.3 4.3 4.8 4.9 1.06 MAINTAIN

T. Rowe Price Retirement Balanced Index 0.9 5.2 4.8 5.4 4.9 -

IM Retirement Income (MF) Rank 54 42 53 78 76 0.85

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2010 R 0.1 4.4 4.7 5.7 5.4 1.07 MAINTAIN

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2010 Index 0.8 5.4 5.2 6.2 5.5 -

IM Mixed-Asset Target 2010 (MF) Rank 72 40 27 23 17 0.71

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2020 R 0.4 6.5 6.1 7.5 6.5 1.13 MAINTAIN

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2020 Index 1.2 7.6 6.7 7.9 6.6 -

IM Mixed-Asset Target 2020 (MF) Rank 71 15 5 5 4 0.80

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2030 R 0.6 8.4 7.3 9.1 7.2 1.19 MAINTAIN

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2030 Index 1.5 9.6 8.0 9.4 7.4 -

IM Mixed-Asset Target 2030 (MF) Rank 72 31 16 7 8 0.83

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2040 R 0.8 9.8 8.1 10.0 7.7 1.24 MAINTAIN

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2040 Index 1.7 11.0 8.8 10.3 7.9 -

IM Mixed-Asset Target 2040 (MF) Rank 71 42 29 8 10 0.85

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2050 R 0.8 10.1 8.3 10.1 7.8 1.24 MAINTAIN

T. Rowe Price Retirement 2050 Index 1.8 11.3 9.0 10.4 7.9 -

IM Mixed-Asset Target 2050 (MF) Rank 72 53 32 10 15 0.85

*Historical performance of current share class may differ slightly due to share class exchanges and/or blended performance.

Performance Overview By Investment

As of June 30, 2018
Total Annualized Return (%)

Explanation of Category rankings: Percentile rankings are on a scale of 1 to 100, with a rank of 1 (1st percentile) being the best and 100 (100th percentile) being the worst. Rankings relate to net of
fee returns for each fund in its respective Lipper peer group. Due to statistical requirements, investment versus peer group rankings will not populate if peer groups contain less than 10 members.
Returns for periods less than one year are not annualized.
Source: Lipper Analytical Services or investment manager for non-mutual fund holdings.

80



Dreyfus Bond Market Index Inv Western Asset Core Plus Bond FI Templeton Global Bond A

MFS Value Fund R3 Dreyfus S&P 500 Index T. Rowe Price Growth Stock R

AllianceBern Discovery Value A Dreyfus MidCap Index Eaton Vance Atlanta Capital SMID-Cap A

Dreyfus Small Cap Stock Index Hartford International Opportunities R4 S&P 500 Index

90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill

-8.0

-4.0

0.0

4.0

8.0

12.0

16.0

20.0

24.0

Re
tu

rn 
(%

)

-6.0 -4.0 -2.0 0.0 2.0 4.0 6.0 8.0 10.0 12.0 14.0 16.0 18.0 20.0

Risk (Standard Deviation %)

Performance vs Risk

3 Years Ending June 30, 2018
The plan's investment menu should provide for investment options with materially different risk/reward characteristics that would allow participants to construct a broadly diversified portfolio.
The chart below illustrates how the funds in the plan align on the "risk-return spectrum" when compared to the S&P 500 Index.
Calculation based on monthly periodicity.

81



Style Map(03/01/15 - 06/30/18)

AllianceBern Discovery Value A Eaton Vance Atlanta Capital SMID-Cap A Dreyfus Small Cap Stock Index

Dreyfus MidCap Index MFS Value Fund R3 T. Rowe Price Growth Stock R

Dreyfus S&P 500 Index

C
ap

it
a

liz
at

io
n

Manager Style

Large Cap Value

Small Cap Value Small Cap Growth

Large Cap Growth

Performance Statistics

Average Style Exposure
The chart below illustrates the Lipper Style Box exposure for the plan's funds that invest primarily in U.S. stocks. The purpose of the chart is to demonstrate the presence of coverage in all style
boxes, from small cap to large cap and from growth to value.

82



Manager Manager Status Comments

General Account Maintain 2Q 2018 - Commentary not available at time of report production.

Dreyfus Bond Market Index Inv Maintain In accordance with its objective, the Dreyfus Bond Market Index Fund sufficiently tracked its index during the
quarter.

Western Asset Core Plus Bond FI Maintain 2Q 2018 – The Western Asset Core Plus Bond fund produced a negative absolute return during the quarter and
underperformed the Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate Bond Index. Fixed income markets generally produced
negative returns during the period as interest rates rose and credit spreads widened. The strategy’s exposure
to emerging market debt and a longer than benchmark duration posture, two themes that had been drivers of
outperformance over recent years, were the main culprits of relative underperformance during the period.
Negatively impacting emerging market debt was a rising U.S. dollar, as well as concerns about the impact of
tariffs, and geopolitical tensions rising. On the other hand, the portfolio’s non-agency MBS exposure, CMBS
holdings, and high yield investments had a positive impact. The team continues to believe that U.S. growth will
be subdued and that emerging economies will experience better growth in the long run as they have less debt
and better demographics. As such, positioning within the portfolio has not shifted dramatically. There was a
modest increase in investment grade corporate exposure on the back of widening spreads. The strategy
continues to be longer than the benchmark in duration to act as a ballast against the overweight exposure to
spread sectors.

Templeton Global Bond A Maintain 2Q 2018 – The Templeton Global Bond Fund declined during the second quarter but outperformed its
benchmark, the FTSE WGBI, as global market conditions, highlighted by political uncertainty and escalating
global trade tensions, fostered risk aversion which resulted in a sharp rise in the U.S. dollar against most
foreign currencies and rising yields in several emerging markets. The Fund’s largest absolute detractor in the
period was its emerging markets currency exposure, including the Brazilian real, Mexican peso, Argentine
peso, and Indian rupee, as these currencies depreciated significantly against the U.S. dollar. Select duration
exposures in Argentina and Indonesia were additional sources of negative returns as yields rose across several
local markets in Latin America and Asia. Meanwhile, the Fund’s net-negative positions in the euro and yen
contributed to results as these currencies also depreciated against the dollar. The Fund is maintaining the
same defensive approach regarding interest rates in developed markets, while holding duration and currency
exposures in select emerging markets, which the team believes have attractive risk/return profiles, favorable
macro conditions and economic resilience, and relatively higher and maintainable rate differentials.

Manager Commentary

As of June 30, 2018

83



Manager Commentary

As of June 30, 2018
Manager Manager Status Comments

MFS Value Fund R3 Maintain 2Q 2018 - The MFS Value Fund trailed the Russell 1000 Value Index in the second quarter. Value stocks (as
measured by the Russell Indices) continued to underperform growth stocks over the quarter as the Russell
1000 Value Index was up just 1.2% while the Russell 1000 Growth Index was up 5.8%. Sector allocation was
responsible for the majority of the Fund's underperformance in the quarter. An underweight to energy was
the largest detractor as the sector rallied this quarter and was easily the best performing one in the index for
the period. An overweight position in the consumer staples sector also weighed on performance. Staples was
the worst performing sector in the benchmark this quarter as it continues to struggle with cyclical and
structural issues. On the positive side, selection was strong in technology led by Accenture PLC and Texas
Instruments which were the top contributors across the Fund for the period. The Fund has trailed the
benchmark over the past year due to more or less the same thing, sector allocation. The Fund's underweight
position in energy has hurt as the sector has been the best performing one in the benchmark over the past
year. The Fund's overweight in Staples has also hurt as the sector has been the worst performing one in the
benchmark over the past year. The Fund has always underweighted the energy sector due to the cyclical
nature of the space and has historically favored staples due to the durability of the sector.

Dreyfus S&P 500 Index Maintain In accordance with its objective, the Dreyfus S&P 500 Index Fund sufficiently tracked its index during the
quarter.

T. Rowe Price Growth Stock R Maintain 2Q 2018 – The T. Rowe Price Growth Stock Fund produced a positive absolute return during the second
quarter and outpaced the Russell 1000 Growth Index. Among large caps, growth stocks continued their
dominance over value counterparts, a trend that has now persisted for six consecutive quarters. From a sector
standpoint, the traditionally higher growth areas of the market, including technology, consumer discretionary
and pockets of health care, also continue to outperform, while energy stocks joined the leadership ranks this
period on the back of rising oil prices. Regarding attribution, strong stock picks in industrials contributed
during the quarter, as did strong selection among health care names. Overweight stakes to TransUnion and
Boeing lifted performance within industrials, as each reported earnings above expectations. In health care,
medical device and equipment manufacturers boosted results as did strength within managed care names.
Top contributors from the sector included stakes in Intuitive Surgical and UnitedHealth Group. On the negative
side, weakness in financials and technology held back relative gains. Morgan Stanley and TD Ameritrade were
underperformers in financials while an overweight posture to Symantec weighed on results in technology this
quarter.

AllianceBern Discovery Value A Maintain 2Q 2018 - The Alliance Bernstein Discovery Value Fund trailed the Russell 2500 Value Index in the second
quarter. Reversing direction from Q1, all of the sectors in the index posted positive results with top performing
sectors Energy and real estate posting 20% and 10% returns, respectively. Sector allocation was mostly
responsible for the Fund's underperformance this quarter due to overweights in the industrial and technology
sectors along with an underweight to real estate. After leading the way last quarter, tech stocks took a
breather in Q2. Real estate on the other hand, rebounded strongly from a negative quarter. On the positive
side, stock selection was positive during the quarter, led by holdings in the energy and healthcare sectors.

84



Manager Commentary

As of June 30, 2018
Manager Manager Status Comments

Dreyfus MidCap Index Maintain In accordance with its objective, the Dreyfus Midcap Index Fund sufficiently tracked its index during the
quarter.

Eaton Vance Atlanta Capital SMID-Cap A Maintain 2Q 2018 - The Eaton Vance Atlanta Capital Smid Cap Fund produced a positive absolute return during the
second quarter but trailed the Russell 2500 Growth Index. Factor headwinds that the Fund experienced during
most of 2017 and the first quarter of 2018, persisted through the second quarter of the year, as preferences
for high quality and value once again proved detrimental. Regarding attribution, underperformance was driven
primarily by the Fund’s sector allocations, with security selection just modestly detracting from relative results
in aggregate. Specifically, overweight stances to the weaker performing financials and industrials sectors were
hindrances, as were underweights to health care, consumer discretionary and energy, which were all among
top index performers. In addition, unfavorable selection among financials, consumer discretionary and health
care names compounded the adverse results in those groups. A 5% cash position also served as a headwind in
a rising equity market. Pockets of strength occurred from stock picks within industrials, technology and real
estate and partially offset the mentioned areas of weakness.

Dreyfus Small Cap Stock Index Maintain In accordance with its objective, the Dreyfus Small Cap Stock Index Fund sufficiently tracked its index during
the quarter.

Hartford International Opportunities R4 Maintain 2Q 2018 – The Hartford International Opportunities Fund declined during the second quarter and
underperformed its benchmark, the MSCI ACWI ex-US. International equity returns in the period were mixed
with developed markets rising and emerging markets declining as investors digested numerous developments
including signs of slowing economic growth in Europe and Japan, political uncertainty, and escalating trade
tensions. In addition, returns for dollar-based investors were significantly lower due to a sharp rise in the U.S.
dollar. The Fund’s lagging returns were the result of poor stock selection as the portfolio’s information
technology and healthcare positions were the largest detractors. In contrast, this underperformance was
partially offset by positive stock selection in the industrials and consumer discretionary sectors. Meanwhile,
sector allocation was modestly additive to relative returns due to the portfolio’s underweight to financials and
telecom stocks, the market’s two worst performing sectors. The Fund is sub-advised by Wellington
Management.

85



Manager Commentary

As of June 30, 2018
Manager Manager Status Comments

T. Rowe Price Retirement Funds Maintain 2Q 2018 – The T. Rowe Price Retirement Funds produced positive absolute returns during the second quarter,
in line with peer group averages, but lagged composite indices for the period. Longer dated vintages
outperformed shorter vintages on an absolute basis as domestic equities rose despite trade and political
turmoil globally during the quarter. Tactical allocation was a drag on performance, as an underweight equity
allocation, overweight international equity positioning, and underweight real assets positioning were
headwinds. Strong stock selection within growth equities including, New Horizons Fund and Growth Stock was
additive, however an energy sector underweight in the International Stock fund was a detractor. Within fixed
income, the core bond holdings modestly underperformed the benchmark. The underweight positioning to
emerging markets debt was additive as EMD struggled amid a strengthened USD, however this was partially
offset by an underweight positioning to High Yield which performed well relative to investment grade for the
quarter. The portfolio continues to maintain a defensive posture, including an underweight position to non-
core fixed income and an underweight equities position which was increased in Q2 as valuations remain
elevated.

86



Investment Policy Statement

87



88



89



90



91



92



Custom Index Descriptions 

CRSP U.S. Large Cap Growth Spliced Index – Following May 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Large Cap Growth TR. Periods prior to May 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. 
Prime Market Growth. 
CRSP U.S. Large Cap Spliced Index – Following February 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Large Cap TR. Periods prior to February 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. Prime 
Market 750. 
CRSP U.S. Large Cap Value Spliced Index – Following May 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Large Cap Value TR. Periods prior to May 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. 
Prime Market Value. 
CRSP U.S. Mid Cap Growth Spliced Index – Following May 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Mid Cap Growth TR.  Periods prior to May 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. 
Mid Cap Growth. 
CRSP U.S. Mid Cap Spliced Index – Following February 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Mid Cap TR. Periods prior to February 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. Mid Cap 
450. 
CRSP U.S. Small Cap Growth Spliced Index – Following May 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Small Cap Growth TR.  Periods prior to May 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. 
Small Cap Growth. 
CRSP U.S. Small Cap Spliced Index – Following February 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Small Cap TR. Periods prior to February 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. Small 
Cap 1750. 
CRSP U.S. Small Cap Value Spliced Index – Following May 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Small Cap Value TR. Periods prior to May 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. 
Small Cap Value. 
CRSP U.S. Total Market Spliced Index – Following June 1, 2013: CRSP U.S. Total Market TR. Periods prior to June 1, 2013: MSCI U.S. Broad 
Market. 
FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Spliced Index – Following April 1, 2013: FTSE Developed Asia Pacific. Periods prior to April 1, 2013: MSCI Pacific. 
FTSE Developed Europe Spliced Index – Following April 1, 2013: FTSE Developed Europe. Periods prior to April 1, 2013: MSCI Europe. 
FTSE Developed ex US Spliced Index – Following December 1, 2015: FTSE Developed All Cap Ex US Transition Index.  Periods between May 1, 
2013 and December 1, 2015: FTSE Developed ex NA Index.  Periods before May 1, 2013: MSCI EAFE (net). 
FTSE Emerging Markets All Cap China A Inclusion Spliced Index – Following November 1, 2015: FTSE Emerging Markets All Cap China A 
Inclusion Transition Index. Periods between July 1, 2013 and November 1, 2015: FTSE Emerging Markets (net). Periods between 
February 1, 2013 and July 1, 2013: FTSE Emerging Markets Transition. Periods Prior to February 1, 2013: MSCI Emerging Markets. 
FTSE Global All Cap ex U.S. Spliced Index – Following June 1, 2013: FTSE Global ex USA All Cap. Periods between January 1, 2011 and June 1, 
2013: MSCI ACWI ex USA IMI ND. Periods prior to January 1, 2011: MSCI EAFE + EM ND USD. 
JP Morgan Global Diversified Hybrid Benchmark – 50% JPM EMBI Global Diversified, 25% JPM ELMI+, 25% JPM BGI‐EM Global Diversified 
MSCI AC World ex USA (net) Spliced Index – Following January 1, 2001: MSCI AC World ex USA (net). Prior to January 1, 2001: MSCI AC World 
ex USA. 
MSCI AC World ex USA Growth (net) Spliced Index – Following January 1, 2001: MSCI AC World ex USA Growth (net). Periods between 
January 1, 1997 and January 1, 2001: MSCI AC World ex USA Growth. Periods prior to January 1, 1997: MSCI AC World ex USA. 
MSCI AC World ex USA Value (net) Spliced Index – Following January 1, 2001: MSCI AC World ex USA Value (net). Periods between January 1, 
1997 and January 1, 2001: MSCI AC World ex USA Value. Periods prior to January 1, 1997: MSCI AC World ex USA. 

93



Glossary

Alpha -  A measure of return that cannot be attributed to the market. Thus, it can be thought of as how the portfolio would have preformed if the market had experienced no gain or loss. 
Alpha is value added over the benchmark; the higher the alpha, the better.

Batting Average -  Ratio defining excess performance of a portfolio in comparison to its benchmark, measured, typically, over a series of calendar quarters.

Beta -  Indicates the level of risk relative to the market. A beta of more than one suggests more volatility than the market, while a beta of less than one indicates less volatility than the 
market. Beta is also referred to as systematic risk.

Down Market Capture Ratio -  A measure of a portfolio's performance in down markets. The lower a portfolio's down market capture ratio, the better the manager protected capital 
during a market decline. Ex: a value of 90 suggests that a manager's losses were only 90% of the market loss when the market was down. A negative down market capture ratio indicates 
that a manager's returns rose while the market declined.

Information Ratio -  Measures a portfolio's excess return per unit of risk. The ratio is used to measure the value added from the information a manager possesses, adjusted for the risk 
taken in making active investment decisions. The greater the information ratio, the better.

Performance vs Peers -  Trailing return and calendar year returns reveal how the portfolio has performed versus a peer group of portfolios of similar style.

R-Squared -  This number reflects the correlation between a portfolio's movements and the movements of its comparative benchmark. An R-squared of 100 indicates that there is perfect 
correlation between the movements of a portfolio and its benchmark, while an R-squared of 0 indicates that there is no correlation between the portfolio's movements and the 
benchmark's movements.

Return vs Standard Deviation Scatterchart -  This graph shows a risk/reward relationship of the portfolio and its relative benchmark. Risk, or volatility as measured by standard 
deviation, is plotted along the horizontal axis. Reward, as measured by total return, is plotted along the horizontal axis. A line drawn from T-bills and through the benchmark separates 
efficient managers from inefficient managers. Efficient managers will plot above this line and are considered to have risk/reward tradeoffs that are superior to the benchmark.

Sharpe Ratio -  Reward per unit of risk, calculated using standard deviation and excess return. The greater the Sharpe Ratio, the better.

Standard Deviation -  A gauge of risk that measures the spread of the difference of returns from their average. The more a portfolio's returns vary from its average, the higher the 
standard deviation.

Style Map -  Using returns-based style analysis, the style map is an efficient tool to gauge the adherence of a portfolio to its style mandate. The trend of the style plots allows the viewer 
to identify style drift, or lack thereof. The smaller sized plots represent earlier time periods, while the larger plots represent the more recent observations.

Tracking Error -  The standard deviation of the portfolio's residual (i.e. excess) returns. The lower the tracking error,the closer the portfolio returns have been to its risk index. 
Aggressively managed portfolios would be expected to have higher tracking errors than portfolios with a more conservative investment style.

Up Market Capture Ratio -  A measure of a portfolio's performance in up markets. The higher a portfolio's up market capture ratio, the better the manager capitalized on a rising market. 
Ex: a value of 110 suggests the manager captured 110% of the market when the market was up. A negative up market ratio indicates that a manager's returns fell while the market rose.

94



 

  Town of Simsbury 
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET    SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
 

                   Melissa A. J. Appleby – Deputy Town Manager
 

 

Telephone  (860) 658-3230 
Facsimile (860) 658-9467 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 
mappleby@simsbury-ct.gov 

www.simsbury-ct.gov 

8:30 – 7:00 Monday  
8:30 - 4:30  Tuesday through Thursday 

8:30 – 1:00 Friday 
 

TO:  Retirement Plan Sub-Committee 
 
FROM: Melissa Appleby, Deputy Town Manager 
 
RE:  Retirement Income Plans – Interest Rate Assumption Scenarios 
 
DATE: May 23, 2018 
 
CC:  Maria E. Capriola, Town Manager 
  Burke LaClair, School Business Manager  
 
At the Retirement Plan Sub-Committee meeting on May 9, 2018, Becky Sielman of Milliman 
presented the July 1, 2017 pension valuations (her presentation is attached to this memo).  As 
noted in her presentation, the expected rate of return for the plans, based on a 75-year time 
horizon, is 6.59%.  The current interest rate assumption for the plans is 7.00%.   
 
The committee discussed potentially lowering the interest rate assumption for the July 1, 2018 
valuations, which would have an impact on the FY20 budget.  Becky had calculated the cost to 
move from a 7.00% interest rate assumption to 6.75% when planning for FY19; that analysis is 
also attached to this memo. This does not include the figures for the Board of Education plan, as 
staff had already made the decision to keep the interest rate assumption at 7.00% for FY19 by the 
time the BOE census information was available.  Two notes on this analysis: 
     

 The total actuarially required contribution for the General Government and Police 
plans would have been $167,590 higher if the interest rate assumption was reduced to 
6.75% for FY19. 

 

 Because the interest rate assumption is fairly linear, the contribution at 6.875% would 
be about halfway between that at 7.00% and 6.75%.   Therefore, every 0.125% is worth 
approximately $83,795 ($47,390 for General Government and $36,404 for the Police 
plan).   

 
Becky will calculate the July 1, 2018 valuations at 7.00%, 6.875%, and 6.75%, and she will have 
those results available for the November 14 Retirement Plan Sub-Committee meeting.  If the 
committee decides to take any action regarding the interest rate assumption, this information will 
be taken into account for the FY20 budget planning process.     
 
Please feel free to reach out with any questions or concerns on this matter. 
 



Town of Simsbury
2017 Pension Valuations

May 9, 2018

Rebecca A. Sielman, FSA
Principal and Consulting Actuary



2

• Collect membership census data as of each July 1
• Calculate liability for future benefits
• Review asset performance 
• Analyze events of the past year and how they 

impact each plan’s funded status
• Monitor trends over the past several years
• Set assumptions about future events
• Determine the Town’s contribution

The annual pension valuation



3

• Accrued Liability = cost of benefits earned in 
past years

• Actuarial Value of Assets = plan assets with 
market gains or losses phased in over 5 years

• Unfunded Accrued Liability = Accrued Liability 
minus Actuarial Value of Assets

• Past Service Cost = amortization payment to 
gradually pay off the Unfunded Accrued Liability 
and get to 100% funded

Funding terminology



4

• Normal Cost = cost of benefits earned this year
• We net expected member contributions out of 

the Normal Cost
• We add expected administrative expenses 

that are paid out of pension trust assets

• Actuarially Determined Contribution = Past 
Service Cost plus Net Normal Cost plus Interest

Funding terminology



5

Plan assets Actuarial value:  market gains or losses are 
recognized gradually over 5 years.

Because of this asset smoothing mechanism, 
the big market dip in 2009 only gradually 
increased the Town’s pension contributions.

Based on July 1, 2017 valuations



6

Investment returns

The Actuarial Value is much 
more stable over time than is 
the Market Value.

Based on July 1, 2017 valuations



7

Plan population
Based on July 1, 2017 valuations



8

Funded status
Based on July 1, 2017 valuations



9

Town contributions
Based on July 1, 2017 valuations

The Town has faced two significant 
headwinds:  the 2009 market 
meltdown plus gradual decreases in 
the interest rate assumption



10

Board of 
Education

General 
Government Police Total

Membership as of July 1, 2017

Active Members 150 99 36 285
Terminated Vested Members 88 50 2 140
Members in Pay Status 116 95 32 243
Total Members 354 244 70 668
Payroll $7,235,501 $7,110,117 $3,400,678 $17,746,296

Assets and Liabilities as of July 1, 2017

Market Value of Assets $21,106,540 $23,295,414 $16,266,199 $60,668,153
Actuarial Value of Assets 21,193,924 23,425,550 16,366,441 60,985,915

Accrued Liability for Active Members 16,005,656 14,038,179 8,432,926 38,476,761
Accrued Liability for Terminated Vested Members 2,020,264 2,983,226 461,802 5,465,292
Accrued Liability for Members in Pay Status 10,031,887 12,958,628 10,525,740 33,516,255
Total Accrued Liability 28,057,807 29,980,033 19,420,468 77,458,308

Unfunded Accrued Liability 6,863,883 6,554,483 3,054,027 16,472,393

Funded Ratio 75.5% 78.1% 84.3% 78.7%

Actuarially Determined Contribution for FY2019

Normal Cost $471,405 $369,172 $306,461 $1,147,038
Past Service Cost 544,107 519,580 242,096 1,305,783
Interest 71,086 62,213 38,399 171,698
Actuarially Determined Contribution 1,086,598 950,965 586,956 2,624,519

Summary



11

• We update our long-range projection each year
• The projection assumes that there are no gains or losses 

in the future, i.e. all of our assumptions come true year in 
and year out

• We know that the future will not unfold exactly according 
to our assumptions;  future valuations will reflect future 
experience 

• Actual results at each point in time will yield different 
values, reflecting the actual experience of the plan 
membership and assets.   The purpose of this forecast is 
to give the Town a general sense for where the numbers 
are headed over time.

• Keep inflation in mind – all costs go up over time

Looking forward



12

Looking forward

Our long-range forecast for the Police plan assumes that 
the number of active members remains constant, and that 
as active members terminate or retire they are replaced by 
new employees with the same age / gender / 
compensation profile as officers who were hired recently.

Based on July 1, 2017 valuations The Board of Education plan 
is closed to new employees

The General Government plan 
is closed to new Dispatchers 
and Public Works employees



13

Looking forward

Our long-range forecast assumes that the assets always yield the assumed rate of return (7.00%), the Town 
always pays the Actuarially Determined Contribution, and there are no future changes in the plan or the 
actuarial assumptions other than the interest rate assumption.

Based on July 1, 2017 valuations



14

Looking forward

Our long-range forecast assumes that the assets 
always yield the assumed rate of return (7.00%), 
the Town always pays the Actuarially Determined 
Contribution, and there are no future changes in 
the plan or the actuarial assumptions other than 
the interest rate assumption.

Based on July 1, 2017 valuations



15

New asset allocation

US Core Fixed Income 
(27.5%)

US Inflation-Indexed 
Bonds (5.0%) Global Bonds (5.0%)

US Equity Market 
(30.0%)

Non-US Equity 
(16.5%)

Foreign Developed 
Equity (6.0%)

Emerging Markets 
Equity (5.0%)

Private Real Estate 
Property * (5.0%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

R
et

ur
n 

(M
ea

n 
R

ea
l G

eo
m

et
ric

)

Risk (standard deviation)

Risk / Return Profile of New Asset Allocation



16

The interest rate assumption

-1.67%

0.91%

2.65%
3.46% 3.92% 4.24% 4.72%

2.44%

3.85%
4.75% 5.18% 5.42% 5.58% 5.82%5.39%

5.94% 6.24% 6.39% 6.47% 6.52% 6.59%

8.42% 8.08% 7.74% 7.62% 7.54% 7.47% 7.36%

12.95%

11.24%
9.95% 9.42% 9.09% 8.86% 8.49%

5 years 10 years 20 years 30 years 40 years 50 years 75 years

Distribution of Expected Returns Over Time

Time Horizon

95th percentile

75th percentile

50th percentile

25th percentile

5th percentile Recommendation: lower the interest 
rate assumption from 7.00% to 6.75% 
for the July 1, 2018 valuations



17

Questions



TOWN OF SIMSBURY PENSION PLANS
JULY 1, 2017 VALUATION ‐ IMPACT OF REDUCING INTEREST RATE ASSUMPTION

Interest Rate Assumption 7.00% 6.75% 7.00% 6.75%

Normal Cost

Total Normal Cost 674,691 713,132 530,370 561,811
Expected Employee Contributions 341,419 341,419 249,009 249,009
Expected Expenses 35,900 35,900 25,100 25,100
Net Normal Cost 369,172 407,613 306,461 337,902

Amortization Payment

Accrued Liability 29,980,033 30,757,495 19,420,468 19,957,278
Actuarial Value of Assets 23,425,550 23,425,550 16,366,441 16,366,441
Unfunded Accrued Liability / (Surplus) 6,554,483 7,331,945 3,054,027 3,590,837
Funded Ratio 78.1% 76.2% 84.3% 82.0%
Amortization Period 16 16 16 16
Past Service Cost (Amortization Payment) 519,580                 572,010                 242,096                 280,143                

Actuarially Determined Contribution for FY 2018‐19

Net Normal Cost + Past Service Cost 888,752                 979,623                 548,557                 618,045                
Interest to End of Year 62,213                    66,125                    38,399                    41,718                   
Actuarially Determined Contribution 950,965 1,045,748 586,956 659,763

General Government Police

This work product was prepared solely for the Town of Simsbury for the purposes described herein and may not be appropriate to use for
other purposes. Milliman does not intend to benefit and assumes no duty or liability to other parties who receive this work. The explanatory
notes contained in the July 1, 2016 valuation reports dated January 24, 2017, including statements of reliance and limitations on use, continue
to apply.

SIM2017AltIntRatesSummary.xlsx 2/16/2018


	Agenda
	01/10/18 Minutes
	05/09/18 Minutes
	OPEB Valuation
	DC Plan 2nd QTR Performance
	Interest Rate Assumption Scenarios

